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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  

Washington, D.C. 20549  

FORM 10-K  
(Mark One)  

 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT 
OF 1934  
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or  

� TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE 
ACT OF 1934  
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.    Yes    �     No      

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.    Yes    �      No     

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing 
requirements for the past 90 days.      Yes     No    �  

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required 
to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the 
registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes          No    �  

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best 
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(Check one): 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes    �      No      

As of December 27, 2013, the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, computed by reference to the last sale price 
of such stock as of such date on the NASDAQ Global Select Market, was approximately $390,534,224 . For purposes of this calculation, shares of common 
stock held by each officer and director of the Registrant and by each person who is known to own 10% or more of the outstanding common stock of the 
Registrant have been excluded since such persons may be deemed to be affiliates of the Registrant.  Such determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a 
conclusive determination of affiliate status for other purposes.  

As of August 29, 2014 , there were 34,609,203 shares of the registrant's common stock outstanding.  

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.  

Portions of the registrant's definitive proxy statement for its 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, scheduled to be held on December 9, 2014 , are 
incorporated by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K where indicated. Except as expressly incorporated by reference, the registrant's proxy 
statement shall not be deemed to be part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFO RMATION  

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements included or incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K other than 
statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Investors can identify these and other forward-looking statements by the use of 
words such as “estimate,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “ anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe,” “contin ue” or the negative of such terms, or 
other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements also include the assumptions underlying or relating to such statements.  

Our actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements included herein as a result of a number 
of factors, risks and uncertainties, including, among others, the risk factors set forth in “Item 1A—Risk Factors,” and "Item 7—Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Form 10-K and the risks 
detailed from time to time in Silicon Graphics International Corp.’s future U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission reports. The information 
included in this Form 10-K is as of the filing date with the Securities and Exchange Commission and future events or circumstances could differ 
materially from the forward-looking statements included herein. We disclaim any intent to update any of the forward-looking statements after 
the date of this report or to conform these statements to actual results except as required by law. Accordingly, we caution readers not to place 
undue reliance on such statements.  

“Silicon Graphics,” “SGI,” “Accelerate,” “Altix,” “ ArcFiniti,” “CloudRack,” “CXFS,” “Cyclone,” “DataRa pter,” “DMF,” 
“FullCare,” “FullExpress,” “Global Developer Program,” “ICE,” “ICE Cube,” “InfiniteData,”“InfiniteStor age,” “LiveARC," “MineSet,” 
“NUMAflex,” “NUMAlink,” “Octane,” "OpenGL,” “Origin ,” “ProPack,” “Rackable,” “REACT,” “SHMEM,” “StorHo use,” “Supportfolio,” 
“Tempo,” “Trusted Edge,” “UV,” “VizServer,” “XFS,” “ZeroWatt,” and the “Silicon Graphics” logo are registered or other trademarks of 
Silicon Graphics International Corp. or its subsidiaries in the U.S. and/or other countries.  Other trademarks or service marks appearing in this 
report may be trademarks or service marks of other owners.  
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PART I  

Item 1. Business  

Overview  

SGI is a global leader in high performance computing ("HPC"). We are focused on helping customers solve their most demanding business 
and technology challenges by delivering high performance computing and data analytics solutions that accelerate time to discovery, innovation 
and profitability.  

We develop, market and sell a broad line of low cost, mid-range and high-end scale-out and scale-up servers, enterprise-class storage, 
differentiating software and designed-to-order solutions for large-scale data center deployments, coupled with global support and highly 
experienced professional services. SGI solutions are designed to deliver high impact results with lower total cost of ownership at the extremes of 
speed, scale and efficiency.  

SGI solutions are utilized by scientific, business and government communities to fulfill highly data-intensive application needs in petascale 
environments. Delivering industry-leading computing power and fast and efficient data movement, both within the computing system and to and 
from large-scale data storage installations, SGI systems enable customers to access, analyze, transform, manage and visualize information in real 
and near real-time.  

Our goal is to accelerate time to results in key markets, including federal government, defense and strategic systems, weather and climate, 
physical and life sciences, energy (including oil and gas), aerospace, automotive, internet, financial services, media and entertainment and cloud 
services.  

SGI achieves competitive differentiation through compute and storage solutions built with innovative architectural advantages utilizing 
industry standard components and tight integration. By designing for performance, power, density and scalability; optimizing interconnections 
between layers; and engineering to reduce overhead and accelerate deployment, SGI solutions deliver industry leading speed, scale and 
efficiency.  

SGI has over 1,150 employees worldwide and has 632 granted and pending patents. SGI serves over 6,500 customers and sells products 
and services in 50 countries through a direct and indirect sales force, including original equipment manufacturers, system integrators and value 
added resellers. SGI has over 260 active partners. During fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 , international revenue was approximately 52% , 38% and 
41% , respectively, of our total revenue.  

FileTek, Inc. Acquisition  

On September 30, 2013, the Company acquired certain assets of FileTek, Inc. ("FileTek"), a global provider of high performance data 
analytics storage virtualization, large-scale data management, and active archive solutions. The total purchase price was approximately $9.2 
million in cash. This acquisition expanded the Company's storage solutions by enabling customers to manage data assets efficiently and lower 
the cost and administration of high-volume storage. Under the terms of the agreement, SGI acquired FileTek's StorHouse and Trusted Edge 
software, worldwide customers, engineering team, and services and support resources.  

The acquired assets and assumed liabilities were recorded by the Company at their estimated fair values. The Company determined the 
estimated fair values using estimates and valuations including discounted cash flow and cost approach analyses.  

Fiscal Year  

Included in this report are our consolidated balance sheets as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 , the consolidated statements of 
operations, the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 27, 
2014 ("fiscal 2014 "), June 28, 2013 ("fiscal 2013 ") and June 29, 2012 ("fiscal 2012 ").  

The Company has a 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the last Friday in June. Fiscal year 2014 was comprised of 52 weeks. Fiscal year 
2013 was comprised of 52 weeks and fiscal year 2012 was comprised of 53 weeks.  

Segment Information  

Our operating segments are determined based upon several criteria including: our internal organizational structure; the manner in which our 
operations are managed; the criteria used by our Chief Executive Officer, who functions as our Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), to 
evaluate segment performance; and the availability of separate financial information.  

Commencing in the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company started managing its business primarily on a business unit basis versus the 
geographic basis previously used by management. Accordingly, the Company has determined its operating and reporting segments, which is 
based on the business unit structure, to be Compute, Storage and Service.  
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A description of Company's three reportable segments is as follows:  

Compute- The Compute solutions segment includes our scale-out computing, scale-up computing and software solutions. Compute 
solutions also include integrated third-party hardware and software products that we sell to provide a single source solution for our customers. 
Our compute solutions are designed to minimize the number and complexity of interconnects for power and data transfer to improve reliability, 
speed of implementation and serviceability.  

Storage- The Storage solutions segment includes both hardware and software offerings to address virtually every type of data storage and 
management requirement. Products range from entry-level disk arrays to complex storage systems, with innovative technology and hardware, to 
include the SGI Modular InfiniteStorage™ platform, SGI InfiniteStorage™ gateway and SGI CXFS™ file system. Our storage solutions are 
designed to provide extreme scale, broad flexibility and to minimize the cost to store data.  

Service- The Service segment is comprised of customer service support and professional services. Our customer support organization 
provides ongoing maintenance and technical support for our products and some third-party products, as well as contracted maintenance services, 
hardware deployment services (install and de-install), time and materials-based services and spare parts. Our professional services organization 
provides value added services associated with technology consulting, project management and customer education, all of which help our 
customers realize the full value of their information technology investments.  

The Company's CODM evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on revenue and operating profit (loss). Revenue is 
generally allocated based on the type of products and service provided to our customers. Operating profit (loss) for each segment includes related 
cost of sales and operating expenses directly attributable to the segment. A portion of the segments' expenses arise from shared services and 
infrastructure that the Company provides to the segments in order to realize economies of scale and to efficiently use resources. These expenses, 
collectively called corporate charges, include costs of centralized research and development and other corporate infrastructure expenses. The 
corporate charges that are directly attributable to the segments are allocated and are reassessed on a periodic basis. The allocations have been 
determined on a basis that the Company considers to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided to or benefits received by 
the segments. The profitability of each of the segments is measured after excluding share based compensation expenses, amortization of 
intangibles, restructuring charges, manufacturing transition costs, general and administration charges, other unallocated corporate charges and 
other items as management does not include this information in its measurement of the performance of the operating segments.  

Further information regarding our operating segments is presented in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations" in Part II, Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in Note 22 "Segment Information" to the consolidated 
financial statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  

Customers  

Direct sales to various agencies of the United States government, excluding system integrators accounted for 16% , 19% , and less than 
10% of our revenue in fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. For fiscal 2013 and 2012 , Amazon accounted for approximately 18% and 16% 
of our revenue, respectively.  

Information regarding revenue and gross profit by reportable segments and revenue from our customers and by business unit is presented 
in Note 22 "Segment Information" to the consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part II, Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.  

Solutions  

SGI provides a broad line of solutions designed to address the specialized demands of market verticals, enable our customers to run data-
intensive applications rapidly, and store data safely and economically. Our core computing and storage components utilize Intel, NVIDIA 
graphics processing units ("GPUs") and the Linux operating system. Our storage product lines range from entry-level disk arrays to complex 
storage systems, with innovative technology and hardware, to include the SGI Modular InfiniteStorage™ platform, SGI InfiniteStorage™ 
gateway and SGI CXFS™ file system.  

We design our solutions for optimal performance, quick deployment, efficient operation, high system availability and broad serviceability. 
Our compute solutions incorporate premium quality components, selected for superior functionality and reliability, and are designed to minimize 
the number and complexity of interconnects for power and data transfer to improve reliability, speed of implementation and serviceability. Our 
storage solutions are designed to provide extreme scale, broad flexibility, and to minimize management overhead. We also integrate third-party 
hardware and software products into the compute and storage solutions we sell and provide a single source solution for our customers.  
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SGI data center technologies help reduce total cost of ownership. These include SGI® Power XE™ phase balanced power distribution with 
99% power efficiency, maximum density at the cabinet and row levels, thermally neutral doors, self-adjusting fan arrays, cable reduction and 
higher temperature tolerance for operation up to 104°F (40°C).  

Our products predominantly utilize a software environment based on the industry-standard Linux operating system with comprehensive 
data management tools that include open source software and our own execution, development and administrative tools and utilities. We have 
key differentiation in our storage software for managing very large data volumes efficiently and demonstrated ability to reliably store files for 
decades. We believe our integrated software stack and the features of our architecture and hardware differentiate our product offerings in 
performance and ease of use. Our products can be customized to meet end-user requirements and were developed to permit easy hardware and 
software installation, both to add capacity and to take advantage of future technology advances.  

 We group our solution offerings under these main categories: Scale-out Computing, Scale-up Computing, High Performance Data 
Analytics, Clustered and High Performance Storage, Software, Networking and Global Services.  

Scale-out Computing:  

Clusters are the workhorses of many applications in high-performance computing, running technical computing workloads as diverse as 
Computational Fluid Dynamics and bioinformatics, as well as high performance data analytics using Hadoop clusters. The design for SGI HPC 
cluster solutions begins with our Applications Engineering team of engineers and scientists, many at the Ph. D. level, who have years of 
experience working with customers and their applications in a variety of engineering and technical fields. This understanding of customer needs 
helps us to provide cluster solutions for customer workflows and data sets. SGI provides HPC cluster solutions for small design shops up to the 
largest corporations in the world.  

SGI HPC cluster solutions for technical computing comprise:  

Scale-up Computing:  
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•  SGI Rackable® standard depth server clusters provide solutions for small to medium-sized installations, typically of a few servers to a 
few hundred. Standard depth servers consist of several models, including I/O and memory rich models, dense models with four slim 
nodes in a single 2U chassis, and models specifically designed to support NVIDIA® Tesla GPU Compute Accelerators and Intel® 
Xeon® Phi™ Coprocessors. The clusters include a broad range of GigE and Infiniband interconnect options.  

•  SGI® ICE™ X is a distributed memory supercomputer. The fifth generation of our award-winning SGI ICE architecture for technical 
HPC, ICE X can deliver over 190 teraflops per rack and affordably scale from 36 to tens of thousands of nodes to solve the world's 
most complex problems. ICE X delivers a variety of innovative technologies including FDR Infiniband interconnect, an innovative 
double-density blade design, flexible power shelves, on-processor liquid cooling and “M-Cell” closed-loop cooling environment that 
allows warm water cooling. Its open x86 architecture makes it equally simple to deploy commercial, open source or custom applications 
on completely unmodified Novell® SLES® or Red Hat® Enterprise Linux® operating systems. ICE X supports the latest Intel® E5-
2600 v2   processors and Intel Xeon® Phi™ Coprocessors. We have deployed numerous Petascale systems including NASA-Ames in 
Mountain View, California, Total in southwest France, and the US Air Force Research Lab in Ohio, AWE in the United Kingdom, and 
have a roadmap to Exascale computing at both the hardware and software level.  

•  SGI UV 2 is the world's largest coherent in-memory system. In addition to being a real time analytic solution, SGI UV 2 is designed to 
address the most demanding data-intensive applications and accelerate the pace of innovation across a broad range of environments. 
Scaling up 2,048 cores and 64 TBs of shared memory, SGI UV 2 is managed and operated as a single system. It can run many compute-
intensive workloads simultaneously. Utilizing the UV 2 large node in any cluster deployment also enables customers to address 
programming jobs and data sizes in CAE, Life Sciences and other markets that exceed the capacity of standard two or even four socket 
servers. Programming tools utilized with scale-out cluster solutions such as SGI Performance Suite can be used with SGI UV 2. And 
with SGI Management Center, users are able to manage our scale-out and scale-up solutions with a common application, simplifying 
administration. For smaller environments without information technology ("IT") resources to manage a complex scale-out cluster 
deployment, UV 2 can be utilized as the sole compute resource, with only a single server and operating system image. Customers 
interested in developing new applications will also be able to prototype new algorithms with the UV 2 hardware and open software 
architecture.  
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High Performance Data Analytics Solutions :  

Clustered and High Performance Storage:  

SGI Clustered and High Performance Storage solutions include a complete suite of hardware and software offerings to address virtually every 
type of data storage and management requirement. Offered under the SGI ® InfiniteStorage™ ecosystem, these solution components range from 
power-efficient JBODs to a wide range of NAS, RAID and object storage platforms to accommodate all types of workflow requirements, as well 
as the industry's leading high-performance clustered file system and tiered storage virtualization software.  

Our data storage solutions are designed to meet the performance, scale, and efficiency needs of high performance technical computing and data 
analytics, cloud computing and active archiving of persistent data and include:   

 

•  SGI UV for SAP HANA is a purpose-built appliance for the SAP HANA platform. This large-scale appliance uses in-memory SGI 
computing technology to enable real-time transactional and analytical processing for large enterprises. The appliance is a single-node, 
coherent shared-memory computer system that will scale seamlessly from 4 to 32 sockets.  Each socket supports up to 24 dual in-line 
memory modules (DIMMs) to enable a variety of configurations commensurate with a customer’s specific use case.  This solution is 
currently undergoing certification with our partner SAP.  We expect to launch our first HANA appliances in the second half of fiscal 
2015.  

•  SGI Solutions for Hadoop . SGI has implemented many of the largest Hadoop clusters in the world, some containing over 1,500 
nodes. Our solutions start with a deep software stack including our proprietary SGI Management Center, cluster management software 
that provides ease of management for thousands of server nodes, complete monitoring of all key system aspects and fine-grained power 
management. Underneath the SGI Management Center are open components including the Linux operating system and the Apache-
based Hadoop distribution. SGI Hadoop solutions are completely factory-integrated and tested, and arrive at the customer site ready to 
be plugged in and deliver an immediate resource. For customers who wish to first experiment with Hadoop, SGI offers Hadoop Starter 
Kits in cluster sizes ranging from a half-rack to multiple racks.  

•  SGI InfiniteData Cluster is a highly flexible cluster computing platform combining server and storage density with extreme, scale-out 
performance. Designed for HPC spanning High Performance Data Analytics and moderate technical computing environments, 
InfiniteData Cluster accelerates time to value in data and compute intensive environments with greater efficiency, less complexity, and 
at a lower cost.  

•  SGI Graph, Fraud Analysis, Social Analytics and Genomics Solutions . Utilizing SGI® UV™ 2 , the second generation of our 
Intel® Xeon® based scale-up servers, these solutions enable knowledge discovery, deliver real-time results and instant feedback versus 
batch jobs that might take hours or days to complete and allow customers to create new analyses quickly with ease of use. UV 2 
leverages nearly twenty years of SGI technology to deliver the fastest and most scalable shared memory computer in the world, scaling 
from 16 to 4,096 processing cores with architectural provisioning for up to 262,144 cores, while supporting up to 64 terabytes of global 
shared memory in a single system image. UV 2 can support Novell® SLES® Linux and Red Hat® Enterprise Linux®. Superior 
performance is built into every SGI UV 2 system, leveraging our high-speed proprietary interconnect NUMAlink® 6 and MPI Offload 
Engine acceleration. Based on open standards, the system's x86 architecture leverages the quad-, six- or eight-core Intel® Xeon® E5-
4600 series processor family, and allows for the use of completely unmodified Novell® SLES® or Red Hat® Enterprise Linux 
operating systems.  

•  SGI® InfiniteStorage™ Gateway is an active archive appliance that enables enterprise IT organizations to address the volume 
challenges of High Performance Data Analytics. See Clustered and High Performance Storage.  

•  HPC Storage Solutions comprise SGI RAID platforms with a variety of density, performance and price points in direct-attached and 
SAN configurations, and typically in combination with SGI file system and storage management software. Our InfiniteStorage 5000 
series mid-range RAID products are focused on delivering a high price/performance ratio and flexible configurations. Our 
InfiniteStorage 16000 and 17000 solutions are designed to meet high performance, guaranteed I/O rate and capacity requirements found 
in many high-end HPC environments. Offering scalability to 1,200 disk drives in a single system, guaranteed latency and extremely 
high bandwidth, these offerings address the requirements of digital media, supercomputing, life sciences and remote sensor acquisition.  

•  SGI® Modular InfiniteStorage™ (MIS) platform is an integrated server and storage system designed to provide extreme flexibility 
with industry-leading density in an innovative, adaptable design. Offered in storage server and JBOD versions, MIS is a highly flexible 
platform that delivers a wide range of storage solutions with different disk size and types (including SSDs), to include cloud storage, 
NAS, active archive gateway, or object storage server. The unique, bi-directional design allows it to be serviced from the front or rear 
of the chassis.  
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Software:  

Networking:  

SGI Global Services  

The SGI Global Services organization is comprised of customer support services and professional services. Our customer support 
organization provides ongoing maintenance and technical support for our products and some third-party products, as well as contracted 
maintenance services, hardware deployment services (install and de-install), time and materials-based services and spare parts. Our professional 
services organization provides value added services associated with technology consulting, project management and customer education, all of 
which help our customers realize the full value of their information technology investments. SGI has developed four specific practices within 
professional services to address customer needs. Each practice was developed to provide differentiated solutions in the technology subject matter 
they address. Our focused Solution Practice Areas include: High Performance Data Analytics, Storage, High Performance Computing and 
Visualization. As of June 27, 2014 , the organization staffed over 300 service professionals, providing services to customers in approximately 47 
countries.  
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•  SGI® InfiniteStorage™ Gateway is an active archive appliance that enables enterprise IT organizations to align data throughout its 
lifecycle with the most appropriate storage medium while maintaining seamless user access, significantly reducing the cost of high 
volume storage. An extension of the SGI Modular InfiniteStorage (MIS) platform, the appliance integrates SGI ® DMF™ tiered storage 
virtualization technology.  

•  SGI® DMF™ storage software creates and automatically manages a tiered virtual storage environment that significantly reduces 
customer equipment and operating costs, improves service levels and lowers customer data risks. Currently, DMF is deployed at 
customer sites worldwide, with individual customers managing more than 100 petabytes and nearly two billion files. DMF operates in 
the background with no interruption or degradation of service to end-users and applications. DMF is integrated in SGI's new 
InfiniteStorage Gateway active archive appliance and is often part of many HPC storage implementations.   

•  CXFS™ file system software provides no-compromise data sharing, enhanced workflow and reduced costs in data-intensive 
environments. It eliminates file duplication and the time it takes to move large files over networks. CXFS significantly boosts 
productivity where large files are shared by multiple processes in a workflow. Because it uses a SAN infrastructure, CXFS delivers 
much greater I/O performance and bandwidth than any network data-sharing mechanism, such as network file system or common 
internet file system.  

•  SGI Management Center is used to manage SGI HPC cluster solutions. Adding features such as GPU monitoring to the capabilities 
allows our customers to take advantage of the latest processors for accelerating the speed of their codes.  

•  SGI Foundation Software is our software suite of support tools and utilities that enable our servers to run more reliably, with 
improved support and new server capabilities. SGI Foundation software includes key capabilities to monitor memory component 
failures in our servers, which minimizes or eliminates the impact of these failures on system users. SGI Foundation Software also 
includes customized simple network management protocol interfaces for many of our systems, allowing them to interface easily to 
enterprise management systems.  

•  SGI Performance Suite software improves performance and provides key additional capabilities for developers of technical computing 
and high performance data applications on all of our systems that run standard Linux distributions. SGI Performance Suite software 
contains the following components: SGI® Accelerate™, SGI MPT, SGI REACT™ and SGI UPC. SGI Accelerate provides features 
that accelerate applications, enable development of parallel and real-time applications, and manage system resources for SGI's large 
scalable servers, clusters and storage. SGI Message Passing Interface ("MPI") contains the SGI Message Passing Toolkit ("MPT") for 
very high levels of scalability and performance of MPI applications on our systems. SGI REACT software provides features that enable 
real-time, guaranteed response time applications to run on SGI systems. SGI UPC is the SGI Unified Parallel Compiler which has 
optimizations for the SGI UV 2 server features.  

•  SGI Networking solutions include node-level integration (dual/quad NICs, GigE, 10GigE, InfiniBand QDR and FDR onboard 
interfaces), cluster-level integration for clustered-computing (pre-tested, pre-certified high-speed switches, in-cabinet aggregation and 
software managed GigE, 1GigE, IB) and Fibre Channel integration for clustered-storage (high-speed data access, interconnects and 
stacking). The SGI UV scale-up server line features SGI's own high-performance, low-latency SGI® NUMAlink™ interconnect.  
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Both customer support services and professional services develop and implement services solutions for our customers, as well as provide a 
board range of value added and support services offerings to address the requirements and business strategies of our customers, distributors and 
resellers. Service is provided to our customers several ways directly or through approved distributors, resellers and third-party provider partners.  

Support Services: The SGI Global Services organization offers market competitive warranties, generally from one (1) to three (3) years, 
and warranty upgrade options for products sold by our direct sales team and approved distributors and resellers. We are committed to meeting 
our customers' maintenance and support needs by providing a broad range of support programs from a cost effective self-care option to a 7x24 
option for mission critical environments.  

SGI customers may purchase a variety of support services plans. We offer several levels of support that vary depending on specific 
services, response times, coverage hours and duration. In addition to our industry leading standard support plans, our customer support services 
provide competitive advantages in the form of long-standing relationships with our customer base and the extensive expertise of our systems 
engineers. All services plans come standard with SGI Remote Services.  

Remote Service: SGI Remote Services provide proactive monitoring, alerting and reporting of system events with a secure connection to 
SGI Customer Support-on demand.  

Installation Services: SGI services may include system installation, configuration and management services, spares management, site 
preparation, as well as software upgrades and updates.  

Customer Education: SGI Global Services also offers customer technical training to fully enable their use of SGI technology.  

Professional Services: Our professional services group provides fee-based consultative services to our customers and system integrators. 
We architect, design, implement and manage complex and complete solutions for our customers' technical computing infrastructures and provide 
installation and deployment for custom consulting projects. Our engagements are designed to ensure our customers' success with our products 
and technologies. The SGI professional services portfolio is designed to meet a variety of consulting needs, including custom time and materials, 
fixed price contract consulting services, standard assessments and implementation offerings or long-term on-site staff augmentation services. In 
particular, our on-site staff augmentation services enable us to develop and maintain ongoing relationships with our customers whereby we gain 
a deeper understanding of industry-specific information technology needs.  

Sales and Distribution  

We sell our systems and services primarily through our direct sales force and distributors, system integrators, value-added resellers, 
original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") and channel partners. Our sales teams consist of sales representatives and sales engineers, who are 
supported by channel, inside sales, sales support and professional services personnel. Our professional services and engineering personnel 
collaborate with our sales teams in all stages of the sales and integration process, including developing proposals that address the technical 
requirements of our customers, performing proofs of concept and benchmarking system performance.  

By selling our products through our direct sales team, we are able to maintain close client contact and feedback throughout the entire sales 
process. Our sales process begins with leads generated through targeted marketing programs and by our inside sales team, which are then logged, 
qualified and assigned to an account executive. After an initial lead qualification, our sales executives and sales engineers collect information 
regarding the customer’s data center environment and application requirements. We then collaborate with the customer’s technical point of 
contact and our own internal technical resources to agree upon a particular system configuration for the customer. For larger customers, we allow 
evaluation of one or more hardware configurations to enable the customer to conduct their own benchmarking analyses.  

We currently have direct sales personnel in various countries, including the United States, United Kingdom, France, Germany, Japan, 
Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Czech Republic, Netherlands and Singapore. We augment our sales staff with indirect coverage via distributor 
and channel partner arrangements in countries in which we have a presence. In markets where we have no direct sales personnel, we provide our 
products through our distributors and channel partners. We are engaged in a multi-year program to further develop additional channel partner 
relationships in order to improve our indirect sales efforts, expand our customer base and enter new markets. Our direct sales personnel are 
responsible for managing all direct or indirect sales with specific named accounts and our channel sales personnel are responsible for managing 
all sales that are not with specific named accounts.  
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In our largest markets, our sales representatives have a vertical industry market focus to more effectively leverage their domain expertise. 
We establish direct sales groups focused on different industry markets. One group concentrates on the defense and intelligence, scientific 
research and higher education markets while the second focuses on the commercial business intelligence and data analytics markets. We have 
developed expertise in a number of vertical industry markets, including weather and climate; physical sciences; life sciences; energy, aerospace 
and automotive; financial services; internet; and media and entertainment. As part of our emphasis on increased sales within these vertical 
industry markets, we have a program to identify and develop customer workflows in each of the vertical industry markets. The customer 
workflows allow us to offer our customers standard solutions that include our hardware, software, storage and professional services.  

We have increased our sales and marketing efforts recently in the commercial business intelligence and data analytics markets in an effort 
to expand our penetration of these markets. We continue to expand our targeted customer base to include all organizations with technical 
computing requirements, the largest firms through our direct selling force and other firms through our channel partners. Our channel program is 
designed to work with those partners who provide additional geographic and vertical market coverage for SGI-based solutions. We have created 
a channel council to increase communication between channel partners and our executive team in order to guide this program.  

Marketing  

Our marketing organization is active in all markets in which we sell products and services and continuously executes on programs that 
encompass sales tools, brand awareness and demand generation. The marketing team consists of product marketing, field marketing, corporate 
marketing and channel marketing. To showcase our solutions, expand our market presence, and enable our sales organization and channel 
partners to effectively pursue sales opportunities, we create and deliver a number of marketing vehicles including industry tradeshow and event 
activities, customer forums, webinars, advertisements and promotions, product demonstrations, web content, sales collateral and customer case 
studies. Our marketing channels include a mix of product-based activities which leverage our hardware and software expertise and industry-
based activities which leverage our understanding of customer challenges and applications. Our marketing team also works with industry 
experts, analysts and members of the press to generate awareness about our products and services. Using our history and experience in the high 
performance computing community, we issue white papers on technology trends such as performance ratings, benchmark results, power, cooling 
and system management. We participate in worldwide business and industry events throughout the year as both exhibitors and speakers, thereby 
maintaining a constant presence with our customers, prospects and industry influencers.  

We maintain active programs to encourage independent software development on our solution platforms. Through our Solution Partners 
Network program we provide software, marketing support, and access to hardware to enable third-party software developers to leverage SGI 
differentiation and add value. Serving the key independent software vendors (“ISVs”) addressing our target market segments, the program 
provides ISVs with technical information for developing, porting, tuning and differentiating their applications and opportunities for promoting 
their SGI-based solutions. We also engage in co-marketing activities with many of our ISVs.  

We provide significant marketing support to an active and established base of worldwide channel partners though a comprehensive 
channel portal and marketing program. We also develop co-marketing partnerships with our major customers and suppliers.  

Research and Development  

Our research and development organization includes, but is not limited to, hardware design engineers, software engineers, application 
engineers, benchmarking engineers, and solution engineers.  We focus our research and development efforts where we believe we can develop 
compelling and differentiated solutions to our customers’ most challenging problems, thus growing our share of the markets we participate in. 
Focus areas in research and development include shared memory computing system architecture; integrated system implementation optimized 
for space, power, performance, reliability and usability; the Linux development and operating environment; software to differentiate the 
performance of our computing platforms; storage software to enable better performance, scalability and ease of management of large amounts of 
data; and innovative solutions that help solve our customer's toughest problems. We have developed cooperative working relationships with 
many of the world’s most advanced technology companies, such as Intel, to leverage their research and development capabilities. Additionally, 
we work closely with our customers to develop product innovations and incorporate these into subsequent product design. This cooperative 
approach allows us to develop products that meet our customers’ needs in a cost-effective manner. We monitor new technology developments, 
new component availability and the impact of evolving standards through customer and supplier collaboration. From time to time, we accept 
third-party funding, provided the work being funded is consistent with and contributes to our strategic roadmap.   
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SGI UV System Development . We have invested significantly in the development of application-specific integrated circuits ("ASICs") and 
interconnect technology in order to extend our leadership in coherent shared-memory systems. The UV shared-memory system based on the 
latest generation of our NUMAlink interconnect and NUMAflex architecture increases substantially the performance and scalability of our single 
system image shared-memory products, incorporates hybrid processing elements, and provides optimized features to enhance in-memory 
application performance on a cluster computing system. We expect these design efforts to propel growth in adoption of the UV platform in 
technical computing, high performance data analytics, and as solutions to the needs of commercial customers employing in-memory databases 
for real time enterprise applications.  

SGI ICE X System Development .  We continue to invest aggressively in the SGI ICE X platform, which offers market leading system 
configuration flexibility and is based on the InfiniBand interconnect. The focus remains on maintaining the product’s leadership in speed, 
scalability, and power and thermal efficiencies, while enhancing its flexibility in terms of configurations, topologies, and interconnect 
technologies. We are also enhancing the product’s reliability, availability, serviceability, and interoperability in our designs.   

Storage. We design, develop, and integrate hardware and software solutions for file serving, data management, and data archival for 
petascale environments. The focus remains to maintain our leadership in speed, scalability, and efficiency (both in power and asset utilization). 
We design or select “best-in-class” storage hardware such as disk arrays and controllers from OEM suppliers that meet the particular needs of 
our customers’ applications and environments. Our engineers design software for efficient data access and management of these storage systems 
and we qualify storage systems ranging from small appliances to enterprise-class storage systems. We tightly integrate the storage software and 
hardware systems, and we optimize the software in our storage solutions for capacity-driven and performance-driven applications and 
environments.  

Software . Our research and development efforts include the development of software libraries, tools and utilities that facilitate extremely 
efficient management and operation of our systems, and enable software applications to run faster on our systems. We continue to enhance the 
SGI Management Center, our premier policy-based software tool for managing high performance, highly scalable technical computing 
environments, with a focus on accelerated system provisioning, proactive system health management, and system power management at the job 
level.     

Application Engineering and Benchmarking . Our global benchmarking and solutions centers provide a full range of our server and 
storage hardware and software, integrated in a wide variety of configurations, for applications testing, benchmarking, and performance tuning. 
At these centers, the highly skilled personnel in our application engineering and benchmarking teams work with end-users to build and optimize 
large-scale cluster computing systems, conduct proof-of-concept testing, and simulate end-user applications. Through these centers, we also 
provide demonstrations of the standardized SGI workflow solutions we have developed and are developing for our strategic vertical markets. In 
addition, the SGI® Global Developer Program provides ISVs, systems integrators, and consultants technical information for developing and 
porting their applications, as well as access to our online systems to streamline the implementation.  

We believe that focused investments in research and development are critical to our future performance and competitiveness in the 
marketplace. Our investments in this area will directly enhance our current product line and enable the development of new products that will 
provide differentiated and compelling solutions to the expanding range of challenges faced by our current and prospective customers. The 
execution of our business strategy relies on continued investment in engineering research and product development.  

Manufacturing and Operations  

Our sole manufacturing facility, located in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin, is responsible for worldwide production, supply-chain management 
and order fulfillment. Our manufacturing operations involve the on-site assembly and testing of high-level subassemblies, subsystems and 
complete systems, configured to customer specifications. Our consolidated worldwide manufacturing operations increase our control over our 
supply chain and our inventories. Our manufacturing facility is ISO 9001:2008 certified.  

Our supply base is composed of suppliers that meet our rigorous quality and technology standards. We maximize the use of industry-
standard components in our products to reduce cost, and we custom design components where we believe that doing so adds value to the 
customer. We have established close relationships with key suppliers and work closely with them on new product introduction plans, strategic 
inventories, quality and delivery commitments. We depend on a limited number of key sub-contractors for the production of certain assemblies 
and multi-source standard components to minimize supply chain risk. Consistent with industry practice, we acquire components through a 
combination of formal purchase orders, supplier contracts and open orders based on projected demand information. These purchase 
commitments typically cover our requirements for periods ranging from 30 to 120 days.  
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In July 2013, the Company selected Jabil Circuit, Inc. ("Jabil") to be its primary global manufacturing services and supply chain 
management provider. The transition to Jabil was expected to be implemented as a “manage in place” model, which utilizes existing SGI 
facilities and personnel. On November 18, 2013, the Company signed an asset purchase agreement with Jabil, whereby Jabil would purchase 
SGI’s primary manufacturing facility, located in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company reevaluated 
its outsourcing model given lower than anticipated volumes of Company product sales.  On August 4, 2014, the Company terminated the 
planned manage-in-place outsourcing structure and the asset purchase agreement referenced above. The Company agreed to pay approximately 
$0.6 million to Jabil for certain assets that were purchased for the manage-in-place model as well as for costs associated with streamlining the 
manufacturing process. The Company will continue to optimize all of its manufacturing capabilities with the objective of improving efficiency 
and flexibility. See Note 4 "Contract Manufacturing Transition" in our audited financial statements in this Form 10-K for further information on 
the contract manufacturing transition.  

Competition  

High performance server and storage markets are highly competitive, with rapid technological advances and constantly improving 
price/performance ratios. These advances and pricing pressures result in frequent product introductions and short product life cycles. We believe 
that purchasers make buying decisions based on many factors, including: solution features, performance, and scale, quality and reliability, 
application availability, ease of system management, customization, price/performance ratios, total cost of ownership and quality customer 
service and support. We believe we compete effectively in each of these areas by providing differentiated solutions that address the needs of our 
customers.  

The market for our products is highly competitive, dynamic and subject to changing technology, customer needs and new product 
introductions. In the server market we compete primarily with large, build-to-order vendors of x86 servers based in the United States such as 
Dell Inc. (“Dell”), Hewlett-Packard Company (“HP”), International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”), Oracle Corporation (“Oracle”) 
and Cray, Inc. (“Cray”). In the storage market we compete primarily with Dell, HP, IBM, Oracle, EMC Corporation (“EMC”), NetApp, Inc. 
(“NetApp”) and Hitachi Data Systems, Inc. (“HDS”). In addition, particularly in the storage market, there are many new companies introducing 
new products and technology with which we may compete.  

Our largest competitors have considerably greater financial, technical, development and sales and marketing resources, broader name 
recognition and larger customer bases than us. Because a computing system is a substantial investment that can require extensive service and 
support commitments, company size can have a significant impact on purchase decisions. In addition, large competitors can leverage business 
lines we do not have to broaden offerings and support deep discounting to gain market share.  

Proprietary Rights and Licenses  

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws and disclosure restrictions to protect our intellectual 
property rights. We also enter into confidentiality and proprietary rights agreements with our employees, consultants and other third parties. We 
have 632 granted patents and pending applications in the United States and abroad, and we intend to continue to protect our intellectual property 
with patents. We also hold various U.S. and foreign trademarks as well as copyrights in our original software. Although we believe the 
ownership of patents, copyrights, trademarks and service marks, and trade secrets is an important factor in our business and that our success 
depends in part on ownership rights, we rely primarily on the innovative skills, technical competence and marketing abilities of our personnel to 
differentiate our products and services within the marketplace.  

As is customary in our industry, we license from third-parties a wide range of software, including the Linux, Microsoft CCS and UNIX 
operating systems, for internal use and use by our customers. We also license various patents and trade secrets of third-parties through 
agreements such as patent or technology licenses or cross-licenses. We expect the extent of such intellectual property license and cross-license 
activities may increase as the scope of our product line increases. In some cases, our intellectual property is licensed to third-parties.  
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Our success will depend in part on our ability to protect our intellectual property portfolio and proprietary information. From time to time, 
we may need to enforce our intellectual property rights through litigation. If a claim is asserted that we have infringed the intellectual property 
rights of a third-party, we may be required to seek licenses under those intellectual property rights, if available, pay damages and/or redesign our 
products. If we were to litigate, we would incur significant costs, litigation may be a significant distraction for our management team, and we 
might not ultimately prevail. Litigation or changes in the interpretation of intellectual property laws could expand or reduce the extent to which 
we or our competitors are able to protect intellectual property and could require significant changes in product design. Because of technological 
changes and the extent of issued patents in our industry, it is possible certain components of our products and business methods may 
unknowingly infringe existing patents of others. Our industry has seen a substantial increase in litigation with respect to intellectual property 
matters, and we have been engaged in intellectual property disputes as a defendant as well as a plaintiff in efforts to protect our rights. We expect 
that we will engage in patent infringement litigation from time to time. See Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  

Backlog  

We manufacture products based on a combination of specific order requirements and forecasts of our customers’ demand. Orders are 
generally placed by customers on an as-needed basis. An accepted order can be canceled only with our written consent, and only on terms that 
will indemnify us against resulting losses, including, but not limited to, any costs already incurred in performing the order. In certain 
circumstances, purchase orders are subject to change with respect to quantity of product or timing of delivery resulting from changes in customer 
requirements. We experience some quarterly variability in our product and service revenue in any given period. Factors impacting the amount of 
product and service revenue in any given period includes deployment time of our larger systems, manufacturing and delivery schedules, changes 
in delivery schedules requested by our customers and the timing of our product development. Our business is also characterized by intra-quarter 
variability in demand and varying customer delivery and acceptance schedule. Accordingly, the timing for recognition of our backlog as revenue 
may be difficult to predict and current levels of backlog may not be a meaningful indicator of future revenue in any given quarter.  

Environmental Laws  

Our products and certain aspects of our operations are regulated under various environmental laws in the U.S., Europe and other parts of 
the world. These environmental laws are broad in scope and regulate numerous activities including the discharge of pollutants into the air and 
water, the management and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, the cleanup of contaminated sites, the content of our products and the 
recycling and treatment and disposal of our products. Certain of these laws also pertain to tracking and labeling potentially harmful substances 
that have been incorporated into our products. These laws require us to know whether certain substances are present in our products, and to what 
degree. Environmental laws may limit the use of certain substances in our products, or may require us to provide product safety information to 
our customers if certain substances are present in our products in sufficient quantities. Additionally, we may be required to recycle certain of our 
products when they become waste. Compliance with environmental laws and regulations across multiple jurisdictions is complex and will 
require further capital expenditures in future periods, including expenditures for the implementation of new processes in supply chain 
management and order fulfillment. We believe that these expenditures are necessary to maintain our presence and competitive position in certain 
markets, including in particular the European Union. No material capital expenditures for environmental control facilities were made in fiscal 
2014 and none are planned for the fiscal year ending June 26, 2015 ("fiscal 2015"). See Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K.  

Employees  

As of June 27, 2014 , we had over 1,150 employees worldwide. Our future success will require that we continue to retain and motivate 
highly qualified technical, sales, marketing, finance and management personnel. We have never had a work stoppage, and none of our U.S. 
employees are represented by a labor union. We have workers’ councils where required by the European Union or other applicable laws. We 
have employment-related agreements with a number of key employees or where required by applicable law. In general, where permitted by 
applicable law, employment with the Company is considered "at will" and our employment related agreements are not for a defined term.  

Corporate Data  

We were originally incorporated as Rackable Corporation and later changed our name to Rackable Systems, Inc. (“Rackable Systems”). 
Rackable Systems ® was incorporated in the state of Delaware in December 2002 in connection with the acquisition of substantially all of the 
assets and liabilities of Rackable Systems’ predecessor company. On May 8, 2009, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets, 
excluding certain assets unrelated to the ongoing business, and assumed certain liabilities of Silicon Graphics, Inc. Effective May 18, 2009, 
Rackable Systems changed its name to Silicon Graphics International Corp.  
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Our website address is www.sgi.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and 
amendments to those reports are available, without charge, on the investor relations section of our website, www.sgi.com, as soon as reasonably 
practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct 
and Ethics and the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of our 
Board of Directors are also posted on our website at http://investors.sgi.com/. Copies are also available, without charge, from the Corporate 
Secretary, Silicon Graphics International Corp., 900 North McCarthy Blvd, Milpitas, California, 95035. The information contained in, or that 
can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated by reference herein.  

Executive Officers of the Registrant  

Our executive officers, their ages and positions as of September 8, 2014 are as follows:  

 
Jorge Titinger joined SGI in February 2012 as our President and Chief Executive Officer and as a member of our board of directors. 

Previously, Mr. Titinger served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Verigy Ltd. (a company in the semiconductor automated test 
equipment business) from January 2011 to July 2011, as President and Chief Operating Officer from July 2010 to January 2011 and as Chief 
Operating Officer from June 2008 to July 2010. Verigy was acquired by Advantest Corporation in July 2011, and from such time until October 
2011, Mr. Titinger provided transitional services as President and Chief Executive Officer of Verigy, then a subsidiary of Advantest. Prior to 
Verigy, Mr. Titinger was Sr. Vice President and General Manager of Product Business Groups at Form Factor, Inc. (a company in the computer 
chip technology business) from November 2007 to June 2008. Mr. Titinger previously held management positions at KLA-Tencor Corporation 
(a company in the semiconductor equipment industry), Applied Materials, Inc. (a company involved in the business of semiconductor 
manufacturing) and Hewlett-Packard Company. Mr. Titinger holds a Bachelor of Science degree in electrical engineering, a Master of Science 
degree in electrical engineering and a Master of Science degree in engineering management, each from Stanford University.  

Robert Nikl joined SGI in May 2012 as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Nikl served as Executive Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer of Verigy Ltd. (a company in the semiconductor automated test equipment business) from June 2006 to 
October 2011. Verigy was acquired by Advantest Corporation in July 2011. Prior to Verigy, Mr. Nikl was Sr. Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer of Asyst Technologies, Inc. (a company in the semiconductor capital equipment business) from September 2004 to June 2006. Mr. Nikl 
previously held financial management positions at Solectron Corporation (an electronics manufacturing company) and Xerox Corporation and 
began his career in public accounting at KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr. Nikl is a certified public accountant with active licenses in California and 
New York and holds an MBA from the University of Connecticut as well as a Bachelor of Business Administration from Pace University in 
New York.  

Cassio Conceicao j oined SGI in January 2013 as our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Conceicao has over 25 
years of technology industry experience, leading change and continuous improvement across a broad range of business disciplines, such as 
operations, business development, product development, marketing, engineering and customer service. Prior to SGI, Mr. Conceicao served as 
Corporate Vice President and General Manager of the Services Business at Applied Materials, Inc. (a global provider of manufacturing 
equipment to the semiconductor, flat-panel display and solar energy industries) from October 1999 to January 2013. He also previously held the 
position of Vice President of Operations and Engineering at Kinetics Fluid Systems (a manufacturer of gas delivery systems and components for 
the semiconductor equipment industry) from April 1997 to October 1999. Mr. Conceicao earned a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering 
and a Bachelor of Arts in English Literature, both from Stanford University.  
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Name     Age     Position  

Jorge Titinger     53     Chief Executive Officer, President and Director  

Robert Nikl     59     Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  

Cassio Conceicao     51     Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer  

Jennifer Pileggi     50     Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary  

Mekonnen Asrat     46     Vice President, Corporate Controller and Principal Accounting Officer  
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Jennifer Pileggi joined SGI in September 2011 as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. Prior to joining 
SGI, Ms. Pileggi served as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of Con-way Inc. (a global transportation and 
logistics services company) from December 2004 until June 2011.  Ms. Pileggi originally joined Con-way in 1996 and previously served as Vice 
President and Corporate Counsel for Menlo Worldwide, Con-way's $1.5 billion supply chain management business segment.  Ms. Pileggi earned 
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Art History from Yale University and a Juris Doctorate from New York University School of Law.  Ms. Pileggi is a 
member of the American Bar Association and the California State Bar Association. She served on the board of directors of the California 
Chamber of Commerce and is a member of the General Counsel Executive Advisory Council of the Bay Area Chapter of the Association of 
Corporate Counsel.  

Mekonnen Asrat joined SGI in June 2012 as our Vice President and Corporate Controller and since August 2012 has served SGI as our 
Principal Accounting Officer. Previously, Mr. Asrat served as Senior Director, Corporate Controller of Advantest America, Inc., a subsidiary of 
Advantest Corporation, (a company in the semiconductor automated test equipment business) from March 2011 to June 2012. Prior to that, Mr. 
Asrat served as Director and Controller at Verigy Ltd. for its Memory Test Solutions business unit, from January 2008 to June 2011 and as 
Director of SEC Reporting from June 2006 to December 2007. Verigy was acquired by Advantest Corporation in July 2011. Prior to Verigy, Mr. 
Asrat held a variety of accounting and financial planning and analysis roles at Agilent Technologies, Inc., Hewlett-Packard Company and Ernst 
& Young LLP. Mr. Asrat is a certified public accountant, actively licensed in California and holds a Master of Professional Accounting degree 
from the University of Texas at Arlington and a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the College of William & Mary in Virginia.  
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Item 1A. Risk Factors  

Customer Concentration—A relatively small number of customers that purchase our products in large quantities have historically 
accounted for a significant portion of our revenue. If we are unable to maintain or replace our relationships with such customers and/or 
diversify our customer base, our revenue may fluctuate or decline and our growth may be limited.  

Historically, a significant portion of our revenue has come from a limited number of customers. There can be no guarantee that we will be 
able to sustain our revenue levels from these customers. For fiscal 2014 , our top five customers worldwide accounted for approximately 35% of 
our total revenue, with the U.S. government, excluding system integrators, accounting for 16% .  

This customer concentration increases the risk of quarterly fluctuations in our revenue and operating results. The loss or reduction of 
business from one or a combination of our significant customers, for example as a result of a customer's capital expenditure budget reductions or 
U.S. Government spending reductions, could materially adversely affect our revenue, financial condition and results of operations.  

U.S. Government Sales—We derive a significant portion of our revenue from customers who directly or indirectly receive funding from 
the U.S. government. If our U.S. government-related sales decrease, or our ability to do business with the U.S. government or entities 
funded by the U.S. government is disrupted or limited, our operating performance could be adversely affected.  

We generally derive a significant portion of our revenue directly from U.S. government entities, from research institutions funded by the 
U.S. government, and from system integrators that sell to the U.S. government through our subsidiary, Silicon Graphics Federal, LLC. For fiscal 
2014 , such sales represented approximately 38% of our total revenue. These sales present risks in addition to those involved in sales to 
commercial customers, including potential disruptions and delays due to changes in appropriation and spending priorities by the U.S. 
government. In addition, the U.S. government can terminate or modify its contracts with us at any time for its convenience. A significant 
reduction in such sales could adversely affect our operating performance.  

Our U.S. government business is also subject to specific procurement regulations and a variety of other requirements applicable to 
companies doing business with the U.S government. Sales to the defense sector require us to comply with additional defense-specific 
regulations, including maintaining a compliant security program, obtaining security clearances for employees and passing various inspections. 
Failure to comply with applicable regulations and requirements could lead to our suspension or debarment from U.S. government contracting or 
subcontracting for a period of time as well as fines against the Company.  

Any disruption or limitation in our ability to do business with the U.S. government or entities funded by the U.S. government could 
materially adversely affect our revenue and operating results.  

Strong Competition—We face competition from the leading enterprise computing companies in the world as well as from emerging 
companies. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition and capital resources than we do. If we are unable to compete 
effectively, we might not be able to achieve sufficient market penetration, revenue growth or profitability.  

The markets for compute server products and storage products are highly competitive. In addition to intensely competitive smaller 
companies, we face challenges from some of the most established companies in the computer server market, such as Dell Inc., Hewlett-Packard 
Company ("HP"), International Business Machines Corporation, Cray, Inc. and Oracle Corporation. In the storage market, we compete primarily 
with EMC Corporation, HP, Hitachi Data Systems, Inc. and NetApp, Inc. Our largest competitors have several advantages over us, such as:  
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•  substantially greater market presence and greater name recognition; 
•  substantially greater financial, technical, research and development, sales and marketing, manufacturing, distribution and other 

resources;  
•  longer operating histories; 
•  a broader offering of products and services; 
•  more established relationships with customers, suppliers and other technology companies; and 
•  the ability to acquire technologies or consolidate with other companies in the industry to compete more effectively. 
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Because these competitors may have greater financial strength than we do and are able to offer a more diversified bundle of products and 
services, they may have the ability to severely undercut the pricing of our products or provide additional products or servicing at little or no cost, 
which would make us less competitive or force us to reduce our selling prices, negatively impacting our margins. We have had transactions 
where one or more competitors undercut our prices causing us to reduce our price, which negatively impacted our gross margin on that 
transaction and our overall gross margin. In addition, we have, on occasion, lost sales opportunities due to a competitor undercutting the pricing 
of our products or maintaining superior brand recognition. These competitors may be able to develop products that are superior to the 
commercially available components that we incorporate into our products, or may be able to offer products that provide significant price 
advantages over those we offer. For instance, a competitor could use its resources to develop proprietary motherboards with specifications and 
performance that are superior in comparison with the platforms that are currently available to the marketplace, which could give that competitor 
a distinct technological advantage. In addition, if our competitors' products become more widely accepted than our products, our competitive 
position will be impaired.  

The intense competition we face in the sales of our products and services and general economic and business conditions can put pressure 
on us to change our prices. If our competitors offer deep discounts on certain products or services or develop products that the marketplace 
considers more valuable, we may need to lower prices or offer other favorable terms in order to compete successfully. Any such changes may 
reduce margins and could adversely affect operating results.  

As the enterprise computing industry evolves, we expect to encounter additional competitors, including companies in adjacent technology 
businesses such as storage and networking infrastructure and management, companies providing technology that is complementary to ours in 
functionality, such as data center management software, contract manufacturers and other emerging companies that may announce server 
product offerings. Moreover, our current and potential competitors, including companies with whom we currently have strategic alliances, may 
establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with other third parties. If this occurs, new competitors or alliances may emerge that 
could negatively impact our competitive position.  

Unproven Go-to-Market Strategy—We lack experience in marketing solutions to large enterprise customers. If we are not successful in 
increasing sales of our solutions into enterprise customers, our growth opportunities will be limited.  

Despite our historical success in growing our revenue from certain agencies of the U.S. government as well as higher education, we have 
had limited success in broadening our base of enterprise customers. We have modified our go-to-market (GTM) strategy and have invested in 
sales and marketing personnel and programs to increase penetration of our HPC, Storage and High Performance Data Analytics solutions among 
enterprise customers. If we are not successful in increasing sales of our solutions into enterprise customers, our growth opportunities may be 
limited.  

Fluctuations in Operating Results—Among other things, the timing of our revenue is primarily dependent upon the funding and 
implementation schedules of our customers, particularly as it relates to large IT projects where we can have long sales cycles and long 
build-out and acceptance schedules. Our periodic operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and will continue to 
fluctuate in the future, which could cause our stock price to decline.  

Our quarterly and annual periodic operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past, and we believe that they will continue to 
fluctuate in the future, due to a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control. We expect that our revenue, gross margin and earnings 
per share will fluctuate on a periodic basis in future periods. Factors that may affect our periodic operating results include the following:  
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•  fluctuations in the buying patterns and sizes of customer orders from one quarter to the next; 
•  increased competition causing us to sell our products or services at low margins; 
•  location and timing requirements for the delivery of our products and services; 
•  lengthy acceptance cycles of our products by certain customers; 
•  development or product delivery delays, and delays in obtaining necessary components from our suppliers, contractual provisions or 

other reasons;  
•  addition of new customers or loss of existing customers; 
•  gross margin pressures from the sales of products and services due to discounted pricing, especially to our largest customers; 
•  lack of reliability of our estimates to forecast sales and trends in our business to generate a sales pipeline; 
•  uncertainty regarding our sales pipeline and resulting customer contracts; our ability to align our product and service offerings and cost 

structure with customer needs;  
•  our ability to reduce operating expenses and total costs in procurement, which may involve delays in the anticipated timing of activities 

related to our cost savings plans and higher than expected or unanticipated costs to implement the plans;  
•  changes in the mix of products sold due to differences in profitability among our products; 
•  write-off of excess and obsolete inventory; 
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Lengthy Sales Cycle—Our sales cycle requires us to expend a significant amount of resources, and could have an adverse effect on the 
amount, timing and predictability of future revenue.  

The sales cycle of our products, beginning from our first customer contact to closing of the sale, often ranges from three to six months. We 
may expend significant resources during the sales cycle and ultimately fail to close the sale. The success of our product sales process is subject to 
factors over which we have little or no control, including:  

We expend substantial time, effort and money educating our current and prospective customers as to the value of our products. Even if we 
are successful in persuading essential decision makers within our customers' organizations of the benefits of our products, senior management 
might nonetheless elect not to buy our products after months of sales efforts by our employees or resellers. If we are unsuccessful in closing sales 
after expending significant resources, our revenue and operating expenses will be adversely affected.  

Even if we are successful in closing sales, several large transactions that we have entered into require us to invest cash up front to fund 
working capital without collecting cash for several periods. If we are unable to negotiate for more favorable cash collection terms in the future, 
our liquidity and ability to fund our operations could be adversely affected.  

International Sales and Operations—The global nature of our operations exposes us to increased risks and compliance obligations, 
which may adversely affect our business.  

During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , we derived approximately 52% , 38% and 41% of our revenue from sales outside of the United 
States, respectively. Our international business operations require us to recruit and retain qualified technical and managerial employees, manage 
multiple, remote locations and ensure intellectual property protection outside of the United States. Our international operations subject us to 
increased risks, including:  

•  impairment and shortening of the useful life of assets; 
•  unexpected changes in the price for, and the availability of, components from our suppliers; 
•  our ability to enhance our products with new and better designs and functionality; 
•  our ability to timely bring new capabilities to market combining our products and technologies with those produced by our strategic 

partners and OEMs to address new market opportunities;  
•  costs associated with obtaining components to satisfy customer demand; 
•  productivity and growth of our sales force; 
•  actions taken by our competitors, such as new product announcements or introductions or changes in pricing; 
•  market acceptance of newer products, 
•  technology regulatory compliance, certification and intellectual property issues associated with our products; 
•  the payment of unexpected legal fees and potential damages or settlements resulting from protecting or defending our intellectual 

property or other matters;  
•  the payment of significant damages, settlements or contractual penalties resulting from faulty or malfunctioning products or the 

provision of services unsatisfactory to our customers;  
•  compliance costs associated with new laws, rules and regulations, including environmental regulations; 
•  the payment of unexpected intellectual property licensing royalties to third parties who successfully assert that our product(s) infringe 

their intellectual property rights;  
•  the departure and acquisition of key management and other personnel; and 
•  general economic trends, including changes in information technology spending or geopolitical events such as war or incidents of 

terrorism.  

•  the timing of our customers' budget cycles and approval processes; 
•  our customers' existing use of, or willingness to adopt, open standard server products, or to replace their existing servers or expand their 

processing capacity with our products;  
•  the announcement or introduction of competing products; and 
•  established relationships between our competitors and our potential customers. 

•  supporting multiple languages; 
•  recruiting sales and technical support personnel internationally with the skills to design, manufacture, sell and support our products; 
•  complying with governmental regulations, including obtaining required import or export approval for our products; 
•  increased complexity and costs of managing international operations; 
•  increased exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; 
•  commercial laws and business practices that favor local competition; 
•  longer sales cycles and manufacturing lead times; 
•  financial risks such as longer payment cycles and difficulties in collecting accounts receivable; 
•  difficulties associated with repatriating cash generated or held abroad in a tax-efficient manner; 
•  ineffective legal protection of intellectual property rights; 
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If any of the foreign economies in which we do business deteriorate or if we fail to effectively manage our global operations, our business 
and results of operations would be harmed.  

In addition, our global operations are subject to numerous U.S. and foreign laws and regulations, including those related to anti-corruption, 
tax, corporate governance, imports and exports, financial and other disclosures, privacy and labor relations. These laws and regulations are 
complex and may have differing or conflicting legal standards, making compliance difficult and costly. If we or our employees, contractors or 
agents violate these laws and regulations, we could be subject to fines, penalties or criminal sanctions, and may be prohibited from conducting 
business in one or more countries. Any violation individually or in the aggregate could have a material adverse effect on our operations and 
financial condition.  

Volatile Stock Price—Our stock price in the past has been volatile, and may continue to be volatile or may decline regardless of our 
operating performance, and investors may not be able to resell shares at or above the price at which they purchased the shares.  

Our stock price has experienced high volatility. For example, during fiscal 2014 , our stock price fluctuated from a high of $20.79 to a low 
of $8.30. Investors may not be able to sell shares at or above the price at which they purchase them. The market price of our common stock may 
fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, including without limitation:  

In addition, the stock markets, and in particular the NASDAQ Stock Market, have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that 
have affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many technology companies. Stock prices of many technology 
companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. In the past, stockholders 
have instituted securities class action litigation following periods of market volatility. We could become involved in securities litigation in the 
future, which could have substantial costs and divert resources and the attention of management from our business.  

Due to these factors, sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could occur at any time. These 
sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of our 
common stock.  
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•  more complicated logistics and distribution arrangements; 
•  additional taxes and penalties; 
•  inadequate local infrastructure that could result in business disruptions; 
•  global political and economic instability; and 
•  other factors beyond our control such as natural disasters, terrorism, civil unrest, war and infectious diseases. 

•  price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market; 
•  the financial projections we may provide to the public, any changes in these projections or our failure to meet these projections; 
•  actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results; 
•  changes in operating performance and stock market valuations of other technology companies generally, or those that sell 

enterprise computing products in particular;  
•  changes in financial estimates by any securities analysts who follow our company, our failure to meet these estimates or failure of 

those analysts to initiate or maintain coverage of our stock;  
•  ratings downgrades by any securities analysts who follow our company; 
•  the public's response to our press releases or other public announcements, including our filings with the SEC; 
•  increases in the total short position in our common stock; 
•  announcements by us or our competitors of significant technical innovations, customer wins or losses, acquisitions, strategic 

partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;  
•  introduction of technologies or product enhancements that reduce the need for our products; 
•  market conditions or trends in our industry or the economy as a whole; 
•  the loss of one or more key customers; 
•  the loss of key personnel; 
•  the development and sustainability of an active trading market for our common stock; 
•  lawsuits threatened or filed against us; 
•  future sales of our common stock by our officers, directors and significant stockholders; and 
•  other events or factors, including those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism or responses to these events. 
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Contract Manufacturing-We are dependent on contract manufacturers and partners to assemble and test certain of our products, and 
our failure to successfully manage our relationships with these contract manufacturers and partners could impair our ability to deliver 
systems that meet our and/or our customers’ expectations, which could damage our relationships with our customers and decrease our 
revenue.  

We have historically relied on a small number of contract manufacturers and partners to assemble and test certain of our products. None of 
these third-party contract manufacturers or partners are obligated to perform services or supply products to us for any specific period, or in any 
specific quantities, except as may be provided in a particular purchase order. For example, we design custom silicon chips for ASICs, but rely on 
a third-party to manufacture the ASICs for us. None of our contract manufacturers has provided contractual assurances to us that adequate 
capacity will be available to us to meet future demand for our products.  

If we fail to properly manage our relationships with our other contract manufacturers or partners, or if one or more of them are not able to 
meet our manufacturing or capacity requirements, maintain our high standards of quality or experience delays or disruptions in their service 
delivery, our ability to deliver quality products to our customers on a timely basis may decline, which would damage our relationships with 
customers, decrease our revenue and negatively impact our growth.  

Channel Sales—We are continuing to develop and execute upon a channel strategy to generate additional sales and revenue, and the 
failure to successfully expand channel sales might affect our ability to sustain revenue growth and may harm our business and 
operations.  

An increasing portion of our sales strategy is to develop our sales efforts through the use of resellers and other third parties to sell our 
systems. We may not be successful in building or expanding relationships with these third parties. Further, even if we do develop and expand 
these relationships, they may conflict with our direct sales efforts in some territories. Ineffective marketing of our products by our resellers or 
disruptions in our distribution channels could lead to decreased sales or slower than expected growth in revenue and might harm our business 
and operations.  

Foreign Currency Fluctuations—We may experience foreign currency gains and losses.  

We have significant exposure to revenue, expenses and certain asset and liability balances denominated in currencies other than the U.S. 
Dollar. Changes in the exchange rates of major foreign currencies, particularly the Euro, Japanese Yen and British Pound, relative to the 
U.S. Dollar, can significantly affect revenue and our operating results. Our revenue and operating results are adversely affected when the U.S. 
Dollar strengthens relative to other currencies and are positively affected when the U.S. Dollar weakens. Although we engage in foreign 
currency hedging activity, we may be unable to hedge all of our foreign currency risk, which could have a negative impact on our results of 
operations. For fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , our combined revenue from our EMEA and APJ regions was $252.4 million , $270.7 million and 
$279.2 million , respectively. As of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 , the balance in our foreign currency cash accounts was $75.6 million and 
$54.8 million, respectively. An increase in the value of the U.S. Dollar relative to foreign currencies could make our products more expensive 
and, thus, not competitively priced in foreign markets. On the other hand, a decrease in the value of the U.S. Dollar relative to foreign currencies 
could increase our operating costs in foreign locations. In the future, a larger portion of our international revenue may be denominated in foreign 
currencies, which will subject us to additional risks associated with fluctuations in those foreign currencies. In addition, we may be unable to 
successfully hedge against any such fluctuations.  

In fiscal 2013, we implemented a balance sheet hedging strategy intended to mitigate our currency exposures related to remeasuring 
monetary assets and liabilities by entering into foreign currency forward contracts that have maturities generally of three month or less. These 
contracts are used to reduce our risk associated with exchange rate movements, as gains and losses on these contracts are intended to mitigate the 
effect of exchange rate fluctuations on certain foreign currency denominated balance sheet accounts. In fiscal 2014, we implemented a cash flow 
hedging strategy and used forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges to hedge a portion of future forecasted non-USD cash flows to 
further mitigate the effect of exchange rate fluctuations for these currencies.   
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Information Security—We maintain confidential and proprietary informatio n on our computer networks and employ security measures 
designed to protect this information from unauthorized access. If our security measures are breached and unauthorized access is 
obtained, we may lose proprietary data and may suffer economic losses.  

We maintain confidential information on our computer networks, including information and data that are proprietary to our customers and 
third parties, as well as to our company. Although we have designed and employed security measures to protect this information from 
unauthorized access, our security measures may be breached as a result of third-party action, including computer hackers, employee error, 
malfeasance or otherwise, and result in someone obtaining unauthorized access to our customers' data or our data, including our intellectual 
property and other confidential business information. Because the techniques employed by hackers to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotage 
systems change frequently, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures. Any security 
breach could result in disclosure of our trade secrets or disclosure of confidential customer, supplier or employee data. If this should happen, we 
could be exposed to potentially significant legal liability, harm to our reputation and other harm to our business.  

Export Controls—Our international sales may require export licenses and expose us to additional risks.  

Our sales to customers outside the United States are subject to U.S. export regulations. Under these regulations, sales of many of our high-
end products require approval and export licenses from the U.S. Department of Commerce. Our international sales would be adversely affected if 
these regulations were tightened, or if they are not adjusted over time, as technology changes, to reflect the increasing compute performance of 
our systems. Delay or denial in the approval of any required licenses could make it more difficult to sell to non-U.S. customers. In addition, we 
could be subject to regulations, fines and penalties for violations of import and export regulations if we were found in violation of these 
regulations. End users could circumvent end-user documentation requirements that are intended to aid in our compliance with export regulations, 
potentially causing us to violate these regulations. These violations could result in penalties, including prohibitions from exporting our products 
to one or more countries, and could materially harm our business, including our sales to the U.S. government.  

Cost of Materials—Our products have incorporated or have been dependent upon, open standards, commoditized components and 
materials that we obtain in spot markets, and, as a result, our cost structure and our ability to respond in a timely manner to customer 
demand are sensitive to volatility of the market prices for these components and materials.  

A significant portion of our cost of revenue is directly related to the pricing of commoditized materials and components utilized in the 
manufacture of our products, such as memory, hard drives, central processing units (“CPUs”), or power supplies. As part of our procurement 
model, we generally do not enter into long-term supply contracts for these materials and components, but instead purchase these materials and 
components in a competitive bid purchase order environment with suppliers or on the open market at spot prices. As a result, our cost structure is 
affected by the availability and price volatility in the marketplace for these components and materials, including new versions of hard drives and 
CPUs that are introduced by our suppliers. This volatility makes it difficult to predict expense levels and operating results and may cause them to 
fluctuate significantly. Further, if we are successful in growing our business, we may not be able to continue to procure components solely on the 
spot market, which would require us to enter into contracts with component suppliers to obtain these components.  

In addition, because our procurement model involves our ability to maintain low inventory and to acquire materials and components as 
needed, and because we do not enter into long-term supply contracts for these materials and components, our ability to effectively and efficiently 
respond to customer orders may be constrained by the then-current availability or the terms and pricing of these materials and components. Our 
industry has experienced component shortages and delivery delays in the past, including a shortage for hard drives related to flooding in 
Southeast Asia in 2011, which affected hard drive manufacturing facilities. In the future, we may experience other shortages or delays of critical 
components as a result of strong demand, capacity constraints, supplier financial weaknesses, inability of suppliers to borrow funds in the credit 
markets, disputes with suppliers (some of whom are also customers), disruptions in the operations of component suppliers, natural disasters, 
other problems experienced by suppliers or problems faced during the transition to new suppliers.  

The price of components may increase due to potential shortages or delays, and we may be exposed to quality issues or the components 
may not be available at all. We may therefore not be able to secure enough components at reasonable prices or of acceptable quality to build 
products or provide services in a timely manner in the quantities or according to the specifications needed. Accordingly, our revenue and gross 
margin could suffer as we could lose time-sensitive sales, incur additional freight costs or be unable to pass on price increases to our customers. 
If we cannot adequately address supply issues, we may have to reengineer some products or service offerings, resulting in further costs and 
delays.  
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In order to secure components for the provision of products or services, at times we may enter into non-cancelable commitments with 
vendors. In addition, we may purchase components strategically in advance of demand to take advantage of favorable pricing or to address 
concerns about the availability of future components. If we fail to anticipate customer demand properly, a temporary oversupply could result in 
excess or obsolete components. Further, we compete in an industry that is characterized by rapid technological advances in hardware with 
frequent introduction of new products. With new product introductions, we face risks in predicting customer demand for the new products as 
well as the transition from existing products. If we do not make an effective transition from existing products to future products, we could have 
an oversupply of components. For example, DRAM can represent a significant portion of our cost of revenue, and both the price and availability 
of various kinds of DRAM are subject to substantial volatility in the spot market. Additionally, if any of our suppliers of CPUs, such as Intel, or 
GPUs such as, NVIDIA were to increase the costs to us for components we use, we would either pass these price increases on to our customers, 
which could cause us to lose business from these customers, or we would need to absorb these price increases, which would cause our margins to 
decrease, either of which could adversely affect our business and financial results.  

In addition to the component parts, we currently integrate ASICs in many of our products. The development of an ASIC is costly and may 
take up to many months to develop. These costs typically are expensed as incurred as research and development costs and will cause volatility in 
our operating results and may cause them to fluctuate significantly.  

Supplier Relationships—If we fail to maintain or expand our relationships with our suppliers, in some cases single-source suppliers, we 
may not have adequate access to new or key technology necessary for our products, which may impair our ability to deliver leading-edge 
products.  

In addition to the technologies we develop, our suppliers develop product innovations at our direction that are requested by our customers. 
In many cases, we retain the ownership of the intellectual property developed by these suppliers. Further, we rely heavily on our component 
suppliers, such as Intel and NVIDIA, to provide us with leading-edge components on time and in accordance with a product roadmap. If we are 
not able to maintain or expand our relationships with our suppliers or continue to leverage their research and development capabilities to develop 
new technologies desired by our customers, our ability to deliver leading-edge products in a timely manner may be impaired and we could be 
required to incur additional research and development expenses.  

IT Infrastructure—Unsuccessful deployment of new transaction processing applications and other systems integration issues could 
disrupt our internal operations and any such disruption could reduce our expected revenue, increase our expenses and damage our 
reputation.  

Portions of our IT infrastructure may experience interruptions, delays or cessations of service or produce errors in connection with systems 
integration and implementation of new transaction processing applications, including accounting, manufacturing and sales system. We may not 
be successful in implementing new systems and transitioning data, which could cause business disruptions and be more expensive, time 
consuming, disruptive and resource-intensive to remediate. Such disruptions could adversely impact our ability to fulfill orders and negatively 
impact our business or interrupt other processes. Delayed sales, lower margins or lost customers resulting from these disruptions have adversely 
affected us in the past, and in the future could adversely affect our financial results, public disclosures and reputation.  

Dependence on Key Personnel-If we are unable to retain and attract adequate qualified personnel, we may not be able to execute on our 
business strategy.  

During the past few fiscal years, we have experienced significant changes in our management team in the roles of chief executive officer, 
chief financial officer, chief accounting officer, chief operating officer and head of sales. Our future success depends in large part upon the 
continued service and enhancement of our management team and our employees. If there are further changes in management, such changes 
could be disruptive and could negatively affect our operations, our culture and our strategic direction.  

Our employees may terminate their employment with us at any time. Our U.S. employees are “at will,” while outside of the U.S., notice or 
severance may be required if we wish to terminate an employee. The failure of our management team to seamlessly manage employee 
transitions, or the loss of services of one or more members of our executive management or sales team or other key employees could seriously 
harm our business. Competition for qualified executives is intense and if we are unable to continue expanding our management team, or 
successfully integrate new additions to our management team in a manner that enables us to scale our business and operations effectively, our 
ability to operate effectively and efficiently could be limited or negatively impacted.  
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Additionally, to help attract, retain and motivate certain qualified employees, we use share-based incentive awards such as employee stock 
options and non-vested share units (restricted stock units). If the value of such stock awards does not appreciate as measured by the performance 
of the price of our common stock, or if our share-based compensation otherwise ceases to be viewed as a valuable benefit, our ability to attract, 
retain and motivate employees could be weakened, which could harm our results of operations.  

Credit Facility Restrictions—We are subject to restrictions under our credit facility that may result in our inability to engage in 
favorable business activities or finance future operations or capital needs.  

On December 5, 2011, we entered into a five-year senior secured credit facility in the aggregate principal amount of $35.0 million, which 
amount was increased to $40.0 million on May 1, 2012. On February 25, 2013, the Company amended the agreement and reduced the revolver 
amount to $25.0 million. The credit facility includes a $10.0 million letter of credit subfacility. The credit facility contains various financial and 
other covenants that, among other things:  

Although we can terminate the facility for convenience at any time, such termination would require repayment of any outstanding indebtedness. 
If we were unable to repay such indebtedness, we could not terminate the facility and we would be subject to its covenants and conditions. As a 
result of these covenants we may be restricted in the manner in which we conduct our business.  In addition, we may be unable to engage in 
favorable business activities or finance future operations or capital needs, including without limitation, funding acquisitions or repurchasing our 
stock. This indebtedness may also adversely affect our ability to access sources of capital or incur certain liens. Accordingly, these restrictions 
may limit our ability to successfully operate our business. A failure to comply with these restrictions could lead to an event of default, which 
could result in an acceleration of the indebtedness and could adversely affect our cash flow and operating results. If any of the Company's 
indebtedness is accelerated, the Company may not have sufficient funds available to repay such indebtedness.  

Acquisition Strategy—We may not be able to realize the potential financial or strategic benefits of acquisitions that we may complete in 
the future, or find suitable target businesses or technologies to acquire, which could impair our ability to grow our business, develop 
new products or sell our products.  

If appropriate opportunities present themselves, we may consider acquiring or making investments in companies, assets or technologies 
that we believe are strategic. Acquisitions are difficult, time consuming and pose a number of risks, including:  

In addition, if we were to proceed with one or more significant acquisitions or investments in which the consideration included cash, we 
could be required to use a substantial portion of our available cash. To the extent we issue shares of capital stock or other rights to purchase 
capital stock, including options and warrants, existing stockholders might be diluted and earnings per share might decrease. In addition, 
acquisitions and investments may result in the incurrence of debt, large one-time write-offs, such as acquired in-process research and 
development costs and restructuring charges.  

If we do not appropriately manage these risks, any acquisitions that we complete may have an adverse effect on our business and financial 
condition. Additionally, if we determine that we cannot use or sell the acquired products or technology, we will be required to write down the 
associated intangible assets, which would negatively impact our operating results.  

•  require us to maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio (applicable during certain periods); 

•  limit our ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, or consign inventory; and 

•  require us to obtain the bank's consent prior to selling the Company via a consolidation, merger or transfer of substantially all of our 
assets.   

•  the acquired products may fail to achieve projected sales or operating margin targets; 
•  the acquired business, asset or technology may not further our business strategy or we may not realize expected synergies or cost 

savings;  
•  we might overpay for the acquired business, asset or technology; 
•  we might experience difficulties integrating the acquired assets, technologies, operations or personnel or retaining the key personnel of 

the acquired company;  
•  disruption of ongoing business, including diversion of management's attention; 
•  we might experience difficulties entering and competing in new product or geographic markets in which we are not experienced; 
•  assumption of unknown liabilities, including tax and litigation or problems with product quality, and the related expenses and diversion 

of resources;  
•  potential downward pressure on operating margins due to lower operating margins of acquired businesses, increased headcount costs 

and other expenses associated with adding and supporting new products;  
•  potential negative impact on our relationships with customers, distributors and business partners; and 
•  potential negative impact on our earnings per share/negative impact on our earnings resulting from the application of ASC 805, 

Business Combinations , which became applicable to us in January 2009.  
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Financial Reporting Risks-We make estimates and assumptions in connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial 
statements, and any changes to those estimates and assumptions could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. In 
addition, changes in accounting standards could also adversely affect our reported operating results.  

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, we use certain estimates and assumptions based on experience 
and other factors. Our most critical accounting estimates are described in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations” in Part II, Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. While we believe that these estimates and assumptions are 
reasonable under the circumstances, they are subject to significant uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. Should any of these 
estimates and assumptions change or prove to have been incorrect, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, and we 
may be required to restate our financial results for prior periods which could cause our stock price to decline.  

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP"). These 
principles are subject to interpretation by the SEC, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and various other bodies formed to 
interpret and create appropriate accounting principles and guidance. A change in existing principles or guidance can have a significant effect on 
our reported results and may retroactively affect previously reported results. Additionally, proposed accounting standards could have a 
significant impact on our operational processes, revenue and expenses, and could cause unexpected financial reporting fluctuations.  

Tax Exposure—Unanticipated changes in our tax provisions or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could affect our 
profitability.  

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Our tax liabilities are affected by the amounts we 
charge for inventory, services, funding and other items in intercompany transactions. We are subject to ongoing tax audits in various 
jurisdictions. Tax authorities may disagree with our intercompany charges, cross-jurisdictional transfer pricing or other matters and assess 
additional taxes.  

We regularly assess the likely outcomes of these audits in order to determine the appropriateness of our tax provision. However, there can 
be no assurance that we will accurately predict the outcomes of these audits, and the amounts ultimately paid upon resolution of audits could be 
materially different from the amounts previously included in our income tax expense and therefore could have a material impact on our tax 
provision, net income and cash flows.  

In addition, our effective tax rate in the future could be adversely affected by changes to our operating structure, changes in the mix of 
earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in tax laws and the 
discovery of new information in the course of our tax return preparation process.  

Environmental Laws and Liabilities—Unforeseen environmental costs could impact our future net earnings.  

We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations concerning environmental protection, including laws 
addressing the discharge of pollutants into the air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, the cleanup of 
contaminated sites, the content of our products and the recycling, treatment and disposal of our products. In particular, we face increasing 
complexity in our product design and procurement operations as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the chemical and materials 
composition of our products, their safe use, the energy consumption associated with those products, and climate change laws and regulations. 
We could incur substantial costs, our products could be restricted from entering certain jurisdictions, and we could face other sanctions, if we 
were to violate or become liable under environmental laws or if our products become non-compliant with environmental laws. Our potential 
exposure includes fines and civil or criminal sanctions, third-party property damage, personal injury claims, compliance-related costs and clean-
up costs. Further, liability under some environmental laws relating to contaminated sites can be imposed retroactively, on a joint and several 
basis, and without any finding of noncompliance or fault. The amount and timing of costs under environmental laws are difficult to predict and 
such costs could have a negative effect on our profitability. If we are found to be in violation of any environmental laws, costs associated with 
such liability may have an adverse effect on our financial results.  

Geographic Business Concentrations—Business disruptions could affect our operating results.  

A significant portion of our manufacturing, research and development activities and certain other critical business operations is 
concentrated in a few geographic areas. We are a highly automated business and a disruption or failure of our systems could cause delays in 
completing sales and providing services. A major earthquake, fire, tornado or other catastrophic event that results in the destruction or disruption 
of any of our critical business or information technology systems could severely affect our ability to conduct normal business operations and, as 
a result, our future operating results could be materially and adversely affected.  
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Further, we maintain a program of insurance coverage for various types of property, casualty and other risks. We place our insurance 
coverage with various carriers in numerous jurisdictions. However, there is a risk that a claim may go unpaid, such as in the event of a 
widespread catastrophic event that materially affects the resources of our insurer. The types and amounts of insurance that we obtain vary from 
time to time and from location to location, depending on availability, cost and our decisions with respect to risk retention. The policies are 
subject to deductibles and exclusions that result in our retention of a level of risk on a self-insurance basis. Losses not covered by insurance may 
be substantial and may increase our expenses, which could harm our results of operations and financial condition.  

Weak Global Economy—Weak or unstable global market and economic conditions may have serious adverse consequences on our 
business.  

The global economy has experienced significant uncertainty, stock market volatility, tightened credit markets, concerns about both 
deflation and inflation, reduced demand for products, lower consumer confidence, reduced capital spending, liquidity concerns and business 
insolvencies. Declines and uncertainty about economic conditions could negatively impact our customers' businesses, causing our customers to 
postpone their decision-making or decrease their spending or affecting our customers' ability to pay for our products, which would harm our 
operating results. In addition, if one or more of our current service providers, manufacturers and other partners go out of business, it could 
directly affect our ability to attain our operating goals on schedule and on budget.  

If the global economy experiences uncertainty, our ability to obtain credit on favorable terms could be jeopardized. Failure to secure any 
necessary financing in a timely manner and on favorable terms could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance and stock price 
and could require us to change our business plans. Furthermore, should any of our banking partners declare bankruptcy or otherwise default on 
their obligations, it could adversely affect our financial results and our business.  

Intellectual Property Enforcement—If we are unable to protect our intellectual property adequately, we may not be able to compete 
effectively.  

Our intellectual property is critical to our success and our ability to compete. If we fail to protect our intellectual property rights 
adequately, our competitors might gain access to our technology. Unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our 
proprietary technology despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property. In addition, we license our technology and intellectual property to 
third parties, including in some cases, our competitors, which could under some circumstances make our patent rights more difficult to enforce. 
Third parties could also obtain licenses to some of our intellectual property as a consequence of a merger or acquisition. Also, our participation 
in standard setting organizations or industry initiatives may require us to license our patents to other companies that adopt certain standards or 
specifications. As a result of such licensing, our patents might not be enforceable against others who might otherwise be infringing those patents 
and the value of our intellectual property may be impaired.  

Monitoring unauthorized use of our technology is difficult, and we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken will prevent unauthorized 
use of our technology, particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as the laws of the United 
States. Any claims or litigation that we have initiated or that we may initiate in the future to protect our proprietary technology could be time 
consuming and expensive and divert the attention of our technical and management resources whether or not the claims or litigation are decided 
in our favor. Litigation is inherently uncertain, and there is no assurance that any litigation we initiate will have a successful outcome. Enforcing 
our rights could subject us to claims that the intellectual property right is invalid, is otherwise not enforceable, or is licensed to the party against 
whom we are asserting a claim. Also, assertion of our intellectual property rights could result in the other party seeking to assert alleged 
intellectual property rights of its own or assert other claims against us, which could harm our business.  

We currently have numerous patents issued and a number of patent applications pending in the United States and other countries. These 
patents may be limited in value in asserting our intellectual property rights against more established companies in the computer technology 
sector that have sizable patent portfolios and greater capital resources. In addition, patents may not be issued from these patent applications, and 
even if patents are issued, they may not benefit us or give us adequate protection from competing products. For example, issued patents might be 
circumvented or challenged, and could be declared invalid or unenforceable. Moreover, if other companies develop unpatented proprietary 
technology similar to ours or competing technologies, our competitive position will be weakened.  
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Intellectual Property Risks—If we are found to have violated the intellectual property rights of others, we could be required to 
indemnify our customers, resellers or suppliers, redesign our products, pay significant royalties and enter into license agreements with 
third parties.  

Our industry is characterized by a large number of patents, copyrights, trade secrets and trademarks and by frequent litigation based on 
allegations of infringement or other violation of intellectual property rights. As we continue our business, expand our product lines and our 
product functionality, and expand into new jurisdictions around the world, third parties may assert that our technology or products violate their 
intellectual property rights. Because of technological changes and the extent of issued patents in our industry, it is possible that certain 
components of our products and business methods may unknowingly infringe existing patents of others. Any claim, regardless of its merits, 
could be expensive and time consuming to defend against. Such claims would also divert the attention of our technical and management 
resources. Successful intellectual property claims against us could result in significant financial liability, impair our ability to compete 
effectively, or prevent us from operating our business or portions of our business. In addition, resolution of claims may require us to redesign our 
technology, to obtain licenses to use intellectual property belonging to third parties, which we may not be able to obtain on reasonable terms or 
at all, to cease using the technology covered by those rights, and to indemnify our customers, resellers or suppliers. Any of these events could 
result in unexpected expenses, negatively affect our competitive position and materially harm our business, financial condition and results of 
operations.  

In addition, we are also subject to risks related to ownership of our patentable inventions as a result of recent changes in U.S. patent law 
under the America Invents Act (“AIA”). As a result of the AIA, the United States is now a “first-to-file” system. For any patent applications that 
are filed on or after March 16, 2013 and that do not otherwise properly claim the benefit of an application filed before that March 16, 2013 date, 
said applications will be subject to the new “first-to-file” requirements versus the “first-to-invent” standard of law that existed prior to that date. 
Accordingly, with respect to patent applications filed on or after March 16, 2013, even if we are the first to invent, we will not obtain ownership 
of an invention unless we are the first to file a patent application or can establish that such an earlier filing is derived from a previous public 
disclosure of our inventive work. If we are the first to invent but not the first to file a patent application, we will not be able to fully protect our 
intellectual property rights and may be found to have violated the intellectual property rights of others if we continue to operate in the absence of 
a patent issued to us. If we are not the first to file one or more patent applications to protect our intellectual property rights when the new patent 
regime becomes effective, we may be required to redesign our technology, cease using the related technology or attempt to license rights from 
another party, any of which could materially harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.  

Open Source Software-Our use of open source and third-party software could limit our sales and growth opportunities and impose 
unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our products.  

We incorporate open source software into our products. A majority of the server systems that we sold in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 ran on 
the Linux ® operating system. Products based on the Linux operating system and sold by other software vendors have been the subject of 
intellectual property infringement litigation, including litigation by Microsoft Corporation. It is possible that a party could prove a claim for 
proprietary rights in the Linux operating system or other programs developed and distributed under the GNU General Public License or other 
open source software licenses. In addition, the GNU General Public License has itself been, and may be in the future, a subject of litigation, and 
it is possible that a court could hold these licenses to be unenforceable in that litigation. Any ruling by a court that the Linux operating system or 
significant portions of it may not be copied, modified or distributed, that users or distributors of Linux must pay royalties to Microsoft or others 
or that these licenses are not enforceable could also impede broader Linux adoption and materially harm our ability to sell our products based on 
the Linux operating system. Further, because potential customers have often invested significant capital and other resources in existing systems, 
many of which run mission-critical applications, customers may be hesitant to make dramatic changes to their data center systems. The failure of 
our customers and potential customers to purchase and adopt open standard-based technologies could have a material adverse impact on our 
ability to maintain or generate additional revenue.  

 In addition, open source software is made available to us and to the public by its authors or other third parties under licenses that impose 
certain obligations on licensees in the event those licensees re-distribute or make derivative works of the open source software. The terms of 
many open source licenses have not been interpreted by United States or other courts, and these licenses could be construed in a manner that 
imposes unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our products. In this event, we could be required to seek licenses 
from third parties in order to continue offering our products, to make generally available, in source code form, proprietary code that links to 
certain open source modules, to re-engineer our products, or to discontinue the sale of our products if re-engineering could not be accomplished 
on a timely basis, any of which might harm our business, operating results and financial condition.  
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Litigation—Adverse litigation results could affect our business.  

We may be subject to legal claims or regulatory matters involving consumer, stockholder, competition and other issues on a global basis. 
Litigation can be lengthy, expensive and disruptive to our operations, and results cannot be predicted with certainty. An adverse decision could 
include monetary damages or, in cases for which injunctive relief is sought, an injunction prohibiting us from manufacturing or selling one or 
more of our products. If we were to receive an unfavorable ruling on a matter, our business, operating results or financial condition could be 
materially harmed. Additional information regarding legal matters is discussed under "Legal Proceedings" in Part I, Item 3 of this Annual Report 
on Form 10-K.  

Global Restructuring—We may not fully realize the anticipated positive impacts to future financial results from our restructuring 
efforts.  

While we have undertaken restructuring efforts to streamline operations and reduce operating expenses, we may undertake additional 
restructuring efforts or other cost reduction measures in the future. Our ability to achieve the anticipated cost savings and other benefits from our 
restructuring efforts and costs reduction measures within expected time frames is subject to many estimates and assumptions, and may vary 
materially based on factors such as negotiations with third parties. These estimates and assumptions are subject to significant economic, 
competitive and other uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. There can be no assurance that we will fully realize the anticipated 
positive impacts to future financial results from our current or future restructuring efforts and cost reduction measures. If our estimates and 
assumptions are incorrect or if other unforeseen events occur, we may not achieve the cost savings expected from such actions, and our business 
and results of operations could be adversely affected.  

Internal Controls—If we are unable to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in the future, the accuracy and 
timeliness of our financial reporting may be adversely affected.  

Effective internal controls over financial reporting are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud. 
As a publicly traded company we must maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, which 
can be difficult to do. A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  

A failure to have effective internal controls and procedures for financial reporting in place could result in a restatement of our financial 
statements, impact our ability to accurately report financial information on a timely basis, make it difficult or impossible to obtain an audit of our 
financial statements or result in a qualification of any such audit. Any such event could lead to a loss of market confidence in our financial 
statements, delisting from the NASDAQ Global Select Market, loss of financing sources, and litigation, any of which could adversely affect our 
stock price.  

Corporate Governance—We are subject to evolving corporate governance and public disclosure regulations that have increased both 
our compliance costs and the risk of noncompliance, which could have an adverse effect on our stock price.  

We are subject to changing rules and regulations promulgated by a number of governmental and self-regulated organizations, including the 
SEC, the NASDAQ Global Select Market and the FASB. These rules and regulations continue to evolve in scope and complexity and many new 
requirements have been created in response to laws enacted by Congress, making compliance more difficult and uncertain. Our efforts to comply 
with new regulations have resulted in, and are likely to continue to result in, increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of 
management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities.  

Anti-takeover Provisions—Some provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may deter third parties from acquiring us.  

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that may make the acquisition of our company more difficult without the 
approval of our board of directors, including the following:  
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•  limitations on persons authorized to call a special meeting of stockholders; 

•  our stockholders may take action only at a meeting of stockholders and not by written consent; 

•  our certificate of incorporation authorizes undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and shares of which may 
be issued without stockholder approval; and  

•  advance notice procedures required for stockholders to nominate candidates for election as directors or to bring matters before an 
annual meeting of stockholders.  
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These anti-takeover defenses could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control of our company. These provisions 
could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for stockholders to elect directors of their choosing and cause us to take other 
corporate actions they desire.  

Conflict Minerals Risks—We are subject to the SEC's rules regarding the use and disclosure of conflict minerals, which we expect will 
increase our operating and compliance costs and could potentially harm our reputation, causing a decline in our stock price.  

The SEC adopted its final rule implementing Section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 
concerning conflict minerals in August 2012. The objective of the rule is to reduce funding for armed groups that are abusing human rights in the 
"conflict region" as defined in the final rule. This new rule requires us to: (1) determine whether conflict minerals (tin, tantalum, tungsten, gold 
or similar derivatives) are used in our products and, if so, determine if the minerals originated from the Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC) or 
its immediately adjoining countries; and (2), if so, conduct due diligence regarding the source and chain of custody of these conflict minerals to 
determine whether the conflict minerals financed or benefitted armed groups. The rule requires us to submit forms and reports to the SEC 
annually that disclose our determinations and due diligence measures. We are currently conducting conflict minerals due diligence with our 
supply chain partners. Presently, we have not determined how many or if any of our supply chain partners use conflict minerals or how much 
expense our due diligence exercise will add to our operational cost. If we do not properly assess supply chain partners and appropriately control 
costs and budget for conflict minerals compliance, our results of operations and profitability in the future could suffer, our reputation could be 
harmed and our stock price could suffer as a result.  

 

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments  

Not applicable.  

Item 2. Properties  

Our properties consist of leased and owned facilities used for manufacturing, warehouse, sales and marketing, research and development, 
services and support and administrative purposes worldwide. As of June 27, 2014 , we owned and leased approximately 624,000 square feet of 
space in our domestic and international locations. We owned approximately 43% of this space and leased the remaining approximately 57%.  

Approximately 87% of our owned and leased properties are located in the United States. These domestic locations are primarily located in 
Milpitas, California, which is our corporate headquarters, and in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin, which is where our manufacturing and warehouse 
facilities are located. Our international locations, which comprise approximately 13% of all our properties, are mainly located in Tokyo, Japan, 
Paris, France, Munich, Germany, and Winnersh, United Kingdom. Our international properties are primarily used for sales, services, research 
and development and administrative offices.  

We believe that our existing properties are in good condition, are suitable for the conduct of our business, and appropriately support our 
current business needs.  

Item 3. Legal Proceedings  

We are involved in various legal proceedings and disputes that arise in the normal course of business. These matters include product 
liability actions, patent infringement actions, contract disputes, domestic and international federal, state and local tax reviews and audits and 
other matters. We may also be subject to litigation and/or adverse rulings or judgments as a result of certain contractual indemnification 
obligations. We do not know whether we will prevail in these matters, nor can we assure that any remedy or resolution will be reached on 
commercially reasonable terms, if at all. We intend to defend ourselves vigorously in these actions. Based on currently available information, we 
believe that we have meritorious defenses and that the resolution of these cases, individually or in the aggregate, is not likely to have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or future results of operations. We record a liability when it is both probable that a liability 
has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These provisions are reviewed at least quarterly and adjusted to reflect 
the impacts of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel and other information and events pertaining to a particular case.  

From time to time, we may be involved in litigation or other legal proceedings relating to claims arising out of our day-to-day operations or 
otherwise. Litigation is inherently uncertain, and we could experience unfavorable judgments or rulings in the future. Should we experience an 
unfavorable judgment or ruling, there exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on our financial condition, results of operations, cash 
flows or on our business for the period in which the judgment or ruling occurs and/or future periods.  
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures  

Not applicable.  
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PART II  

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities  

Market Information  

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “SGI". The following table sets forth for the periods 
indicated the high and low sale prices of our common stock, as reported by the NASDAQ Markets.  

Holders  

As of August 29, 2014 , there were 34,609,203 shares of our common stock outstanding. As of August 29, 2014 , we had nine registered 
holders of record of our outstanding common stock. A substantially greater number of holders of our outstanding common stock are “street 
name” or beneficial holders, whose shares are held of record by banks, brokers and other financial institutions.  

Dividends  

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our capital stock and our current credit facility restricts our ability to declare or pay 
dividends. We currently intend to retain any future earnings to fund the development and expansion of our business, and therefore we do not 
anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.  

Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities  

None  

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  

The following table summarizes the activity related to stock repurchases during the fourth quarter ended June 27, 2014 :  

 
In January 2013, the Company's board of directors approved a plan for the Company to repurchase shares of its common stock with a 

market value of up to $15.0 million. In November 2013, the Company announced an increase in the authorized repurchase amount to $30.0 
million. The Company's common stock may be repurchased in the open market or through negotiated transactions, including 10b5-1 trading 
plans that would enable the Company to repurchase its shares during periods  

Fiscal Year Ending June 27, 2014     High     Low  

Fourth Quarter     $ 13.34     $ 8.30  
Third Quarter     14.06     12.00  
Second Quarter     16.35     11.59  
First Quarter     20.79     13.58  
          

Fiscal Year Ending June 28, 2013     High     Low  

Fourth Quarter     $ 15.10     $ 11.83  
Third Quarter     15.93     9.95  
Second Quarter     10.64     7.47  
First Quarter     9.49     5.97  

Issuers Repurchases of Equity Securities  

(in thousands, except per share amounts)  

      

Total Number of 
Shares 

Purchased     

Weighted 
Average Price 
Paid Per Share     

Total Number of Shares 
Purchased as Part of 

Publicly Announced Plans 
or Programs     

Maximum Amount That May Yet 
Be Purchased Under the Plans or 

Programs  

                  

Mar. 29, 2014 - Apr. 25, 2014     —    N/A    —    $19,176 

Apr. 26, 2014 - May 23, 2014     223     $9.52    223     $17,050 

May 24, 2014 - Jun. 27, 2014     95     $8.67    95     $16,235 

                  

Total     318     $9.26    318     $16,235 
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outside of its normal trading windows. The repurchase program expires December 31, 2014. Purchases will cease if the authorized funds are 
spent or the program is discontinued. The Company is not obligated to acquire any particular amount of stock, and the program may be 
suspended or terminated at any time at the Company's discretion. These repurchases are reflected in our balance sheet as treasury stock and are 
available for future issuance  

During fiscal year 2014, the Company repurchased approximately 898,000 shares of its common stock for approximately $11.0 million. 
Since the inception of the repurchase plan in January 2013, the Company has repurchased approximately 1,095,000 shares of its common stock 
for $13.8 million. As of June 27, 2014 , the Company had a remaining authorization of $16.2 million for future share repurchases.  
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Performance Graph (1)  

The following graph shows the cumulative total stockholder return of an investment of $100 in cash at market close on June 26, 2009 
through market close on June 27, 2014 , for (i) our common stock, (ii) the NASDAQ Composite Index and (iii) the RDG Technology Composite 
Index. Pursuant to applicable SEC rules, all values assume reinvestment of the full amount of all dividends; however, no dividends have been 
declared on our common stock to date. The stockholder return shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future performance, and 
we do not make or endorse any predictions as to future stockholder returns.  
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      6/26/2009     6/25/2010     6/24/2011     6/29/2012     6/28/2013     6/27/2014  

Silicon Graphics International Corp.     100.00     177.07     336.03     140.17     292.14     206.55  
NASDAQ Composite     100.00     117.06     154.79     167.05     197.48     259.41  
RDG Technology Composite     100.00     116.59     150.95     164.67     180.09     236.65  

(1)  This graph and data are not “soliciting material,” are not deemed “filed” with the SEC and are not to be incorporated by reference in 
any filing of Silicon Graphics International Corp. under the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act whether made before or after the date hereof and 
irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.  
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data  

The following selected summary consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Part II, Item 8. “Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data,” and with Part II, Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  
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Fiscal Year Ended  

June 27,  
2014     

June 28,  
2013     

June 29,  
2012     

June 24,  
2011     

June 25  
2010  

      (in thousands, except per share amounts)  

Revenue     $ 529,946     $ 767,227     $ 752,987     $ 629,568     $ 403,717  
Gross profit (1)     138,407     189,052     193,817     169,812     89,589  
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (2)     (52,802 )     (15,443 )     (23,460 )     (19,991 )     (93,302 )  

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations     12     (12,623 )     1,001     1,242     (4,441 )  

Net loss from continuing operations     (52,814 )     (2,820 )     (24,461 )     (21,233 )     (88,861 )  

Income from discontinued operations     —    —    —    —    409  
Income tax benefit from discontinued operations     —    —    —    —    — 
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax     —    —    —    —    409  
Net loss     $ (52,814 )     $ (2,820 )   $ (24,461 )     $ (21,233 )     $ (88,452 )  

                      

Basic and dilutive net (loss) income per share:                                
Continuing operations     (1.54 )     (0.09 )     (0.77 )     (0.69 )     (2.95 )  

Discontinued operations     —    —    —    —    0.01  
      $ (1.54 )     $ (0.09 )     $ (0.77 )     $ (0.69 )     $ (2.94 )  

                      
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net (loss) income per 
share:     34,260     32,909     31,653     30,608     30,130  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012     
June 24,  

2011     
June 25  

2010  

      (in thousands)  

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:                                
Cash and cash equivalents     $ 109,297     $ 175,181     $ 104,851     $ 139,868     $ 129,343  
Working capital     57,470     130,866     112,960     133,970     124,495  
Total assets     364,938     407,853     496,880     538,009     497,212  
Total liabilities     282,786     277,599     385,988     414,723     362,283  
Total stockholders’ equity     82,152     130,254     110,892     123,286     134,929  

(1)  Gross profit includes the following items: 

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012     
June 24,  

2011     
June 25  

2010  

      (in thousands)  

Share-based compensation     $ 1,676     $ 1,598     $ 1,358     $ 685     $ 691  
Impairment of investments and long-lived assets     $ 2,946     $ —    $ —    $ —    $ — 
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(2)  Loss from continuing operations before income taxes includes the following items: 

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012     
June 24,  

2011     
June 25  

2010  

      (in thousands)  

Share-based compensation     $ 11,979     $ 10,100     $ 10,061     $ 5,898     $ 4,827  
Restructuring charges     1,251     9,048     2,469     5,072     5,213  
Acquisition-related     —    —    —    1,271     (3,264 )  

Impairment of investments and long-lived assets     2,946     189     527     —    — 
Total charges     $ 16,176     $ 19,337     $ 13,057     $ 12,241     $ 6,776  
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  

In the normal course of business, our financial position is routinely subject to a variety of risks, including market risk for investments 
associated with interest rate movements, liquidity risks, credit risks and foreign exchange market risk associated with currency rate movements 
on non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities. We regularly assess these risks and have established policies and business practices to 
protect against the adverse effects of these and other potential exposures.  

Investment Risk  

We invest our excess cash in various fixed-income securities and money market funds.  The primary objectives of our investment activities 
are to preserve principal and maintain short-term liquidity while maximizing the income we receive from our investments. The market value of 
these securities can vary depending upon prevailing interest rates, and if we were forced to liquidate our position in a security before its maturity 
date we could suffer loss of principal.  We also are exposed to credit and liquidity risk related to these securities.  If the issuer of a security were 
to default on its obligations, we would suffer loss of principal.  If there were disruptions in the pricing and trading of securities in the financial 
markets, it is possible that there would not be a liquid market for our securities, which could limit our ability to meet cash requirements.  To 
preserve principal and maintain short-term liquidity, our investment policy dictates that we maintain our portfolio of cash, cash equivalents, and 
investments in high credit quality, readily liquid securities, of relatively short duration. Our portfolio of investments have a range of original 
maturities and typically have average remaining maturities of less than two years.  

We actively monitor market conditions and developments specific to the securities and security classes in which we invest. We believe that 
we take a conservative approach to investing our funds in that we invest only in highly-rated securities with relatively short maturities. While we 
believe we take prudent measures to mitigate investment related risks, such risks cannot be fully eliminated as there are circumstances outside of 
our control that could have a material adverse affect on our financial position.  

Interest Rate Risk  

Our exposure to market risks for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our investment portfolio. As of June 27, 2014 , our cash and 
cash equivalents of $109.3 million consisted primarily of cash and money market funds. We believe that the exposure of our principal to interest 
rate risk is minimal, although our future interest income is subject to reinvestment risk.  

Given the short term nature of our cash and cash equivalents, the risk of loss in fair value resulting from interest rate changes is minimal.  

Foreign Exchange Risk  

As of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 , foreign currency cash accounts totaled $75.6 million and $54.8 million, respectively, primarily in 
Japanese Yen, Canadian dollars, British Pound, and the Euro.  

Foreign currency risks are associated with our cash and cash equivalents, investments, receivables and payables denominated in foreign 
currencies. Fluctuations in exchange rates will result in foreign exchange gains and losses on these foreign currency assets and liabilities, which 
are included in other income, net in our consolidated statements of operations. Our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk relates to 
sales commitments, anticipated sales, purchases and other expenses and assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. For most 
currencies, we are a net receiver of the foreign currency and are adversely affected by a stronger U.S. dollar relative to the foreign currency. In 
fiscal 2013, we implemented a balance sheet hedging strategy that is intended to mitigate our currency exposures related to remeasuring 
monetary assets and liabilities by entering into foreign currency forward contracts that have maturities generally of one month or less. These 
contracts are used to reduce our risk associated with exchange rate movements, as gains and losses on these contracts are intended to mitigate the 
effect of exchange rate fluctuations on certain foreign currency denominated balance sheet accounts.  In fiscal 2014, we implemented a cash flow 
hedging strategy and used forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges to hedge a portion of future forecasted non-USD cash flows to 
further mitigate the effect of exchange rate fluctuations for these currencies.   

We assessed the risk of loss in fair values from the impact of hypothetical changes in foreign currency exchange rates. For foreign 
currency exchange rate risk, a 10% increase or decrease of foreign currency exchange rates against the U.S. dollar with all other variables held 
constant would have resulted in a $7.6 million change in the value of our foreign currency cash accounts as of June 27, 2014.  
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ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our consolidated financial 
statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The discussions in this section contain forward-
looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results could differ materially from those discussed below. See “Item 1A—
Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information” at the beginning of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a 
discussion of these risks and uncertainties.  

Overview  

Business Summary  

SGI is a global leader in high performance computing ("HPC"). We are focused on helping customers solve their most demanding business 
and technology challenges by delivering high performance computing and data analytics solutions that accelerate time to discovery, innovation 
and profitability.  

We develop, market and sell a broad line of low cost, mid-range and high-end scale-out and scale-up servers, enterprise-class storage 
hardware, differentiating software and designed-to-order solutions for large-scale deployments, coupled with global support and highly 
experienced professional services. SGI solutions are designed to provide greater flexibility and scalability, with lower total cost of ownership.  

SGI solutions are utilized by scientific, business and government communities to fulfill highly data intensive application needs in petascale 
environments. Delivering industry-leading computing power and fast and efficient data movement, both within the computing system and to and 
from large-scale data storage installations, SGI systems enable customers to access, analyze, transform, manage and visualize information in real 
and near real-time.  

Our goal is to accelerate time to results in key markets including federal government, defense and strategic systems, weather and climate, 
physical and life sciences, energy (including oil and gas), aerospace, automotive, internet, financial services, media and entertainment and cloud 
services.  

SGI expects market growth in our core markets of high performance computing and storage and real time analytic. We believe that these 
are the markets that will provide the biggest growth opportunity and where we expect to gain share. We are continuing to target our investments 
towards key vertical markets and horizontal solutions where we can provide the highest value to our customers and differentiate our offerings 
and will focus on winning large strategic projects. We have a strong suite of products and a go-to-market strategy aligned with these growing 
opportunities. During fiscal 2014, we have introduced new configurations for our Rackable, ICE X and UV compute platforms. During the 
second half of fiscal 2015 we plan to launch our new SGI UV for SAP HANA which will largely target commercial enterprise businesses and is 
designed to streamline database management for single large node environments, which require extremely high capacity and scale to meet the 
needs of in-memory databases. Our management continues to focus on opportunities to enhance operational efficiency and reduce costs. We 
believe that this strategic plan will help create a strong foundation for our business results in the long-term.  

Basis of Presentation  

Included in this report are our consolidated balance sheets as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 , and the related consolidated statements 
of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 27, 2014 ("fiscal 2014 "), June 28, 2013 
("fiscal 2013 ") and June 29, 2012 ("fiscal 2012 ").  

The Company has a 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the last Friday in June. Both fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 were comprised of 52 
weeks. Fiscal year 2012 was comprised of 53 weeks.  

Significant events  

Our financial results during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 were affected by certain significant events that should be considered in comparing 
the periods presented.  
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Acquisition of FileTek, Inc.  

On September 30, 2013, we acquired certain assets of FileTek, Inc. ("FileTek"), a global provider of High Performance Data Analytics 
storage virtualization, large-scale data management, and active archive solutions. The total purchase price was approximately $9.2 million in 
cash. This acquisition expanded our storage solutions by enabling customers to manage data assets efficiently and lower the cost and 
administration of high-volume storage. Under the terms of the agreement, we acquired FileTek's StorHouse and Trusted Edge software, 
worldwide customers, engineering team and services and support resources.  

We recorded the acquired assets and assumed liabilities at their estimated fair values. We determined the estimated fair values using 
estimates and valuations including discounted cash flow and cost approach analyses.  

Contract Manufacturing Transition  

In July 2013, we selected Jabil Circuit, Inc. ("Jabil") to be our primary global manufacturing services and supply chain management 
provider. The transition to Jabil was expected to be implemented as a “manage in place” model, which utilizes existing SGI facilities and 
personnel. On November 18, 2013, the Company signed an asset purchase agreement with Jabil, whereby Jabil would purchase SGI’s primary 
manufacturing facility, located in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin and certain other manufacturing assets for $6.3 million in cash.  

The total carrying of these assets held for sale were written down to their fair value of $6.3 million resulting in an impairment charge of 
$0.9 million recorded in general and administrative expenses in the second quarter of fiscal 2014.  

We also expected that approximately 120 of our manufacturing personnel in Chippewa Falls would transfer to Jabil. During the second 
quarter of fiscal 2014, we accrued approximately $0.7 million of compensation costs associated with the transfer of these employees as part of 
the agreement with Jabil, which was recorded within cost of revenue.  

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, we reevaluated our outsourcing model given lower than anticipated volumes of Company product 
sales.  On August 4, 2014, we terminated the planned manage-in-place outsourcing structure and the asset purchase agreement referenced above. 
We agreed to pay approximately $0.6 million to Jabil for certain assets that were purchased for the manage-in-place model as well as for costs 
associated with streamlining the manufacturing process. In addition, we reversed the $0.7 million accrual previously booked for compensation 
costs associated with the proposed employee transfer discussed above. The Company will continue to optimize all of its manufacturing 
capabilities with the objective of improving efficiency and flexibility.  

Impairment of Long-lived Assets  

We review the carrying values of long-lived assets for indicators of impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount 
of the assets to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the assets.  

As a result of recent decisions to stop investment in certain next generation Storage products, we determined that intangible assets related 
to the product development of these next generation products were impaired. We recorded an impairment charge of $2.9 million in the fourth 
quarter of fiscal 2014, which was recorded as cost of revenue.  

Results of Operations  

Summarized below are the results of our operations for fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012.  

Financial Highlights  

Comparison of Fiscal 2014 and Fiscal 2013  
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•  On September 30, 2013 we acquired certain assets of FileTek for approximately $9.2 million in cash, expanding the Company's storage 
solutions by enabling customers to manage data assets efficiently and lower the cost and administration of high-volume storage. Under 
the terms of the agreement, we acquired FileTek's StorHouse and Trusted Edge software, worldwide customers, engineering team and 
services and support resources.  

•  Our total revenue decreased $237.3 million or 30.9% to $529.9 million in fiscal 2014 from $767.2 million in fiscal 2013 . The decrease 
in revenue was due primarily as a result of lower sales of our legacy cloud product. This is consistent with our strategic decision to 
withdraw from low margin commodity service infrastructure and to focus our investments in strategic areas of HPC, High Performance 
Data Analytics, storage and services. In addition, we were also negatively impacted by the spending freeze instituted by the federal 
government prior to its shutdown during the first fiscal quarter of fiscal 2014 and the after-effects which delayed funding for certain 
federal programs.  
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Comparison of Fiscal 2013 and Fiscal 2012  
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•  Our overall gross margin increased by 1.5 percentage points from 24.6% in fiscal 2013 to 26.1% in fiscal 2014 . The favorable change 
in gross margin was primarily driven by a more profitable product mix compared to the comparable period last year, as we were 
impacted by a few significant low margin deals during fiscal 2013 in Europe and Japan and our strategic decision to withdraw from low 
margin commodity service infrastructure. We also benefited from a decrease in compensation and related expenses due to the 
reductions in headcount. This was partially offset by higher excess and obsolete inventory charges incurred during fiscal 2014 
compared to fiscal 2013 for inventory primarily related to our withdrawal from the legacy cloud business and other products that are at 
the end of the product life cycle. We also incurred additional costs associated with the agreement with Jabil to terminate the planned 
manage-in-place outsourcing structure and an impairment of our storage intangible assets as discussed above.  

•  Our research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $1.7 million or 0.9% from $193.7 million in 
fiscal 2013 to $192.0 million in fiscal 2014 . The primary driver of this decline was the decrease in compensation and related expenses 
due to reductions in headcount. Total headcount as of June 27, 2014 was 1,166, which reflects a reduction of 244 employees from 1,410 
as of June 28, 2013 due to our cost reduction and restructuring actions as well as attrition. This was also partially offset by a $0.9 
million asset impairment charge related to our manufacturing facility, costs incurred associated with our plans to transition our 
manufacturing and supply chain management to Jabil referenced above, as well as costs to relocate our corporate headquarters and 
higher share-based compensation costs. We also incurred severance expense of $10.9 million for fiscal 2014 , as compared to $5.0 
million for fiscal 2013 related to voluntary and involuntary employee termination programs implemented to reduce costs recorded in 
fiscal 2014.  

•  We incurred restructuring expense of $1.3 million for fiscal 2014 , as compared to $9.0 million for fiscal 2013 related to the fiscal 2012 
restructuring action primarily focused on cost reductions in Europe.  

•  We recognized approximately $1.7 million in other income associated with the sale of an investment. 

•  We recognized a net loss for fiscal 2014 of $52.8 million compared to a net loss of $2.8 million in fiscal 2013 . The $50.0 million 
increase in net loss was mainly driven by the lower sales of our legacy cloud products and U.S. government-related contracts as 
previously discussed above, income tax benefit recorded of $12.6 million in fiscal 2013 as well as higher asset impairment and excess 
and obsolete inventory charges.  

•  We continue to streamline our operations and size the business for profitability while continuing to invest in our more differentiated 
growth initiatives.  

•  Our total revenue increased $14.2 million or 1.9% to $767.2 million in fiscal 2013 from $753.0 million in fiscal 2012. The increase in 
revenue was primarily due to higher sales from our scale out server products as well as our legacy cloud/web solutions, and was 
partially offset by a decline in our customer support and professional service offerings.  

•  Our overall gross margin decreased by 1.1 percentage points from 25.7% in fiscal 2012 to 24.6% in fiscal 2013. The unfavorable 
change in gross margin was due to unfavorable margins resulting from low margin deals in Japan and EMEA recognized during fiscal 
2013. This was partially offset by lower excess and obsolete inventory charges. In fiscal 2012, we recorded a $10.1 million inventory 
write down to reflect reduced demand for manufacturing parts for earlier generation products and a revaluation of spare inventories to 
reflect reduced expected usage.  

•  Our research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $19.1 million or 9.0% from $212.8 million in 
fiscal 2012 to $193.7 million in fiscal 2013. The primary driver of this decline was the decrease in compensation and related expenses 
due to reductions in headcount. Total headcount as of June 28, 2013 was 1,410, which reflects a reduction of 169 employees from 1,579 
as of June 29, 2012 due to restructuring actions in fiscal 2012 as well as attrition. The savings from the headcount reductions more than 
offset the increases in salaries and wages due to merit increases. We have actively been controlling our costs across all functions in 
order to streamline our operations and reduce operating expenses. We have also benefited from lower charges for the amortization of 
intangible assets as these assets are nearing full amortization.  

•  We incurred restructuring expense of $9.0 million for fiscal 2013, as compared to $2.5 million for fiscal 2012 related to the fiscal 2012 
restructuring action primarily focused on cost reductions in Europe.  

•  We recognized a net loss for fiscal 2013 of $2.8 million compared to a net loss of $24.5 million in fiscal 2012. The $21.6 million 
increase in net income was mainly driven by the income tax benefit recorded of $12.6 million as a result of unrecognized tax benefits, 
and a decrease in our total operating expenses, which was partially offset by low margin deals that were recognized during the first and 
third quarters of fiscal 2013.  
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Net Revenue  

Revenue. We derive revenue from the sale of products and services directly to end-users as well as through resellers and system 
integrators. Product revenue is derived from the sale of mid-range to high-end computing servers and data storage systems as well as software. 
We enter into sales contracts to deliver multiple products and/or services. In accordance with our revenue recognition policy, certain sales 
contracts are deferred and recognized over the service period. Service revenue is generated from the sale of standard maintenance contracts as 
well as custom maintenance contracts that are tailored to individual customers' needs. We recognize service revenue ratably over the service 
periods. Maintenance contracts are typically between one to three years in length and we actively pursue renewals of these contracts. We also 
generate professional services revenue related to implementation of and training on our products.  

We continuously make revisions to our product offerings and improvements of our product's performance and data storage capacity. 
Accordingly, we are unable to directly compare our products from period to period, and are therefore unable to quantify the changes in pricing of 
our products from period to period. We believe that our on-going revisions to product offerings and product feature improvements help mitigate 
competitive pricing pressures by shifting the competitive landscape to differentiated value rather than price. Among other things, the timing of 
our revenue is primarily dependent upon the funding and implementation schedule of our customers. A significant portion of our revenue relates 
to large IT projects, which can have long sales cycles and long build-out and acceptance schedules.  

The following table presents revenue by geographic region for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands except percentages):  

The Americas geographic region includes both North and South America. The Europe geographic region ("EMEA") includes European 
countries, as well as the Middle East and Africa. The Asia-Pacific geographic region ("APJ") includes Australia, Japan and all other Asian 
countries.  
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      Fiscal Year Ended     2014 over 2013     2013 over 2012  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

   Change     Change  

         $  %     $  %  

Net revenue from products:                                      

     Compute     $ 307,440     $ 498,166     $ 486,188     $ (190,726 ) (38.3)%     $ 11,978  2.5%  

         As a percent of total net revenue     58.0 %    64.9 %    64.5 %       (6.9) ppts        0.4 ppts  

     Storage     67,125     92,523     70,545     (25,398 ) (27.5)%     21,978  31.2%  

         As a percent of total net revenue     12.7 %    12.1 %    9.4 %       0.6 ppts        2.7 ppts  

                  Net revenue from products     374,565     590,689     556,733     (216,124 ) (36.6)%     33,956  6.1%  

Net revenue from services:     155,381     176,538     196,254     (21,157 ) (12.0)%     (19,716 ) (10.0)%  

         As a percent of total net revenue     29.3 %    23.0 %    26.1 %       6.3 ppts        (3.1) ppts  

Total net revenue     $ 529,946     $ 767,227     $ 752,987     $ (237,281 ) (30.9)%     $ 14,240  1.9%  

      Fiscal Year Ended     2014 over 2013     2013 over 2012  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

   Change     Change  

         $  %     $  %  

Americas     $ 277,536     $ 496,508     $ 473,746     $ (218,972 ) (44.1)%     $ 22,762  4.8%  

     As a percent of total net revenue     52.4 %    64.7 %    62.9 %       (12.3) ppts        1.8 ppts  

EMEA     116,071     134,152     108,849     $ (18,081 ) (13.5)%     25,303  23.2%  

     As a percent of total net revenue     21.9 %    17.5 %    14.5 %       4.4 ppts        3.0 ppts  

APJ     136,339     136,567     170,392     $ (228 ) (0.2)%     (33,825 ) (19.9)%  

     As a percent of total net revenue     25.7 %    17.8 %    22.6 %       7.9 ppts        (4.8) ppts  

Total revenue     $ 529,946     $ 767,227     $ 752,987     $ (237,281 ) (30.9)%     14,240  1.9%  
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Our revenue mix by geography illustrates that we continue to have strong international presence representing 52.3% , 37.9% and 40.6% , 
of our total revenue during fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. For fiscal 2014 , various agencies of the United States government, 
excluding system integrators contributed more than 10% of total revenue. For fiscal 2013, Amazon and various agencies of the United States 
government, excluding system integrators, were the only customers that contributed more than 10% of total revenue. For fiscal 2012 , Amazon 
was our only customer that contributed more than 10% of total revenue.  

Cost of revenue and gross profit  

Cost of revenue and gross profit for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands except percentages):  

Cost of revenue consists of costs associated with direct material, labor, manufacturing overhead, shipment of products, inventory write 
downs and share-based compensation. Cost of revenue also includes personnel costs for providing maintenance and professional services. Our 
manufacturing overhead and professional services personnel costs are fixed or semi-variable. Our gross margins are impacted by changes in 
customer and product mix, pricing actions by our competitors and commodity prices that comprise a significant portion of cost of revenue from 
period to period. In addition, when certain sales contracts are deferred in accordance with our revenue recognition policy, the related cost of 
revenue is deferred and recognized upon recognition of revenue.  

Our cost of revenue and gross profit are impacted by price changes, product configuration, revenue mix and product material costs. Our 
service cost of revenue and gross margin are impacted by timing of support service initiations and renewals, and incremental investments in our 
customer support infrastructure.  

Overall gross profit decreased by $50.6 million to $138.4 million in fiscal 2014 from $189.1 million in fiscal 2013 due to a decrease in 
revenue volume primarily related to lower sales for our legacy cloud products and U.S. government-related business. However, our overall gross 
margin increased to 26.1% in fiscal 2014 from 24.6% in fiscal 2013 . The increase in gross margins in fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013 was 
primarily driven by more favorable product mix due to our strategic decision to withdraw from low margin commodity server infrastructure and 
to focus our investments in strategic areas of HPC, High Performance Data Analytics, storage and services, as well as a higher mix of service 
revenue which typically generates higher gross margins. We also benefited from the decrease in compensation and related expenses due to the 
reductions in headcount. This was slightly offset by higher excess and obsolete inventory charges during fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013 as 
a result of our strategic withdrawal from the legacy cloud business, higher costs incurred during fiscal 2014 associated with the plan and 
termination of the manage in place contract manufacturing model with Jabil and an impairment charge of $2.9 million for intangible assets 
related to our Storage business unit. In addition, during fiscal 2013, our gross margins were negatively impacted as a result of the low margin 
deals in Japan and Europe, impacting both our product and service margins.  

Overall gross profit decreased $4.8 million or 2.5% to $189.1 million in fiscal 2013 from $193.8 million in fiscal 2012. Overall gross 
margin percentage decreased to 24.6% in fiscal 2013 from 25.7% in fiscal 2012. Our gross margin decreased primarily as a result of a few low 
margin deals that occurred in fiscal 2013 that negatively impacted our margins in Japan and Europe, impacting both our product and service 
margins. This was offset by lower excess and obsolete inventory charges during fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012 as well as from the savings 
from the lower headcount discussed above.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

     Fiscal Year Ended    2014 over 2013    2013 over 2012  

     
June 27,  

2014    
June 28,  

2013    
June 29,  

2012  

  Change    Change  

       $  %    $  %  

Total cost of revenue    $391,539    $578,175    $559,170    $(186,636)  (32.3)%    $19,005  3.4%  

                          

Total gross profit    $138,407    $189,052    $193,817    $(50,645)  (26.8)%    $(4,765)  (2.5)%  

                          

Total gross margin    26.1%    24.6%    25.7%       1.5 ppts       (1.1) ppts  
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Operating expenses  

Operating expenses for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follows: 

Research and development. Research and development expense consists primarily of personnel and related costs, contractor fees, new 
component testing and evaluation, test equipment, new product design and testing, other product development activities, share-based 
compensation, facilities and information technology costs. During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , we received $1.0 million, $1.3 million and $1.6 
million, respectively, in third-party funding which offset a portion of our research and development expenses.  

Research and development expense increased $2.9 million or 4.8% to $63.5 million in fiscal 2014 from $60.6 million in fiscal 2013 . The 
increase in research and development expense was primarily due to higher severance expense related to voluntary and involuntary employee 
termination programs implemented to reduce costs. This was partially offset by cost savings associated with the reductions in headcount as well 
as lower non-recurring engineering costs due to timing of product introductions.  

Research and development expense decreased $1.7 million or 2.8% to $60.6 million in fiscal 2013 from $62.4 million in fiscal 2012. The 
decrease in research and development expense was primarily due to a reduction in third party provider and non-recurring engineering costs of 
approximately $1.0 million and equipment and materials of $1.6 million as we were ramping up for new product introductions in fiscal 2012. 
This was offset by higher depreciation of $0.5 million as we continue to invest in research and development activities, as well as higher stock 
based compensation expense of approximately $0.3 million.  

We believe that focused investments in research and development are critical to our future performance and competitiveness in the 
marketplace. Our investments in this area will directly relate to enhancement of our current product line, development of new products that 
achieve market acceptance, and our ability to meet an expanding range of customer requirements. As such, we expect to continue to spend on 
current and future product development efforts.  

Sales and marketing. Sales and marketing expense consists primarily of salaries, bonuses and commissions paid to our sales and marketing 
employees, amortization of intangible assets, share-based compensation, facilities and information technology costs. We also incur marketing 
expenses for activities such as trade shows, direct mail and advertising.  

Sales and marketing expense decreased $6.0 million or 7.7% to $ 72.7 million in fiscal 2014 from $78.7 million in fiscal 2013 . This 
reduction was primarily due to a decrease in our compensation and related expenses as a result of lower headcount as well as lower commissions 
and bonus expense reflecting lower achievement of sales commission targets and performance metrics. This was partially offset by higher share-
based compensation costs.  

Sales and marketing expense decreased $9.7 million or 11.0% to $78.7 million in fiscal 2013 from $88.4 million in fiscal 2012. This 
reduction was primarily due to a decrease in our compensation and related expenses as a result of lower headcount as well as lower commissions 
and bonus expense reflecting lower achievement of sales commission targets and performance metrics. In addition, we also benefited from a 
decrease in intangible amortization expense of $0.7 million as some of our intangible assets became fully amortized, and have reduced our 
marketing costs by focusing on more strategic and cost effective ways to help generate business. This reduction was offset by an increase of $1.8 
million of severance charges incurred during fiscal 2013 primarily impacting our APJ region.  

We will continue to deploy our sales and support organizations to focus on key vertical markets such as defense and strategic systems, 
weather and climate, physical sciences, life sciences, energy (including oil and gas), aerospace and automotive, media and entertainment, 
semiconductor design, manufacturing, financial services, data centers and business intelligence and data analytics. In addition, we are also 
investing in our marketing functions in order to ensure that we are in markets and technologies that will provide us with growth in our target 
segments.  

General and administrative . General and administrative expense consists primarily of personnel costs, legal and professional service 
costs, depreciation, share-based compensation, facilities and information technology costs.  

      Fiscal Year Ended     2014 over 2013     2013 over 2012  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012     

Change     Change  

$  %     $  %  

      (in thousands, except percentages)  

Research and development     $ 63,526     $ 60,611     $ 62,356     $ 2,915  4.8  %    $ (1,745 ) (2.8 )% 

Sales and marketing     72,681     78,730     88,414     (6,049 ) (7.7 )%    (9,684 ) (11.0 )% 

General and administrative     55,796     54,317     62,021     1,479  2.7  %    (7,704 ) (12.4 )% 

Restructuring     1,251     9,048     2,469     (7,797 ) (86.2 )%    6,579  266.5  % 

Total operating expense     $ 193,254     $ 202,706     $ 215,260     $ (9,452 ) (4.7 )%    $ (12,554 ) (5.8 )% 
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General and administrative expense increased $ 1.5 million or 2.7% to $ 55.8 million in fiscal 2014 from $ 54.3 million in fiscal 2013 . For 
fiscal 2014, we recorded a $0.9 million asset impairment charge for our manufacturing facility located in Chippewa Falls, as previously 
described above. We also incurred higher severance expense related to voluntary and involuntary employee termination programs implemented 
to reduce costs as well as higher share-based compensation costs. This was partially offset by lower compensation and related benefits as a result 
of the reduction in headcount as well as a reduction in our professional fees, including legal related expenses and other third party consulting 
fees. In addition, during fiscal 2013, we also benefited from a $0.7 million gain on a sale of assets.  

General and administrative expense decreased $7.7 million or 12.4% to $54.3 million in fiscal 2013 from $62.0 million in fiscal 2012. For 
fiscal 2013, we reduced our professional fees, including legal related expenses and other third party consulting fees by approximately $3.1 
million and recruiting fees by approximately $1.0 million, primarily due to cost control measures. We also benefited from lower compensation 
and related benefits of $0.5 million as a result of the reduction of headcount, a gain on the sale of assets of $0.7 million, as well as a decrease in 
share-based compensation expense of $0.6 million. In fiscal 2012, share-based compensation included the impact of stock modifications for 
former executive officers more fully described below. This was partially offset by higher bonus expense reflecting higher achievement of 
performance metrics compared to fiscal 2012.  

Restructuring. Total restructuring expense related to our restructuring actions was approximately $1.3 million , $9.0 million , and $2.5 
million for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.  

On March 16, 2012, the Company's Board of Directors approved a restructuring action to reduce approximately 25% of the Company's 
European workforce and close certain legal entities and offices in Europe in order to streamline operations and reduce operating expenses.  

Total expense incurred in connection with this restructuring plan, for actions taken through June 27, 2014 was $12.6 million . This 
restructuring action is substantially complete.  

Total other income (expense), net  

Total other income (expense), net for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:  

Interest expense, net. Interest expense, net primarily consists of interest expense relating to our credit facility and to certain tax payments, 
as well interest earned on our interest-bearing investment accounts which include money market funds and U.S. treasury bills.  

Other income (expense), net. Other income (expense), net consists primarily of foreign exchange losses as a result of the strengthening of 
the U.S. Dollar against the Euro, British Pound, Japanese Yen and Canadian dollar against the U.S. Dollar as well as gains or losses associated 
with other non-operating business activities. During fiscal 2014, we recorded $1.7 million of other income associated with a sale of an 
investment.  

Income tax (benefit) provision  

Income tax provision for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:  

N.M- Not meaningful  

We recorded an immaterial amount of tax expense of for fiscal 2014 . Our tax expense for fiscal 2014 includes current and deferred tax 
benefit primarily related to our foreign operations, current tax expense attributable to U.S. state income taxes, and tax expense for unrecognized 
tax benefits and related interest. The Company believes that it is more likely than  

      Fiscal Year Ended     2014 over 2013     2013 over 2012     

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012     

Change     Change     

      $  %     $  %     

      (in thousands, except percentages)     
Interest expense, net     $ (117 )    $ (311 )    $ (297 )    $ 194  (62.4 )%    $ (14 ) 4.7  %    
Other income (expense), net     2,162     (1,478 )    (1,720 )    3,640  (246.3 )%    242  (14.1 )%    
Total other income (expense), net     $ 2,045     $ (1,789 )     $ (2,017 )    $ 3,834  (214.3 )%    $ 228  (11.3 )%    

      Fiscal Year Ended     2014 over 2013     2013 over 2012     

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012     

Change     Change     

      $  %     $  %     

      (in thousands, except percentages)              

Income tax (benefit) provision     $ 12     $ (12,623 )     $ 1,001     $ 12,635  N.M.    $ (13,624 )  N.M.    
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not that the majority of the deferred tax assets of its foreign subsidiaries will not be realized. As such, the Company recorded deferred tax benefit 
related to the release of valuation allowance for certain of its foreign subsidiaries. The effective tax rate differed from the combined U.S. federal 
and state statutory income tax rates for fiscal 2014 primarily due to current and deferred tax expense incurred by the Company's foreign 
subsidiaries, a refund of foreign taxes paid, change in valuation allowance and a tax expense associated with unrecognized tax benefits and 
related interest.  

We recorded a tax benefit of $12.6 million for fiscal 2013 . Our tax benefit for fiscal 2013 includes current and deferred tax benefit 
primarily related to our foreign operations of $2.2 million, current tax expense attributable to the U.S. state income taxes of $0.2 million, and tax 
benefit of $10.6 million for unrecognized tax benefits and related interest. The Company believes that it is more likely than not that the majority 
of the deferred tax assets of its foreign subsidiaries will not be realized. As such, the Company recorded deferred tax benefit of $0.5 million 
related to the release of valuation allowance for certain of its foreign subsidiaries. The effective tax rate differed from the combined U.S. federal 
and state statutory income tax rates for fiscal 2013 primarily due to domestic operating losses generated during the period from which the 
Company does not benefit, current and deferred tax expense incurred by the Company's foreign subsidiaries, a refund of foreign taxes paid, and a 
tax benefit associated with unrecognized tax benefits and related interest.  

We recorded a tax expense of $1.0 million for fiscal 2012. Our tax expense for fiscal 2012 includes current and deferred tax expense 
primarily related to our foreign operations of $2.0 million, current tax expense attributable to the U.S. state income taxes of $0.2 million, and an 
offsetting benefit of $1.2 million for previously unrecognized tax benefits and related accrued interest. The Company believes that it is more 
likely than not that the majority of the deferred tax assets of its foreign subsidiaries will not be realized. As such, the Company recorded deferred 
tax expense of $1.7 million related to the recording of valuation allowance for its foreign subsidiaries. The effective tax rate differed from the 
combined U.S. federal and state statutory income tax rates for fiscal 2012 primarily due to domestic operating losses generated during the period 
from which the Company does not benefit, current and deferred tax expense incurred by the Company's foreign subsidiaries and a tax benefit 
associated with unrecognized tax benefits and related interest.  

As of June 27, 2014 , we recorded a valuation allowance against the majority of our net deferred tax assets. Based on all available positive 
and negative evidence, on a jurisdictional basis, including our historical operating results, and the uncertainty of predicting our future income, 
the valuation allowance reduces the majority of our deferred tax assets to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized. The valuation 
allowance is attributable to U.S. federal, state and certain foreign deferred tax assets primarily consisting of net operating loss carryovers, tax 
credit carryovers, accrued expenses, and other temporary differences. We continue to evaluate the future realization of our deferred tax assets. If 
our assessment of deferred tax assets or the corresponding valuation allowance were to change, we would record the related adjustment to 
income tax expense during the period in which management makes the determination.  

Segment Operating Performance  

Commencing in the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company started managing its business primarily on a business unit basis versus the 
geographic basis previously used by management. Accordingly, the Company has determined its operating and reporting segments, which is 
based on the business unit structure, to be Compute, Storage and Service. The Company's operating segments are determined based upon several 
criteria including: the Company's internal organizational structure; the manner in which the Company's operations are managed; the criteria used 
by the Company's Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), to evaluate segment performance; and the 
availability of separate financial information.  

The Company's CODM evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on revenue and operating profit (loss). Revenue is 
generally allocated based on the type of products and service provided to our customers. Operating profit (loss) for each segment includes related 
cost of sales and operating expenses directly attributable to the segment. A portion of the segments' expenses arise from shared services and 
infrastructure that the Company provides to the segments in order to realize economies of scale and to efficiently use resources. These expenses, 
collectively called corporate charges, include costs of centralized research and development and other corporate infrastructure expenses. These 
corporate charges are allocated to the segments and are reassessed on a periodic basis. The allocations have been determined on a basis that the 
Company considers to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided to or benefits received by the segments. The profitability 
of each of the segments is measured after excluding share based compensation expenses, amortization of intangibles, restructuring charges, 
general and administration charges, other unallocated corporate charges and other items, as management does not include this information in its 
measurement of the performance of the operating segments.  

All historical segment numbers for fiscal 2013 and 2012 have been recast to conform to the fiscal 2014 business unit presentation.  
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Compute:  

Our compute solutions segment includes our scale-out computing, scale-up computing and software solutions. Compute solutions also 
include integrated third-party hardware and software products that we sell to provide a single source solution for our customers. Our compute 
solutions are designed to minimize the number and complexity of interconnects for power and data transfer to improve reliability, speed of 
implementation and serviceability.  

Operating results for our Compute segment for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follow (in thousands except percentage):  

Revenue for our Compute segment decreased $190.7 million or 38.3% to $307.4 million in fiscal 2014 from $498.2 million during fiscal 
2013 . These decreases were primarily due as a result of lower sales for our legacy cloud products. This is consistent with our strategic decision 
to withdraw from low margin commodity server infrastructure and to focus our investments in strategic areas of HPC, High Performance Data 
Analytics, storage and service. In addition, we were also negatively impacted by the spending freeze instituted by the federal government prior to 
its shutdown during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and the after-effects which delayed funding for certain federal programs.  

Revenue for our Compute segment increased $12.0 million or 2.5% in fiscal 2013 compared to $486.2 million in fiscal 2012 . These 
increases were due primarily driven by the strength in our scale-out computing and legacy cloud products partially offset by a reduction in our 
scale-up computing products.  

Overall operating profit for our Compute segment decreased by $31.3 million to an operating loss of $1.0 million in fiscal 2014 from $30.3 
million operating profit in fiscal 2013 . For fiscal 2014, gross margins were about flat compared to the comparable period a year ago on lower 
revenue. Gross margins in fiscal 2013 were negatively impacted as a result of low margin deals in Japan and EMEA as well as a higher mix of 
legacy cloud products, which historically generated lower gross margins. Gross margins in fiscal 2014, had a higher mix of third party products 
and ICE-X products, which generally carry lower margins than our other product offerings in this segment. Although we benefited from our tight 
controls over our spending and reductions in headcount discussed above resulting in lower compensation and related expenses, as well as lower 
bonuses and commissions expense, these reductions were not enough to offset the relative fixed costs on significantly lower revenue volume, 
negatively impacting the segment results during the period.  

Overall operating profit for our Compute segment increased by $5.0 million to $30.3 million in fiscal 2013 from $25.3 million operating 
income in fiscal 2012 . Gross margins for fiscal 2013 were lower compared to fiscal 2012. During fiscal 2013, our gross margins were negatively 
impacted as a result of a few significant low margin deals in Japan and Europe. In addition, fiscal 2012 we had a higher mix of scale-up 
computing products, which generally generates higher margins than our other product offerings in this segment. We benefited from reductions in 
headcount discussed above resulting in lower compensation and related expenses, as well as lower bonuses and commissions expense as well as 
lower third party costs in research and development due to timing of product introductions.  
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     Fiscal Year Ended    2014 over 2013    2013 over 2012  

     
June 27,  

2014    
June 28,  

2013    
June 29,  

2012  

  Change    Change  

       $  %    $  %  

Net revenue    $307,440    $498,166    $486,188    $(190,726)  (38.3)%    $11,978  2.5%  

                          

Operating (loss) profit    (989)    30,304    25,320    (31,293)  (103.3)%    4,984  19.7%  

                          

Operating margin    (0.3)%    6.1%    5.2%       (6.4) ppts       0.9 ppts  
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Storage:  

Our Storage solutions segment includes both hardware and software offerings to address virtually every type of data storage and 
management requirement. Products range from entry-level disk arrays to complex storage systems, with innovative technology and hardware, to 
include the SGI Modular InfiniteStorage™ platform, SGI InfiniteStorage™ gateway and SGI CXFS™ file system. Our storage solutions are 
designed to provide extreme scale, broad flexibility, and to minimize the cost to store data. A significant portion of our segment revenue is 
generated from follow on sales to support the storage needs of our Compute customers.  

Operating results for our Storage segment for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follow (in thousands except percentage): 

Revenue for our Storage segment decreased $25.4 million or 27.5% to $67.1 million in fiscal 2014 from $92.5 million in fiscal 2013 . 
Revenue for our Storage segment was negatively impacted by the spending freeze instituted by the federal government prior to its shutdown 
during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and its after-effects which delayed funding for certain federal programs.  

For fiscal 2013 , our Storage segment's revenue increased $22.0 million or 31.2% to $92.5 million from $70.5 million in fiscal 2012 . This 
increase was due primarily as a result of higher revenue generated by increased demand in our storage infrastructure and third party products 
compared to the same period a year ago.  

Overall operating profit for our Storage segment decreased by $0.3 million to $0.8 million operating income in fiscal 2014 from a $1.1 
million operating income in fiscal 2013 . Gross margins for fiscal 2014 were higher compared to fiscal 2013. During fiscal 2013, our gross 
margins were negatively impacted as a result of a few significant low margin deals in Japan and Europe. Storage operating expenses for fiscal 
2014 were flat compared to the comparable period a year ago. The Storage segment incurred higher operating expenses due to increased 
development in research and development in order to capitalize on software acquired as part of the recent FileTek acquisition offset by 
reductions in headcount discussed above resulting in lower compensation and related expenses, as well as lower bonuses and commissions 
expense.  

Overall operating profit for our Storage segment increased by $3.2 million to $1.1 million operating income in fiscal 2013 compared to 
$2.1 million operating loss in fiscal 2012 . Gross margins for fiscal 2013 were lower compared to fiscal 2012. During fiscal 2013, our gross 
margins were negatively impacted as a result of a few significant low margin deals in Japan and Europe. We benefited from reductions in 
headcount discussed above resulting in lower compensation and related expenses, as well as lower bonuses and commissions expense however 
this was partially offset by increased investment in research and development.  
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     Fiscal Year Ended    2014 over 2013    2013 over 2012  

     
June 27,  

2014    
June 28,  

2013    
June 29,  

2012  

  Change    Change  

       $  %    $  %  

Net revenue    $67,125    $92,523    $70,545    $(25,398)  (27.5)%    $21,978  31.2%  

                          

Operating profit (loss)    843    1,140    (2,069)    (297)  (26.1)%    3,209  155.1%  

                          

Operating margin    1.3%    1.2%    (2.9)%       0.1 ppts       4.1 ppts  
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Service:  

The Service segment is comprised of customer service support and professional services. Our customer service support organization 
provides ongoing maintenance and technical support for our products and some third-party products, as well as contracted maintenance services, 
hardware deployment services (install and de-install), time and materials-based services and spare parts. Our professional services organization 
provides value added services associated with technology consulting, project management and customer education, all of which help our 
customers realize the full value of their information technology investments.  

Operating results for our Service segment for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands except percentage):  

Our service revenue will typically fluctuate due to timing of when services were performed on consulting and product integration services. 
Our service revenue is typically recognized ratably over the respective service periods. Revenue for our Service segment decreased $21.2 million 
or 12.0% to $155.4 million in fiscal 2014 from $176.5 million in fiscal 2013 . The decrease compared to a year ago was primarily due to the 
lower volume of products sold requiring service needs, the timing of professional services provided as well as a deterioration in customer service 
maintenance contracts. In addition, we experienced lower support revenue as our new products replace our installed base of older generation 
products.  

Revenue for our Service segment decreased $19.7 million or 10.0% to $176.5 million in fiscal 2013 from $196.3 million in fiscal 2012 . 
The decrease was primarily due to timing of professional services provided as well as a deterioration in customer service maintenance contracts. 
In addition, we experienced lower support revenue as our new products replace our installed base of older generation products.  

Overall operating profit for our Service segment increased by $1.6 million to $60.4 million operating income in fiscal 2014 from $58.8 
million operating income in fiscal 2013. Despite the decrease in revenue, overall operating profit increased for our Service segment during fiscal 
2014 compared to fiscal 2013 . The Service segment was more profitable on lower revenue as we benefited from lower spending associated with 
using third party providers and the reductions in headcount discussed above resulting in lower compensation and related expenses, as well as 
lower bonuses and commissions.  

Overall operating profit for our Service segment increased by $2.2 million to $58.8 million operating income in fiscal 2013 from $56.6 
million operating income in fiscal 2012 . During fiscal 2013 , we generated higher gross margins due to lower material costs and utilization of 
third third party providers. In addition, during fiscal 2013 , our gross margin was negatively impacted by a few low margin deals that occurred in 
Japan and Europe.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  

We had $109.3 million of cash and cash equivalents at June 27, 2014 compared with $175.2 million of cash and cash equivalents at 
June 28, 2013 . As of June 27, 2014 , we had $66.5 million of cash and cash equivalents that are held outside the United States. Historically, we 
have required capital principally to fund our working capital needs. If we invest any of our cash outside of non-interest-bearing operating 
accounts, it is our investment policy to invest in a manner that preserves capital, provides liquidity and maintains appropriate diversification and 
optimizes after-tax yield and return within our policy's framework and stipulated benchmarks. Adherence with our policy requires the assets to 
be liquid on and before their maturity dates. This liquidity requirement means that the holder of the assets must be able to pay us, upon our 
demand, the cash value of the assets invested.  

At June 27, 2014 , we had short-term and long-term restricted cash and cash equivalents of $4.5 million that are pledged as collateral for 
various guarantees issued to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to government authorities for value-added tax (“VAT”) and other 
taxes and certain vendors to support payments in advance of delivery of goods and services.  

As described further below under the section titled "Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments," in December 2011 we entered into 
a five-year senior secured credit facility in the aggregate principal amount of $35.0 million, which has since been adjusted to $25.0 million. The 
credit facility is intended to be used primarily to fund working capital  

 

     Fiscal Year Ended    2014 over 2013    2013 over 2012  

     
June 27,  

2014    
June 28,  

2013    
June 29,  

2012  

  Change    Change  

       $  %    $  %  

Net revenue    $155,381    $176,538    $196,254    $(21,157)  (12.0)%    $(19,716)  (10.0)%  

                          

Operating profit    60,412    58,805    56,616    1,607  2.7%    2,189  3.9%  

                          

Operating margin    38.9%    33.3%    28.8%       5.6 ppts       4.5 ppts  
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requirements, capital expenditures and operations to the extent that cash provided by operating activities is not sufficient to fund our cash needs. 
During fiscal 2013, we made a $15.7 million payment to pay down the outstanding balance with interest of the credit facility. Accordingly, as of 
June 27, 2014 , we had no outstanding balance owed on the credit facility. We have a $2.0 million outstanding letter of credit under this credit 
facility to back the Company's obligation to pay for goods or services to a supplier. As of June 27, 2014 , the maximum amount available to be 
borrowed under the credit facility was approximately $23.0 million.  

At June 27, 2014 , we believe our current cash and cash equivalents, in conjunction with the funds that may be drawn down under our 
credit facility, will be sufficient to fund working capital requirements, capital expenditures, stock repurchase and operations for at least the next 
twelve months. We have implemented processes to more effectively monitor our working capital. We have intensified our cash management 
processes related to monitoring, projecting and controlling procedures to operate our business and are more broadly requiring advance and 
milestone payments for certain large projects that would otherwise involve a significant lag between our payments to vendors for equipment and 
materials and the installation, acceptance, billing and collection from the customer. We intend to retain any future earnings to support operations, 
to finance the growth and development of our business and to fund our stock repurchase program. We do not anticipate paying any dividends in 
the foreseeable future. In June 2013, we signed a lease for a new headquarters facility and incurred approximately $10.7 million for capital 
expenditures and received approximately $5.9 million in lease incentives.  

The adequacy of these resources to meet our liquidity needs beyond the next twelve months will depend on our growth, operating results 
and capital expenditures required to meet our business needs. If we fail to generate cash from our operations on a timely basis, we may not have 
the cash resources required to run our business and we may need to seek additional sources of funds.  

If we require additional capital resources to expand our business internally or to acquire complementary products, technologies and 
businesses at any time in the future, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain other debt financing. The sale of additional 
equity or debt securities could result in more dilution to our stockholders. Financing arrangements may not be available to us, or may not be 
available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us.  

The following is a summary of cash activity (in thousands):  

Operating Activities  

Cash used in operating activities was $33.1 million for fiscal 2014 . Our net loss was $52.8 million for fiscal 2014 . Non-cash items 
included in net loss consisted primarily of depreciation and amortization expense of $14.5 million , share-based compensation expense of $12.0 
million , a gain on sales of investment of $1.7 million , impairment on investments and long-lived assets of $4.6 million , changes in deferred 
income taxes of $0.2 million and changes in other non-cash items of $0.6 million . Net change in operating assets and liabilities was $10.1 
million . The primary sources of cash in operating activity were driven by decreases in inventory, deferred cost of revenue, as well as an increase 
in accounts payable and other liabilities. The primary uses of cash in operating activities were decreases in deferred revenue, accrued 
compensation, and increase in accounts receivable as well as prepaid and other assets for payments to our suppliers and vendors.  
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     Fiscal Year Ended    

     
June 27,  

2014    
June 28,  

2013    
June 29,  

2012    
Consolidated statements of cash flows data:                   

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities    $ (33,080 )    $ 76,825    $ (46,828 )    
Net cash used in investing activities and acquisitions    (26,311 )    (1,560 )    (7,700 )    
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities    (5,530 )    (2,547 )    19,059    

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    (963 )    (2,388 )    452    

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents    $ (65,884 )    $ 70,330    $ (35,017 )    
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For fiscal 2014 , inventory decreased $10.1 million reflecting timing of customer shipments and acceptance for a number of our large sales 
contracts for which we had built up inventory over the past few quarters in order to meet customer demand. Deferred cost also decreased by $8.4 
million primarily due to the timing and recognition of revenue for these large deals. We continue to receive milestone payments from our 
customers, improving our cash position. Additionally, accounts payables increased $2.2 million and other liabilities increased $12.2 million . 
These increases are primarily due to timing of purchases of inventory and payments to our suppliers. This was partially offset by a decrease in 
deferred revenue of $14.6 million and increase in accounts receivable increased $13.0 million reflecting the timing of revenue recognition and 
timing of collection of the trade receivables. Additionally, accrued compensation decreased $8.4 million primarily due to lower bonuses and 
commissions and timing of payments. We continue our efforts to more closely align payments with customer receipts and as part of the efforts to 
manage our working capital more closely.  

Cash provided by operating activities was $76.8 million for fiscal 2013. Our net loss was $2.8 million for fiscal 2013. Non-cash items 
included in net loss consisted primarily of depreciation and amortization expense of $14.3 million, share-based compensation expense of $10.1 
million, release of previously recorded unrecognized tax benefit of $10.3 million, impairment on investments and long-lived assets of $0.2 
million, changes in deferred income taxes of $0.5 million and changes in other non-cash items of $1.0 million. Net change in operating assets 
and liabilities was $64.8 million. The primary sources of cash in operating activity were driven by decreases in inventory, deferred cost of 
revenue, accounts receivable and other assets as well as an increase in accrued compensation. The primary uses of cash in operating activities 
were decreases in deferred revenue, income taxes payable and accounts payable and other liabilities for payments to our suppliers and vendors.  

For fiscal 2013, inventory decreased $54.3 million reflecting timing of customer shipments and acceptance for a number of our large sales 
contracts for which we had built up inventory over the past few quarters in order to meet customer demand. Deferred cost also decreased by 
$36.3 million primarily due to the timing and recognition of revenue for these large deals. Accounts receivable decreased $35.3 million 
reflecting the timing of collection of the trade receivables. Additionally, accrued compensation increased $5.1 million primarily due to timing of 
payments for bonuses and commissions. This was partially offset by a decrease in deferred revenue of $46.3 million primarily due to the timing 
of revenue recognition on sales transactions, which were required to be released in accordance with our revenue recognition policy. Additionally, 
accounts payable decreased $17.3 million, primarily due to timing of purchases of inventory and payments to our suppliers.  

Cash used in operating activities was $46.8 million for fiscal 2012. Our net loss was $24.5 million for fiscal 2012. Non-cash items included 
in net loss consisted primarily of depreciation and amortization expense of $14.6 million, share-based compensation expense of $10.1 million, 
gain on pension plan curtailment of $1.3 million, loss on settlement of pension plan of $1.0 million, impairment on investments and long-lived 
assets of $0.5 million, changes in deferred income taxes of $1.7 million and changes in other non-cash items of $1.0 million. Net change in 
operating assets and liabilities was $50.0 million. The primary uses of cash in operating activity were an increase in inventory and a decrease in 
deferred revenue. The primary sources of cash in operating activities were an increase in accounts receivable and decrease in deferred cost of 
revenue.  

For fiscal 2012, deferred revenue decreased $36.5 million and deferred cost of revenue decreased $37.3 million, primarily due to the timing 
of revenue recognition on sales transactions, which were required to be deferred in accordance with our revenue recognition policy. Inventory 
increased $44.6 million primarily related to finished goods inventory that has already been shipped to our customers for which we are awaiting 
customer acceptance. This was partially offset by a $7.2 million inventory write down to reflect reduced demand for manufacturing parts for 
earlier generation products. Additionally, accounts payable decreased $2.5 million, primarily due to our efforts to more closely align payments 
with customer receipts and as part of the efforts to manage our working capital more closely. Accrued compensation decreased $5.3 million 
primarily due to timing of payments.  

Investing Activities and Acquisition  

Cash used in investing activities and acquisition was $26.3 million in fiscal 2014 , primarily due to purchases of property and equipment of 
$16.8 million largely for our new headquarters facility, cash used to acquire FileTek of $9.2 million and an increase in restricted cash and other 
investment activities of $2.1 million . This was offset by cash proceeds of $1.7 million for the sale of an investment.  

Cash used in investing activities and acquisition was $1.6 million in fiscal 2013, primarily due to purchases of property and equipment of 
$3.8 million offset by proceeds from other investing activities of $2.3 million.  

Cash used in investing activities and acquisition was $7.7 million in fiscal 2012, primarily due to purchases of property and equipment of 
$5.5 million and other investing activities of $2.2 million.  
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Financing Activities  

Cash used in financing activities was $5.5 million in fiscal 2014 , primarily due to the repurchase of our common stock of $11.0 million , 
the funding of restricted stock units withheld for taxes of $2.7 million , which was partially offset by the issuance of stock under our employee 
stock purchase plan and stock option exercises of $8.1 million .  

Cash used in financing activities was $2.5 million in fiscal 2013, primarily due to the payment of our credit facility of $15.3 million, the 
repurchase of our common stock of $2.8 million, the funding of restricted stock units withheld for taxes of $2.1 million, which was partially 
offset by the issuance of stock under our employee stock purchase plan and stock option exercises of $17.6 million.  

Cash provided by financing activities was $19.1 million in fiscal 2012, primarily due to proceeds from draw-downs on our credit facility of 
$15.0 million, the issuance of stock under our employee stock purchase plan and stock option exercises of $5.2 million, which was partially 
offset by the funding of RSUs withheld for taxes of $1.1 million. We did not purchase any treasury stock during fiscal 2012.  

In January 2013, the Company's board of directors approved a plan for the Company to repurchase shares of its common stock with a 
market value of up to $15.0 million. In November 2013, the Company announced an increase in the authorized repurchase amount to $30.0 
million. The Company's common stock may be repurchased in the open market or through negotiated transactions, including 10b5-1 trading 
plans that would enable the Company to repurchase its shares during periods outside of its normal trading windows. The repurchase program 
expires December 31, 2014. Purchases will cease if the authorized funds are spent or the program is discontinued. The Company is not obligated 
to acquire any particular amount of stock, and the program may be suspended or terminated at any time at the Company's discretion. These 
repurchases are reflected in our balance sheet as treasury stock and are available for future issuance.  

During fiscal 2014, we repurchased approximately 897,400 shares of outstanding common stock for a total of approximately $11.0 
million . During fiscal 2013, we repurchased 197,622 shares of outstanding common stock for a total of approximately $2.8 million.  

In February 2009, the Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $40.0 million of our common stock. Under this 
program, we were able to purchase shares of common stock through open market transactions and privately negotiated purchases at prices 
deemed appropriate by management. During fiscal 2012, there were no repurchases. This share repurchase program expired in March 2012.  

We expect to continue to invest in the business including working capital, capital expenditures and operating expenses. We intend to fund 
these activities with our cash reserves, cash generated from operations, if any, and with the principal that is available for withdrawal on the credit 
facility to the extent that cash provided by operating activities is not sufficient to fund our cash needs. Increases in operating expenses may not 
result in an increase in our revenue and our anticipated revenue may not be sufficient to support these increased expenditures. We anticipate that 
operating expenses and working capital will constitute a material use of our cash resources.  

Contractual Obligations and Commitments  

The following are contractual obligations and commitments at June 27, 2014 , associated with lease obligations and contractual 
commitments (in thousands):  

Operating Leases —We lease certain real and personal property under non-cancelable operating leases. Certain leases require us to pay 
property taxes, insurance and routine maintenance and include renewal options and escalation clauses.  

As of June 27, 2014 , we had total outstanding commitments on non-cancelable operating leases of our real property of $28.0 million, of 
which $22.5 million related to our domestic leases. These domestic leases include our headquarters in Milpitas, California and our warehouse 
facility in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin. A significant portion of our domestic leases will expire in fiscal 2024. The remainder of our domestic 
leases will expire in fiscal 2015 through 2019. The total outstanding commitment for non-cancelable international real property operating leases 
is $5.5 million. The total outstanding commitments included $2.4 million relating to our leased facility in Japan, which we assumed as part of 
our acquisition of SGI Japan that closed in March 2011. Our major facility leases in our international locations are generally for terms of two to 
nine years, and generally do not provide renewal options, except for our leases in Japan, that generally provide for a two-year renewal option.  
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      Payments due by period  

      Total     
Less than  

1 year     
1 - 3  
years     

3 - 5  
years     

More than  
5 years  

Operating leases     $ 28,991     $ 6,229     $ 6,841     $ 4,754     $ 11,167  
Purchase obligations     18,527     17,194     1,333     —    — 
Total     $ 47,518     $ 23,423     $ 8,174     $ 4,754     $ 11,167  
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As of June 27, 2014 , personal property under operating lease was comprised primarily of automobiles and office equipments. Total 
outstanding commitments under these leases were approximately $1.0 million at June 27, 2014 .  

Purchase Obligations —From time to time, we issue purchase orders to our contract manufacturers for the procurement of materials to be 
used for upcoming orders, particularly for those components that have long lead times. These purchase orders vary in size depending on our 
projected requirements. If we do not consume these materials on a timely basis or if our relationship with one of our contract manufacturers was 
to terminate, we could experience an abnormal increase to our inventory carrying amount and related accounts payable.  

In connection with supplier agreements, we agreed to purchase certain units of inventory and non-inventory through fiscal 2015. As of 
June 27, 2014 , there was a remaining commitment of approximately $18.5 million , of which $17.2 million is expected to be paid in the next 12 
months.  

In June 2013, we signed a lease for a new headquarters facility and incurred approximately $10.7 million for capital expenditures and 
received approximately $5.9 million in lease incentives.  

Other than the contractual obligations and commitments described above, we have no significant unconditional purchase obligations or 
similar instruments. We are not a guarantor of any other entities’ debt or other financial obligations.  

Uncertain Tax Positions —As of June 27, 2014 , the liability for uncertain tax positions, net of offsetting tax benefits associated with the 
correlative effects of state income taxes and interest deductions, was $2.1 million. As of June 27, 2014 , the Company has accrued $7.3 million 
of interest and penalty associated with its uncertain tax positions. The Company cannot conclude on the range of cash payments that will be 
made within the next twelve months associated with its uncertain tax positions.  

Credit facility —On December 5, 2011, we entered into a five-year credit facility in the aggregate principal amount of $35.0 million. The 
availability under the credit facility is limited to a borrowing base, subject to meeting certain conditions set forth in the credit facility. The credit 
facility included a feature that allowed the Company to increase the revolver amount in the first 18 months. The Company exercised this feature, 
and on May 1, 2012, the revolver amount of our credit facility was increased by $5.0 million to an aggregate principal amount of $40.0 million. 
On February 25, 2013, the Company amended the agreement and reduced the revolver amount to $25.0 million. During fiscal 2013, the 
Company made a $15.7 million payment to pay off the outstanding balance with interest on the credit facility. Accordingly, as of June 27, 2014 , 
we had no outstanding balance owed on the credit facility. As of June 27, 2014 , the maximum amount available to be borrowed under the credit 
facility was approximately $23.0 million which takes into account a $2.0 million outstanding letter of credit to back the Company's obligation to 
pay for goods or services to a supplier. This availability will fluctuate over time, and generally monthly, due to a variety of factors including our 
overall mix of sales and resulting accounts receivable with international and domestic customers, U.S. governmental agencies and a few 
individual customer accounts which may result in high concentrations of accounts receivable as compared to the overall level of our account 
receivable. See Note 16 "Credit Facility" in our audited financial statements in this Form 10-K for further information on the credit facility.  

Guarantees and Indemnifications —We have issued financial guarantees to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to government 
authorities for VAT and other taxes and to various other parties to support payments in advance of future delivery on goods and services. The 
majority of our financial guarantees have terms of one year or more. The maximum potential obligation under financial guarantees at June 27, 
2014 was $4.6 million , for which we have $4.5 million of assets held as collateral. The full amount of the assets held as collateral are included 
in short-term and long-term restricted cash and cash equivalents in the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets.  

Additionally, we enter into standard indemnification agreements with our customers and certain other business partners in the ordinary 
course of business. These agreements include provisions for indemnifying the customer against any claim brought by a third party to the extent 
any such claim alleges that our product infringes a patent, copyright or trademark, or misappropriates a trade secret, of that third party. The 
agreements generally limit the scope of the available remedies in a variety of industry-standard methods, including, but not limited to, product 
usage and geography-based limitations, a right to control the defense or settlement of any claim, and a right to replace or modify the infringing 
products to make them non-infringing. We have not incurred significant expenses related to these indemnification agreements and no material 
claims for such indemnifications were outstanding as of June 27, 2014 . As a result, we believe the estimated fair value of these indemnification 
agreements, if any, to be immaterial and, accordingly, no liability has been recorded with respect to such indemnifications as of June 27, 2014 .  

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements —Our credit facility includes a $10.0 million letter of credit subfacility. As of June 27, 2014 we have a 
$2.0 million outstanding letter of credit to back our obligation to pay or perform when required to do so pursuant to the requirements of an 
underlying agreement or the provision of goods or services to a supplier.  

We had no other off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 27, 2014 .  
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates  

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated financial statements, which 
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these 
financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial 
statements. We periodically evaluate our material estimates and judgments based on the terms of underlying agreements, the expected course of 
development, historical experience and other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. However, actual future results may 
vary from our estimates.  

We believe that the following accounting policies are significantly affected by critical accounting estimates and that they are both highly 
important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results and require difficult management judgments and assumptions about matters that 
are inherently uncertain. Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements in Part II Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K describes the 
significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these significant accounting policies 
are considered to be critical accounting policies.  

Our critical accounting policies and estimates are as follows:  

Revenue Recognition . We enter into sales contracts to deliver multiple products and/or services. A typical multiple-element 
arrangement includes product, third-party product, customer support services and professional services. We also sell software products as part of 
certain multiple-element arrangements. In addition to selling multiple-element arrangements, we also sell certain products and services on a 
stand-alone basis.  

Product revenue. We recognize revenue from sales of products, primarily hardware, when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, 
shipment has occurred and title has transferred, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably 
assured. In arrangements where a formal acceptance of products or services is required by the customer, revenue is recognized upon meeting 
such acceptance criteria.  

Service revenue . Service revenue includes customer support services, primarily hardware maintenance services and professional services, 
which include consulting services and product integration services. Professional services are offered under time and material or fixed fee-based 
contracts or as part of multiple-element arrangements. Professional services revenue is recognized as services are completed.  

Multiple-element arrangements. Our multiple-element arrangements include products, customer support services and/or professional 
services. Certain multiple-element arrangements include software products integrated with the hardware (“Hardware Appliance”) and we 
provide unspecified software updates and enhancements to the software through our service contracts.  

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") amended the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) as summarized in 
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2009-14, Software (Topic 985): Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements and 
ASU No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements . ASU 2009-14 amends industry specific 
revenue accounting guidance for software and software related transactions to exclude from its scope tangible products containing software 
components and non-software components that function together to deliver the product's essential functionality. ASU 2009-13 amends the 
accounting for multiple-element arrangements to provide guidance on how the deliverables in an arrangement should be separated and eliminates 
the use of the residual method. ASU 2009-13 also requires an entity to allocate revenue using the relative selling price method. The standard 
establishes a hierarchy of evidence to determine the stand-alone selling price of a deliverable based on vendor-specific objective evidence 
("VSOE"), third-party evidence ("TPE") and the best estimate of selling price ("BESP"). If VSOE is available, it would be used to determine the 
selling price of a deliverable. If VSOE is not available, the entity would determine whether TPE is available. If so, TPE must be used to 
determine the selling price. If TPE is not available, then the BESP would be used.  

•  Revenue recognition; 

•  Share-based compensation; 

•  Restructuring reserve; 

•  Inventory valuation; 

•  Impairment of intangibles and long-lived assets; 

•  Retirement benefit obligations; and 

•  Accounting for income taxes. 
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We adopted the provisions of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 on a prospective basis for new and materially modified arrangements 
originating after June 25, 2010. Pursuant to the guidance of ASU 2009-13, when a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as 
products, software, customer support services, and/or professional services, we allocate revenue to each element based on the aforementioned 
selling price hierarchy. In multiple element arrangements where software is essential to the functionality of the products, revenue is allocated to 
each separate unit of accounting for each of the non-software deliverables and to the software deliverables as a group using the relative selling 
prices of each of the deliverables in the arrangement based on the aforementioned selling price hierarchy. If the arrangement contains more than 
one software deliverable, the arrangement consideration allocated to the software deliverables as a group is then recognized as one unit of 
accounting using the guidance for recognizing software revenue.  

We evaluate each deliverable in an arrangement to determine whether they represent separate units of accounting. The delivered item 
constitutes a separate unit of accounting when it has standalone value and there are no customer-negotiated refunds or return rights for the 
delivered elements. The Company's Hardware Appliances are sold on a stand-alone basis and customers are able to sell the Hardware Appliances 
to other buyers; accordingly, the Company has concluded that its Hardware Appliances have stand-alone value. Allocation of the consideration is 
determined at arrangement inception on the basis of each unit's relative selling price. We limit the amount of revenue recognition for delivered 
product elements to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services, future performance obligations or subject to 
customer-specified return or refund privileges.  

We have not consistently established VSOE of fair value of any of our products or services. In addition, we have not established TPE as 
there are no similar or interchangeable competitor products or services in standalone sales to similarly situated customers. Therefore, revenue 
from our multiple-element arrangements is allocated based on the BESP. The objective of BESP is to determine the price at which we would 
transact a sale if a product or service were sold on a stand-alone basis. We determine BESP for product or service by considering multiple factors 
including, but not limited to, overall market conditions, including geographic or regional specific market factors, profit objectives and pricing 
practices.  

For sales contracts entered into prior to fiscal 2011, we recognize revenue pursuant to the previous guidance for multiple-element 
arrangements. For arrangements which include Hardware Appliances or arrangements where the undelivered element is post contract customer 
support ("PCS"), we have not established VSOE of fair value of the element. Therefore, revenue and related cost of revenue from these 
arrangements have been deferred and recognized ratably over the PCS period as combined product and service revenue in the consolidated 
statements of operations.  

Share-Based Compensation. We use the fair value method of accounting for share-based compensation arrangements, including grants of 
employee stock awards and purchases under an employee stock purchase plan. The fair values of our unvested stock awards are calculated based 
on the fair value of our common stock at the dates of grant, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which requires the input of subjective 
assumptions. These assumptions include estimating the length of time employees will retain their vested stock awards before exercising them, 
the estimated volatility of our common stock over the expected term and the number of awards that will ultimately not vest (i.e. forfeitures).  

Our assumptions on the estimated length of time employees will retain their vested stock awards before exercising them is based on 
examining our historical pattern of option exercises to determine if there were any discernible activity patterns based on certain employee 
populations. From this analysis, we identified two employee populations to which to apply the Black-Scholes model. We analyzed SGI's 
historical forfeiture rate and calculated forfeiture rate using a weighted average of the actual forfeitures as a percentage of average unvested 
options. We determined the implied volatility based on historical volatility of SGI's common stock. Prior to the third quarter of fiscal 2012, we 
utilized the average of historical volatility and volatility calculated based on actively traded options on SGI common stock. The estimated fair 
value of stock awards is expensed on a straight-line basis over the expected term of the grant. Compensation expense for purchases under the 
employee stock purchase plan is recognized based on the estimated fair value of the common stock during each offering period and the 
percentage of the purchase discount.  

The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent our best estimates, but these estimates involve 
inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. Changes to any of these assumptions could have a material impact on our 
reported share-based compensation expense.  
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Restructuring Reserve. In recent years, we have recorded accruals in connection with our restructuring programs. These accruals include 
estimates of employee separation costs, fixed asset write-offs and the settlements of contractual obligations, including lease terminations 
resulting from our actions. Accruals associated with employee termination costs are accrued when it is determined that a liability has been 
incurred, which is generally when individuals have been notified of their termination dates and expected severance payments. Fixed asset write-
offs primarily consist of equipment, leasehold improvements, and furnitures and fixtures associated with lease terminations, and are based on an 
estimate of the amounts and timing of future cash flows related to the expected future remaining use and ultimate sale or disposal of the 
equipment and furniture. Accruals associated with vacated facilities are accrued when we have vacated the premises. Our estimates may need to 
be adjusted upon the occurrence of future events, which include, but are not limited to, changes in the estimated time to enter into a sublease, the 
sublease terms and the sublease rates. Due to the extended contractual obligations of certain of these leases and the inherent volatility of the 
commercial real estate markets, future adjustments to these vacated facilities accruals could have a material impact on our results of operations 
and financial position.  

Inventory Valuation. We value our inventories at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis. We write 
down obsolete inventory or inventory in excess of our estimated usage to its estimated market value less cost to sell, if less than its cost. Inherent 
in our estimates of market value in determining inventory valuation are estimates related to future demand and technological obsolescence of our 
products. Any significant unanticipated changes in demand or technological developments could have a significant impact on the value of our 
inventories and our results of operations and financial position could be materially affected.  

Impairment of Intangibles and Long-Lived Assets. We assess the carrying values of long-lived assets, including our intangible assets with 
finite lives, for possible impairment when we identify events or when we believe that circumstances may have changed to indicate that the 
carrying amount of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable. Such events or changes in circumstances may include the significant under-
performance relative to historical or projected future operating results, significant changes in the strategy for our overall business, 
discontinuation of a product or product line, a sudden or consistent decline in the forecast for a product, changes in technology or in the way an 
asset is being used, or an adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of 
the estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. Such 
impairment loss would be measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value. Cash flow assumptions used in 
calculating the fair value are based on historical and forecasted revenue, operating costs and other relevant factors. This analysis requires 
judgment with respect to many factors, including future cash flows, changes in technology, the continued success of product lines and future 
volume and revenue and expense growth rates. If our estimate of future operating results changes, or if there are changes to other assumptions, 
the estimate of the fair value of our long-lived assets could change significantly. Such change could result in impairment charges in future 
periods, which could have a material impact on our results of operations and financial position.  

Retirement Benefit Obligations. Our defined benefit obligations and plan assets are dependent on various assumptions. Our major 
assumptions relate primarily to discount rates, rates of compensation growth and expected long-term rates of return on plan assets. Our discount 
rate assumption is based on current investment yields of a portfolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments that would produce cash 
flows sufficient in timing and amount to settle projected future benefits. Expected long-term rate of return on assets is determined using the 
projected long-term rate of return estimated by the insurance company for its general fund for the defined benefit plan in Germany and based on 
historical portfolio results and target asset allocations, as well as the projected long-term rate of return based on the Japanese market for the 
defined benefit plan in Japan. The weighted-average rates used are set forth in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8 
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. For fiscal 2014 , the effect of rate changes in these assumptions does not result in a material change in the 
net periodic benefit cost.  

Accounting for Income Taxes. The determination of our tax provision is subject to judgments and estimates. The carrying value of our net 
deferred tax assets, which is comprised primarily of future tax deductions, net operating loss carryovers and tax credit carryovers, is subject to 
significant judgment as to whether it is more likely than not our deferred tax assets will be realized. In determining whether the realization of 
these deferred tax assets may be impaired, we evaluate both positive and negative evidence. As of June 27, 2014 , we have recorded a valuation 
allowance against the majority of our net deferred tax assets. Based on all available evidence, on a jurisdictional basis, including our historical 
operating results, and the uncertainty of predicting our future income, the valuation allowance reduces our deferred tax assets to an amount that 
is more likely than not to be realized. The valuation allowance is attributable to U.S. federal, state and certain foreign deferred tax assets 
primarily consisting of net operating loss carryovers, tax credit carryovers, accrued expenses and other temporary differences.  
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We recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on a two-step process. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition 
by determining solely on its technical merits of the law whether the more likely than not threshold is met. If the first step is satisfied, the second 
step requires us to estimate and measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement 
with the taxing authorities. We evaluate these uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis, based on factors including, but not limited to, changes 
in facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled issues under audit, new audit activity and lapses in the statutes of limitations on 
assessment. A change in recognition or measurement would result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision 
in the period that such event occurs and could have a material impact on our results of operations and financial position.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description of recent 
accounting pronouncements, including our expected adoption dates and estimated effects on our results of operations, financial condition and 
cash flows.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of  
Silicon Graphics International Corp.  
Milpitas, CA  
 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Graphics International Corp. and subsidiaries (the 
"Company") as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders' 
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 27, 2014. These financial statements and financial statement schedule 
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial 
statement schedule based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Silicon Graphics 
International Corp. and subsidiaries at June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended June 27, 2014, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a 
whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.  

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of June 27, 2014, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated 
Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated September 8, 2014 
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.  

 

 

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

San Jose, CA  
September 8, 2014  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)  

   

See accompanying notes.  
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   Fiscal Year Ended  

   
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Revenue                 
Product  $ 353,267     $ 530,625     $ 479,530  
Service  154,366     172,883     191,274  
Combined product and service  22,313     63,719     82,183  

Total revenue (Note 2)  529,946     767,227     752,987  
Cost of revenue                 

Product  293,115     435,288     398,272  
Service  84,312     103,469     108,065  
Combined product and service  14,112     39,418     52,833  

Total cost of revenue  391,539     578,175     559,170  
Gross profit  138,407     189,052     193,817  
Operating expenses:                 

Research and development  63,526     60,611     62,356  
Sales and marketing  72,681     78,730     88,414  
General and administrative  55,796     54,317     62,021  
Restructuring  1,251     9,048     2,469  

Total operating expenses  193,254     202,706     215,260  
Loss from operations  (54,847 )     (13,654 )     (21,443 )  

Interest expense, net  (117 )     (311 )     (297 )  

Other income (expense), net  2,162     (1,478 )     (1,720 )  

Total other income (expense), net  2,045     (1,789 )     (2,017 )  

Loss before income taxes  (52,802 )     (15,443 )     (23,460 )  

Income tax provision (benefit)  12     (12,623 )     1,001  
Net loss  $ (52,814 )     $ (2,820 )     $ (24,461 )  

            

Basic and diluted net loss per share:  $ (1.54 )     $ (0.09 )     $ (0.77 )  

            

Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share:  34,260     32,909     31,653  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  
(In thousands)  
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      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014    
June 28,  

2013    
June 29,  

2012  

              

Net loss     $ (52,814 )    $ (2,820 )    $ (24,461 )  

Other components of comprehensive loss:                  

Unrecognized gain (loss) on defined benefit plans, net of zero tax     (940 )    65    (2,150 )  

   Change in unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments, net of zero tax     (1,738 )    —   — 
   Unrealized losses on derivative instruments reclassified into earnings, net of zero tax     1,651    —   — 
   Cumulative translation adjustment     (710 )    (736 )    97  
Other comprehensive loss     (1,737 )    (671 )    (2,053 )  

Total comprehensive loss     $ (54,551 )    $ (3,491 )    $ (26,514 )  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)  

   

See accompanying notes.  
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June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

ASSETS           

Current assets:           

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 109,297     $ 175,181  
Current portion of restricted cash  2,273     531  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $287 and $1,074 as of June 27, 
2014 and June 28, 2013, respectively  72,076     59,842  
Inventories  47,354     61,770  
Deferred cost of revenue  12,180     21,204  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  19,802     14,094  

Total current assets  262,982     332,622  
Non-current portion of restricted cash  2,177     2,853  
Property and equipment, net  34,584     26,170  
Goodwill and intangible assets, net  13,207     6,174  
Non-current portion of deferred cost of revenue  7,592     7,281  
Other assets  44,396     32,753  
Total assets  $ 364,938     $ 407,853  

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY           

Current liabilities:           

Accounts payable  $ 53,128     $ 51,531  
Accrued compensation  20,049     28,504  
Current portion of deferred revenue  78,675     86,357  
Other current liabilities  53,660     35,364  

Total current liabilities  205,512     201,756  
Non-current portion of deferred revenue  45,422     50,362  
Long-term income taxes payable  10,114     10,149  
Retirement benefit obligations  12,931     11,542  
Other non-current liabilities  8,807     3,790  

Total liabilities  282,786     277,599  
Commitments and contingencies (Note 24)       

Stockholders’ equity:           

Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share; 12,000 shares authorized; none outstanding  —    — 
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share; 120,000 shares authorized; 36,173 shares and 
34,795 shares issued and outstanding at June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013, respectively  36     35  
Additional paid-in capital  527,525     510,092  
Treasury stock, at cost (1,844 shares at June 27, 2014 and 946 at June 28, 2013)  (18,677 )    (7,692 ) 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (3,888 )    (2,151 ) 

Accumulated deficit  (422,844 )    (370,030 ) 

Total stockholders’ equity  82,152     130,254  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 364,938     $ 407,853  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  
(In thousands, except share amounts)  

 

 
 

See accompanying notes.  
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     Common Stock    Treasury Stock    Additional  
Paid-in  
Capital    

Accumulated  
Other  

Comprehensive  
Income (Loss)    

Accumulated  
Deficit    

Total  
Stockholders’  

Equity       Shares    Amount    Shares    Amount    

Balance at June 24, 2011    31,850,239    $ 31    (748,795 )    $ (4,912 )    $ 470,343    $ 573    $ (342,749 )    $ 123,286  
Net loss    —   —   —   —   —   —   (24,461 )    (24,461 )  

Other comprehensive loss    —   —   —   —   —   (2,053 )    —   (2,053 )  

Issuance of common stock under employee stock 
options and employee stock purchase plan, net of 
taxes    704,792    2    —   —   4,057    —   —   4,059  
Restricted common stock    167,975    —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Share-based compensation in connection with 
employee stock option plans and other    —   —   —   —   10,061    —   —   10,061  

Balance at June 29, 2012    32,723,006    33    (748,795 )    (4,912 )    484,461    (1,480 )    (367,210 )    110,892  
Net loss    —   —   —   —   —   —   (2,820 )    (2,820 )  

Other comprehensive loss    —   —   —   —   —   (671 )    —   (671 )  

Issuance of common stock under employee stock 
options and employee stock purchase plan, net of 
taxes    1,820,629    2    —   —   15,531    —   —   15,533  
Repurchase of treasury stock    —   —   (197,622 )    (2,780 )    —   —   —   (2,780 )  

Restricted common stock    251,705    —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Share-based compensation in connection with 
employee stock option plans and other    —   —   —   —   10,100    —   —   10,100  
Balance at June 28, 2013    34,795,340    35    (946,417 )    (7,692 )    510,092    (2,151 )    (370,030 )    130,254  
Net loss    —   —   —   —   —   —   (52,814 )    (52,814 )  

Other comprehensive loss    —   —   —   —   —   (1,737 )    —   (1,737 )  

Issuance of common stock under employee stock 
options and employee stock purchase plan, net of 
taxes    1,033,273    1    —   —   5,454    —   —   5,455  
Repurchase of treasury stock    —   —   (897,400 )    (10,985 )    —   —   —   (10,985 )  

Restricted common stock    344,177    —   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Share-based compensation in connection with 
employee stock option plans and other    —   —   —   —   11,979    —   —   11,979  

Balance at June 27, 2014    36,172,790    $ 36    (1,843,817 )    $ (18,677 )    $ 527,525    $ (3,888 )    $ (422,844 )    $ 82,152  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
(In thousands)  

   Fiscal Year Ended  

   
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:                 
Net loss  $ (52,814 )     $ (2,820 )     $ (24,461 )  

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:                 
Depreciation and amortization  14,549     14,269     14,574  
Share-based compensation  11,979     10,100     10,061  
Release of liability for unrecognized tax benefits  —    (10,306 )     — 
Gain on sale of investment  (1,717 )     —    — 
Gain on pension plan curtailment  —    —    (1,265 )  

Loss on settlement of pension plan  —    39     993  
Impairment on investments and long-lived assets  4,554     189     527  
Deferred income taxes  (191 )     (473 )     1,655  
Other non-cash items, net  644     1,004     1,030  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:                 

Accounts receivable  (13,042 )     35,292     10,102  
Inventories  10,088     54,263     (44,587 )  

Deferred cost of revenue  8,396     36,258     37,342  
Prepaid expenses and other assets  (5,794 )     3,712     (2,191 )  

Other assets  (1,066 )     (1,703 )     2,986  
Accounts payable  2,215     (17,319 )     (2,519 )  

Accrued compensation  (8,384 )     5,078     (5,280 )  

Other current liabilities  1,893     (1,063 )     (688 )  

Deferred revenue  (14,582 )     (46,348 )     (36,486 )  

Income taxes payable  (147 )     (1,287 )     (3,111 )  

Other operating liabilities  10,339     (2,060 )     (5,510 )  

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities  (33,080 )     76,825     (46,828 )  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES AND ACQUISITIONS:                 
Purchases of property and equipment  (16,762 )     (3,847 )     (5,461 )  

Proceeds from sale of investment  1,717     —    — 
Cash used in acquisition, net  (9,200 )     —    — 
Other investing activities  (2,066 )     2,287     (2,239 )  

Net cash used in investing activities and acquisitions  (26,311 )     (1,560 )     (7,700 )  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:                 
Payment of credit facility  —    (15,300 )     — 
Proceeds from draw-down on credit facility  —    —    15,000  
Funding of restricted stock units withheld for taxes  (2,685 )     (2,080 )     (1,126 )  

Purchase of treasury stock  (10,985 )     (2,780 )     — 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options  3,858     14,169     1,920  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan  4,282     3,444     3,265  

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities  (5,530 )     (2,547 )     19,059  
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (963 )     (2,388 )     452  

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (65,884 )     70,330     (35,017 )  

Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period  175,181     104,851     139,868  
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period  $ 109,297     $ 175,181     $ 104,851  
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION                 

Income taxes refunded (paid)  $ 114     $ 937     $ (310 )  



See accompanying notes.  
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         Cash paid for interest  $ 136     $ 645     $ 646  
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES                 

Property and equipment purchases in accounts payable  $ 368     $ 559     $ 685  
Inventory transfers to property and equipment  $ 2,372     $ 4,318     $ 2,003  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS  

Silicon Graphics International Corp. ("SGI" or the "Company", "we", "us" or "our") is a global leader in high performance computing 
(HPC). We are focused on helping customers solve their most demanding business and technology challenges by delivering high performance 
computing and data analytics solutions that accelerate time to discovery, innovation and profitability.  

We develop, market and sell a broad line of low cost, mid-range and high-end scale-out and scale-up servers, enterprise-class storage 
hardware, differentiating software and designed to order solutions for large-scale deployments, coupled with global support and highly 
experienced professional services. SGI solutions are designed to provide greater flexibility and scalability, with lower total cost of ownership.  

The Company's solutions are utilized by scientific, business and government communities to fulfill highly data intensive application needs 
in petascale environments. Delivering industry-leading computing power and fast and efficient data movement, both within the computing 
system and to and from large-scale data storage installations, SGI systems enable customers to access, analyze, transform, manage and visualize 
information in real and near real-time. The vertical markets the Company serves include the federal government, defense and strategic systems, 
weather and climate, physical sciences, life sciences, energy (including oil and gas), aerospace and automotive, internet, financial services, 
media and entertainment and business intelligence and data analytics. The Company's headquarters is located in Milpitas, California and its 
primary manufacturing facility is located in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin.  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal, recurring adjustments that, 
in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations for the periods presented.  

Fiscal Year-End. The Company has a 52 or 53 -week fiscal year ending on the last Friday in June. Fiscal year 2014 was comprised of 52 
weeks and ended on June 27, 2014 . Fiscal year 2013 and fiscal year 2012 were comprised of 52 and 53 weeks and ended on June 28, 2013 and 
June 29, 2012 , respectively. Included in this report are the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 , the 
consolidated statements of operations, statement of comprehensive (loss) income, statements of stockholders’ equity and statements of cash 
flows for the three fiscal years ended June 27, 2014 ("fiscal 2014 "), June 28, 2013 ("fiscal 2013 ") and June 29, 2012 ("fiscal 2012 ").  

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries. All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.  

Estimates and Assumptions. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenue and expenses as presented in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Management bases its estimates 
on historical experience and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable. Although these estimates are based on management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions that may impact the Company in the future, actual results may be different from the estimates. The 
Company’s critical accounting policies are those that affect the Company’s financial statements materially and involve difficult, subjective or 
complex judgments by management and include revenue recognition, share-based compensation, restructuring reserve, inventory valuation, 
impairment of intangibles and long-lived assets, retirement benefit obligations and accounting for income taxes.  

Revenue Recognition . The Company enters into sales contracts to deliver multiple products and/or services. A typical multiple-element 
arrangement includes product, customer support services and professional services. The Company also sells software products as part of certain 
multiple-element arrangements. In addition to selling multiple-element arrangements, the Company also sells certain products and services on a 
stand-alone basis.  

Product revenue. The Company recognizes revenue from sales of products, primarily hardware, when persuasive evidence of an 
arrangement exists, shipment has occurred and title has transferred, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting 
receivable is reasonably assured. In arrangements where a formal acceptance of products or services is required by the customer, revenue is 
recognized upon meeting such acceptance criteria.  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)  
 
 

Service revenue. Service revenue includes customer support services, primarily hardware maintenance services and professional services, 
which include consulting services and product integration services. Hardware maintenance services is deferred and recognized over the 
contractual period or as services are rendered to the customer. Professional services are offered under time and material or fixed fee-based 
contracts or as part of multiple-element arrangements. Professional services revenue is recognized as services are completed.  

Multiple-element arrangements. The Company's multiple-element arrangements include products, customer support services and/or 
professional services. Certain multiple-element arrangements include software products integrated with the hardware (“Hardware Appliance”) 
and the Company provides unspecified software updates and enhancements to the software through its service contracts. For arrangements which 
do not include Hardware Appliances, the Company recognizes revenue from the sale of products without regard to the completion of services as 
product sales are not dependent on services to be functional.  

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") amended the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) as summarized in 
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2009-14, Software (Topic 985): Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements and 
ASU No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements . ASU 2009-14 amends industry specific 
revenue accounting guidance for software and software related transactions to exclude from its scope tangible products containing software 
components and non-software components that function together to deliver the product's essential functionality. ASU 2009-13 amends the 
accounting for multiple-element arrangements to provide guidance on how the deliverables in an arrangement should be separated and eliminates 
the use of the residual method. ASU 2009-13 also requires an entity to allocate revenue using the relative selling price method. The standard 
establishes a hierarchy of evidence to determine the stand-alone selling price of a deliverable based on vendor-specific objective evidence 
("VSOE"), third-party evidence ("TPE") and the best estimate of selling price ("BESP"). If VSOE is available, it would be used to determine the 
selling price of a deliverable. If VSOE is not available, the entity would determine whether TPE is available. If so, TPE must be used to 
determine the selling price. If TPE is not available, then the BESP would be used.  

The Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 on a prospective basis for new and materially modified 
arrangements originating after June 25, 2010. Pursuant to the guidance of ASU 2009-13, when a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, 
such as products, software, customer support services and/or professional services, the Company allocates revenue to each element based on the 
aforementioned selling price hierarchy. In multiple element arrangements where software is essential to the functionality of the products, 
revenue is allocated to each separate unit of accounting for each of the non-software deliverables and to the software deliverables as a group 
using the relative selling prices of each of the deliverables in the arrangement based on the aforementioned selling price hierarchy. If the 
arrangement contains more than one software deliverable, the arrangement consideration allocated to the software deliverables as a group is then 
recognized as one unit of accounting using the guidance for recognizing software revenue.  

The Company evaluates each deliverable in an arrangement to determine whether they represent separate units of accounting. The 
delivered item constitutes a separate unit of accounting when it has standalone value and there are no customer-negotiated refunds or return 
rights for the delivered elements. The Company's Hardware Appliances are sold on a stand-alone basis and customers are able to sell the 
Hardware Appliances to other buyers; accordingly, the Company has concluded that its Hardware Appliances have stand-alone value. Allocation 
of the consideration is determined at arrangement inception on the basis of each unit's relative selling price. The Company limits the amount of 
revenue recognition for delivered product elements to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services, future 
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges.  

The Company has not consistently established VSOE of fair value of any of its products or services. In addition, the Company has not 
established TPE as there are no similar or interchangeable competitor products or services in standalone sales to similarly situated customers. 
Therefore, revenue from these multiple-element arrangements is allocated based on the BESP. The objective of BESP is to determine the price at 
which the Company would transact a sale if a product or service were sold on a stand-alone basis. The Company determines BESP for product or 
service by considering multiple factors including, but not limited to, overall market conditions, including geographic or regional specific market 
factors, profit objectives and pricing practices.  

For sales contracts entered into prior to fiscal 2011, the Company recognizes revenue pursuant to the previous guidance for multiple-
element arrangements. For arrangements which include Hardware Appliances or arrangements where the undelivered element is post contract 
customer support ("PCS"), the Company had not established VSOE of fair value of the element. Therefore, revenue and related cost of revenue 
from these arrangements have been deferred and recognized ratably over the PCS period as combined product and service revenue in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Revenue from those arrangements is reported as "Combined product and service" in the 
Consolidated Statement of Operations.  
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Shipping and Handling Costs. Shipping and handling costs are classified as a component of cost of revenue. Customer payments of 
shipping and handling costs are recorded as revenue.  

Research and Development. Costs related to research, design and development of Company products are charged to research and 
development expense as incurred. Software development costs are required to be capitalized when a product’s technological feasibility has been 
established through the date the product is available for general release to customers. The Company has not capitalized any software 
development costs, as technological feasibility is generally not established until a working model is completed, at which time substantially all 
development is complete.  

Advertising. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. Advertising expenses were immaterial in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 .  

Share-Based Compensation. The Company uses the fair value method of accounting for share-based compensation arrangements. Share-
based compensation arrangements currently include stock options granted, restricted shares issued (“RSAs”), restricted stock unit awards granted 
(“RSUs”), time-based RSUs ("executive time-based RSUs") and performance-based RSUs (“executive PSUs”) and purchases of common stock 
by the Company’s employees under the employee stock purchase plan ("ESPP"). The fair values of stock options and ESPP awards are estimated 
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of RSUs and PSUs are determined based on the fair value of the stock on the date 
of grant. The estimated fair value of stock options, RSUs and PSUs is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting term of the grant. 
Compensation expense for purchases under the ESPP is recognized based on the estimated fair value of the common stock during each offering 
period and the percentage of the purchase discount.  

Share-based compensation expense for stock options, RSUs, PSUs and ESPP awards has been reduced for estimated forfeitures so that 
compensation expense is based on options, RSUs, PSUs and ESPP awards that are ultimately expected to vest. The Company’s estimated annual 
forfeiture rates are based on its historical forfeiture experience.  

Restructuring Expense. The Company recognizes restructuring expense resulting from significant reductions in headcount, excess 
manufacturing or administrative facilities that the Company plans to close, or consolidate and from other exit activities. In connection with exit 
activities, the Company records restructuring charges for employee termination costs, long-lived asset impairments, costs related to leased 
facilities abandoned or subleased and other exit-related costs. These charges are incurred pursuant to formal plans developed and approved by 
management. The recognition of restructuring expense requires management to make judgments and estimates regarding the nature, timing and 
amount of costs associated with the planned exit activity, including estimating sublease income and the fair value, less selling costs of property 
and equipment to be disposed of. Estimates of future liabilities may change, requiring the Company to record additional restructuring expense or 
to reduce the amount of liabilities previously recorded. At the end of each reporting period, the Company evaluates the remaining accrued 
balances to ensure their adequacy, that no excess accruals are retained and that the utilization of the provisions is for the intended purpose in 
accordance with developed exit plans. In the event circumstances change and the provision is no longer required, the provision is reversed. There 
were no significant reversals or long-lived asset impairments related to our restructuring actions in any periods presented.  

Foreign Currency Transactions. The functional currency of the Company's foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar, except for its Japanese 
subsidiary. Accordingly, all monetary assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries, except for the Japanese subsidiary, are re-measured into 
U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the reporting date. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical rates and revenue 
and expenses are translated at exchange rates in effect during each reporting period. The foreign currency gains and losses are included as a 
component of other income (expense), net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  

The Company uses the Japanese yen as the functional currency for its Japanese subsidiary. Assets and liabilities of the Japanese subsidiary 
with Japanese yen are translated to U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dates. Revenue and expenses are translated at 
average exchange rates in effect during the period. Translation adjustments are included in stockholders' equity in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheet as a component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income.  

Comprehensive (Loss) Income. Comprehensive (loss) income consists of two components, net loss and other comprehensive (loss) 
income. Other comprehensive (loss) income refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are 
recorded as an element of shareholders’ equity but are excluded from net loss. The Company’s other comprehensive (loss) income consists of 
unrealized gains and losses on investments categorized as available-for-sale, unrecognized gain (loss) related to defined benefit pension plans, 
foreign currency translation adjustments from those subsidiaries not using the U.S. dollar as the functional currency and unrealized gains and 
losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges.    
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company measures its financial instruments in its consolidated financial statements at fair 
value. The Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when developing fair value 
measurements. When available, the Company uses quoted market prices to measure fair value (Level 1). If market prices are not available, fair 
value measurement is based upon models that use primarily market-based or independently-sourced market parameters (Level 2). If market 
observable inputs for model-based valuation techniques are not available, the Company makes judgments about assumptions market participants 
would use in estimating the fair value of the financial instrument (Level 3). Carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 
accounts payable, accrued liabilities and credit facility due within one year approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature and 
liquidity of these financial instruments.  

Derivative Instruments. Derivatives that are not designated as hedges are adjusted to fair value through earnings. If the derivative is 
designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the contracts’ gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value is recognized in 
accumulated other comprehensive income. Amounts associated with cash flow hedges are reclassified and recognized in income when the 
forecasted transaction occurs or it becomes probable the forecasted transaction will not occur. The ineffective portion of the hedge is recognized 
in earnings immediately.  

As a result of our significant international operations, we are subject to risks associated with fluctuating exchange rates. We use derivative 
financial instruments, principally foreign currency exchange forward contracts, to attempt to minimize the impact of exchange rate movements 
on our subsidiaries’ and consolidated balance sheets and operating results. Factors that could have an impact on the effectiveness of our hedging 
program include the accuracy of forecasts and the volatility of foreign currency markets. These programs reduce, but do not entirely eliminate, 
the impact of currency exchange movements. The maturities of these instruments are generally less than one year.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents . The Company classifies highly liquid investments with remaining contractual maturity at date of purchase of 
three months or less as cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of 
these financial instruments, the carrying values of these assets approximate fair value.  

Restricted Cash. S hort-term and long-term restricted cash consist primarily of cash deposits with banks. The cash deposits are pledged as 
collateral for various guarantees issued to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to government authorities for value-added tax (“VAT”) 
and other taxes and certain vendors to support payments in advance of delivery of goods and services. The deposits are classified as short-term 
or long-term depending on the nature of the period of guarantee.  

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Accounts receivable have been 
reduced by an estimated allowance for doubtful accounts, which is management’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in 
existing accounts receivable. Among other factors, management determines the allowance based on customer specific experience and the aging 
of the receivables.  

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily 
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality 
financial institutions. The Company derives a significant portion of its revenue from a limited number of individual customers spread globally. 
The Company also derives revenue from several large customers in different industries and geographies. If the financial condition or results of 
operations of any one of the large customers deteriorates substantially, the Company’s operating results could be adversely affected. To reduce 
credit risk, management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of significant customers. The Company generally does 
not require collateral and maintains reserves for probable credit losses on customer accounts.  

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. The 
Company assesses the value of inventory on a quarterly basis based upon estimates about future demand and actual usage. To the extent that the 
Company determines that it is holding excess or obsolete inventory, it writes down the value of its inventory to its net realizable value. Such 
write downs are reflected in cost of revenue. If the inventory value is written down to its net realizable value and subsequently there is an 
increased demand for the inventory at a higher value, the increased value of the inventory is not realized until the inventory is sold either as a 
component of a system or as separate inventory.  

In addition, the Company records a liability for firm, noncancelable and unconditional purchase commitments with contract manufacturers 
and suppliers for quantities in excess of future demand forecasts consistent with the Company's valuation of excess and obsolete inventory.  

The Company maintains a long-term service inventory of parts to support maintenance arrangements. The long-term service inventory is 
valued based on assumptions about product life cycles, historical usage, current production status and installed base and is periodically tested for 
impairment. The long-term service inventory is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
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Sales and Value Added Taxes. The Company collects various types of taxes from its customers that are assessed by governmental 
authorities, which are imposed on and concurrent with revenue-producing transactions. Such taxes are recorded on a net basis and are not 
included in revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Equipment and 
capitalized software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally two to seven years. Buildings are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life, generally 30 to 32 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the 
straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, or the original lease term.  

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred and significant improvements and betterments that substantially enhance the 
life of an asset are capitalized.  

Impairment of Long-lived Assets. The Company reviews the carrying values of long-lived assets other than goodwill for indicators of 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of 
long-lived assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to 
be generated by the assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the 
carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value.  

We review our goodwill for impairment annually in the fourth quarter of our fiscal year, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. 
Impairment of goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level by comparing the reporting unit's carrying amount, including goodwill, to the fair 
value of the reporting unit. The fair values of the reporting units are estimated using an income approach that uses discounted cash flows. If the 
carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure the 
amount of impairment loss. We have three reporting units for which we assess goodwill for impairment.  

Intangible Assets. Intangible assets with finite lives consist of customer relationships, customer backlog, purchased technology, 
trademarks and trade names acquired in business combinations. Intangible assets with finite lives are carried at cost, less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally two to 
five years, except for the customer backlog intangible asset, which is amortized as acceptance is received for a particular customer order, 
reflecting the use of the asset. Amortization expense is primarily recognized within cost of revenue and sales and marketing on the consolidated 
statement of operations.  

Warranty Reserve . The warranty period for the Company’s products is generally one to three years. Estimated future warranty costs are 
expensed as a cost of revenue. The warranty accrual is based upon historical experience and is affected by actual product failure rates, material 
usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting the product failure. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of the warranty 
reserve and adjusts the amount as considered necessary. The short-term portion of the warranty reserve is included in other current liabilities and 
the long-term portion of the warranty reserve is recorded in non-current liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Deferred Revenue and Deferred Cost of Revenue. Deferred revenue is recorded when products or services provided are invoiced prior to 
completion of the related performance obligations and is recognized as revenue ratably over the PCS period. We more broadly require advance 
and milestone payments for certain larger projects that would otherwise involve a significant lag between payments to our vendors and final 
acceptance of our products. These advance and milestone payments are recorded as deferred revenue and are recognized when all revenue 
recognition criteria have been met. Deferred revenue also includes revenue deferred for arrangements which include hardware appliances or 
arrangements where the undelivered element is PCS for arrangements that were entered into prior to the fiscal 2011 adoption of ASU 2009-13 
and ASU 2009-14.  

Deferred cost of revenue primarily consists of product costs related to revenue deferred in accordance with the Company’s revenue 
recognition policy. Deferred revenue and associated deferred cost of revenue, expected to be realized within one year are classified as current 
liabilities and current assets, respectively, on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Retirement Benefit Obligations. The Company recognizes the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit pension or 
postretirement plan as an asset or liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the funded status are recognized through 
accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, a component of stockholder’s equity, in the year in which the changes occur.  
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Income Taxes. The Company computes income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred income taxes are 
provided for temporary differences between financial reporting basis and tax basis of assets and liabilities and operating loss and tax credit carry 
forwards. A valuation allowance is established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted statutory tax rates expected to be realized in the years in which those temporary differences and 
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards are estimated to be recovered or settled.  

The Company is subject to audits and examinations of tax returns by tax authorities in various jurisdictions, including the Internal Revenue 
Service. The Company regularly assesses the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of the 
provision for income taxes.  

Recently Issued Accounting Standards .  

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” 
which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, “Revenue Recognition” and requires entities to recognize revenue in a way 
that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The amendments in ASU 2014-09 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period, with early application not permitted. This guidance will be effective 
for the Company in fiscal 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the effects, if any, that the adoption of this guidance will have on the 
Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.  

Reporting of Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Component of an Entity. In April 2014, the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standard Update (“ASU”) 2014-08, “Reporting of Discontinued Operations and 
Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity,” which provides a narrower definition of discontinued operations than under existing U.S. 
GAAP. ASU 2014-08 requires that only a disposal of a component of an entity, or a group of components of an entity, that represents a strategic 
shift that has, or will have, a major effect on the reporting entity’s operations and financial results should be reported in the financial statements 
as discontinued operations. ASU 2014-08 also provides guidance on the financial statement presentations and disclosures of discontinued 
operations. The amendments in ASU 2014-08 are effective for all disposals of components of an entity that occur within annual periods 
beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2015, with early 
application permitted. This guidance will be effective during the Company's third quarter of fiscal 2016. The adoption of this standard will not 
have a significant effect on the Company's condensed consolidated statements of operations.  

 

3. ACQUISITION  

Acquisition of FileTek  

On September 30, 2013, the Company acquired certain assets of FileTek, Inc. ("FileTek"), a global provider of High Performance Data 
Analytics storage virtualization, large-scale data management, and active archive solutions. The total purchase price was approximately $9.2 
million in cash. This acquisition expanded the Company's storage solutions by enabling customers to manage data assets efficiently and lower 
the cost and administration of high-volume storage. Under the terms of the agreement, SGI acquired FileTek's StorHouse and Trusted Edge 
software, worldwide customers, engineering team, and services and support resources.  

The acquired assets and assumed liabilities were recorded by the Company at their estimated fair values as part of the Storage segment. 
The Company determined the estimated fair values using estimates and valuations including discounted cash flow and cost approach analyses.  
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The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price to the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed as of the Closing Date (in thousands): 

The fair value of the major components of the intangibles assets acquired and their estimated useful lives is as follows (in thousands): 

Acquisition and integration costs directly related to the acquisition were $0.2 million and were recorded in selling, general and 
administrative expenses.  

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information  

The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations for the Company and FileTek on a 
pro forma basis, as though the companies had been combined as of the beginning of fiscal 2013. The pro forma financial information is 
presented for informational purposes only and may not be indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition 
had taken place at the beginning of fiscal 2013. The pro forma financial information for the periods presented include the business combination 
accounting effect on historical FileTek revenue, amortization and development charges from acquired intangible assets and related tax effects.  

 

4. CONTRACT MANUFACTURING TRANSITION  

In July 2013, the Company selected Jabil Circuit, Inc. ("Jabil") to be its primary global manufacturing services and supply chain 
management provider. The transition to Jabil was expected to be implemented as a “manage in place” model, which utilizes existing SGI 
facilities and personnel. On November 18, 2013, the Company signed an asset purchase agreement with Jabil, whereby Jabil would purchase 
SGI’s primary manufacturing facility, located in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin and certain other manufacturing assets for $6.3 million in cash.  

The total carrying of these assets held for sale were written down to their fair value of $6.3 million , resulting in an impairment charge of 
$0.9 million recorded in general and administrative expenses in the second quarter of fiscal 2014.  
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      Amount  

Tangible assets acquired     $ 169  
Tangible liabilities assumed     (2,922 ) 

Net tangible liabilities     (2,753 ) 

Intangible assets     4,900  
Goodwill     7,053  

Total net asset acquired     $ 9,200  

            
Weighted Average Useful 

Life  

Intangible Asset Class     Fair Value     (in Years)  

Purchased technology     $ 4,400     6.25 

Maintenance and service agreements and related relationships     100     4 

Trade name / trademarks     400     4 

   Total intangible assets     $ 4,900        

   Fiscal Year Ended  

   
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013  

   (In thousands, except per share amounts)  

      

Revenue  $ 531,446  $ 773,640  
Net loss  $ (52,467 ) $ (1,995 ) 

Net loss per share - basic and diluted  $ (1.53 ) $ (0.06 ) 



 

SGI also expected that approximately 120 of its manufacturing personnel in Chippewa Falls would transfer to Jabil. During the second 
quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company accrued approximately $0.7 million of compensation costs associated with the transfer of these employees 
as part of the agreement with Jabil, which was recorded within cost of revenue.  

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company reevaluated its outsourcing model given lower than anticipated volumes of 
Company product sales.  On August 4, 2014, the Company terminated the planned manage-in-place outsourcing structure and the asset purchase 
agreement referenced above. The Company agreed to pay approximately $0.6 million to Jabil for certain assets that were purchased for the 
manage-in-place model as well as for costs associated with streamlining the manufacturing process. In addition, SGI reversed the $0.7 million 
accrual previously booked for compensation costs associated with the proposed employee transfer discussed above. The Company will continue 
to optimize all of its manufacturing capabilities with the objective of improving efficiency and flexibility.  

 

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE  

The Company measures its assets and liabilities at fair value based upon the expected exit price, representing the amount that would be 
received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value reflects the 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on the best information available. Assumptions include the risks 
inherent in a particular valuation technique (such as a pricing model) and/or the risks inherent in the inputs to the model.  

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:  

The Company’s assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company considers an active market to be one in which transactions for 
the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis, and views an inactive 
market as one in which there are a few transactions for the asset or liability, the prices are not current, or price quotations vary substantially 
either over time or among market makers. Where appropriate, the Company or the counterparty’s non-performance risk is considered in 
determining the fair values of liabilities and assets, respectively.  

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis  

The following table presents the Company's assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (in thousands):  
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•  Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or 
liabilities;  

•  Level 2 - Quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either 
directly or indirectly; and  

•  Level 3 - Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable. 

      June 27, 2014  

      Carrying     Fair Value Measured Using  Total  

      Value     Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Balance  

Assets                       

Money market funds     $ 130     $ 130  $ — $ — $ 130  
Pension investments held by insurance companies     5,624     — 5,624  — 5,624  

       Derivative assets     1,092     — 1,092  — 1,092  
Total assets measured at fair value     $ 6,846     $ 130  $ 6,716  $ — $ 6,846  

        Derivative liabilities     $ 3,019     $ — $ 3,019  $ — $ 3,019  
Total liabilities measured at fair value     $ 3,019     $ — $ 3,019  $ — $ 3,019  
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There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during both fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013. The Company's 
cash equivalents, consisting primarily of money market funds, are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy as they were valued using 
quoted market prices of the identical underlying securities in active markets.  

Level 2 assets include investments that are pooled with other investment held by insurance companies within their general funds for our 
pension plans.  The investments held by the insurance companies are valued by taking the percentage owned by the plan in the underlying net 
asset value of the insurance company's general fund. The valuation of the underlying net assets of the insurance company's general fund is based 
on quoted market prices of the investments in active markets or for quoted market prices in active markets of similar assets. The market inputs 
used to value these instruments generally consist of market yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes or alternative pricing sources with 
reasonable levels of price transparency. Pricing sources include industry standard data providers, security master files from large financial 
institutions and other third party sources. Our derivative financial instruments are classified within Level 2, as there is not an active market for 
each hedge contract, but the inputs used to calculate the value of the instruments are tied to active markets.  

The fair values of accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities, due within one year approximates their carrying values 
because of their short-term nature.  

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis  

The Company does no t have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 
2013 .  

 
6. DERIVATIVES  

The Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations in the normal course of our business. As part of the Company's 
risk management strategy, we use derivative instruments, primarily forward contracts to hedge economic exposures resulting from changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates.  

Cash Flow Hedges  

Beginning in fiscal 2014, we implemented a cash flow hedging strategy to protect anticipated non-functional currency revenue and 
expenses. The Company uses forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges to hedge a portion of future forecasted non-U.S. Dollar ("USD") 
cash flows. In general, these foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, have maturities between one and twelve months. As of June 27, 
2014 , the Company has 17 open hedges with the aggregate notional amount in USD equivalent to approximately $44.1 million . The Company 
currently designates hedges for the Euro, British Pound and the Australian Dollar. These derivative instruments are designated and qualify as 
cash flow hedges under the criteria prescribed in the authoritative guidance. All amounts related to gains / losses on designated hedges, currently 
in accumulated other comprehensive income ("AOCI") are expected to be reclassified into earnings over the next 12 months.  
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      June 28, 2013  

      Carrying     Fair Value Measured Using  Total  

      Value     Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Balance  

Assets                       

Money market funds     $ 20,015     $ 20,015  $ — $ — $ 20,015  
Pension investments held by insurance companies     5,549     — 5,549  — 5,549  

       Derivative assets     69     — 69  — 69  
Total assets measured at fair value     $ 25,633     $ 20,015  $ 5,618  $ — $ 25,633  

        Derivative liabilities     $ 208     — 208  — $ 208  
Total liabilities measured at fair value     $ 208     $ — $ 208  $ — $ 208  
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For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges under Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") No. 815-
Derivatives and Hedging , the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of accumulated other 
comprehensive loss and reclassified into earnings into the same financial statement line as the item being hedged. SGI assesses the prospective 
and retrospective effectiveness of its hedge programs using statistical analysis. The Company uses the spot-to-spot method to measure 
ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship. Gains and losses on the derivative representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge components 
excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in other income (expense), net. For derivative instruments that are not designated 
as hedging instruments under ASC No. 815 or that have been de-designated following recognition of the hedge item, gains and losses are 
recognized in other income (expense), net.  

Balance Sheet Hedges  

Additionally, the Company enters into foreign exchange contracts to hedge monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in 
currencies other than the functional currency of our subsidiaries. These foreign exchange contracts are carried at fair value and do not qualify for 
hedge accounting treatment and are not designated as hedging instruments. Changes in fair value of these derivatives are recognized in other 
income (expense), net in the condensed consolidated statement of operations, in the current period, along with the offsetting foreign currency 
gain or loss on the underlying assets or liabilities. As of June 27, 2014 , the Company has 17 open non-designated hedges with the aggregate 
USD-equivalent notional amount of approximately $5.9 million .  

The before tax effect of derivative instruments for foreign exchange contracts designated as hedging instruments and non-designated 
hedging instruments in our condensed consolidated statement of operations was as follows (in thousands):  

The Company's use of derivative instruments exposes it to non-performance risk to the extent that the counterparties may be unable to meet 
the terms of the agreement. The Company mitigates such risks by limiting our counterparties to major financial institutions, which are selected 
based on their credit ratings and other factors. The Company has established policies and procedures for mitigating non-performance risk that 
include establishing counterparty credit limits, monitoring credit exposures, and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. 
Therefore the Company does not consider counterparty non-performance risk a material risk at this time.  

A number of the Company's derivative agreements contain threshold limits to the net liability position with counterparties and are 
dependent on the Company's corporate credit rating determined by the major credit rating agencies. The counterparties to the derivative 
instruments may request collateralization, in accordance with derivative agreements, on derivative instruments in net liability positions.  

The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that were in a net liability position as of 
June 27, 2014 , was $1.9 million . The credit-risk-related contingent features underlying these agreements had not been triggered as of June 27, 
2014 .  

As of June 27, 2014 , the Company has designated derivatives with notional values of approximately $44.1 million and non-designated 
derivatives with notional values of approximately $5.9 million in Euro, British Pound, Canadian Dollar, Australian Dollar, and other currencies.  
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         Fiscal Year Ended  

   Location     
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Designated Derivatives                       

Cash Flow Hedges:                       

Loss initially recorded in AOCI on effective portion of derivatives  AOCI     $ (1,738 )    $ —    $ — 
Loss reclassified from AOCI into income  Net revenue     (2,539 )    —    — 
Gain reclassified from AOCI into income  Operating expenses     888     —    — 
Ineffective portion and amounts excluded from effectiveness testing  Other income (expense), net     115     —    — 

                  

Non-designated Derivatives                       
Foreign exchange contracts  Other income (expense), net     $ (1,431 )    $ (496 )    $ — 
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Derivative instruments are subject to master netting arrangements and are disclosed gross in the statement of financial position. The gross 
fair values and location of derivative instruments included in the condensed consolidated statement of financial position as of June 27, 2014 were 
as follows (in thousands):  

The gross fair value and location of derivative instruments held in the condensed consolidated statement of financial position as of June 27, 
2014 and June 28, 2013 were as follows (in thousands):  
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Offsetting of Derivative Assets  

   
Gross Amount Offset In the 

Statement of Financial Position     
Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
Statement of Financial Position     

   

Gross Amount of 
Recognized 

Assets  

Gross Amount 
Offset in the 
Statement of 

Financial Position 

Net Amounts of 
Assets Presented 
in the Statement 

of Financial 
Position  

Financial 
Instruments  

Cash Collateral 
Received  Net Amount  

Derivatives                    
Foreign currency forward contracts  $ 1,092  $ — $ — $ (1,092 )  $ — $ — 

     Total  $ 1,092  $ — $ — $ (1,092 )  $ — $ — 

Offsetting of Derivative Liabilities  

   
Gross Amount Offset In the 

Statement of Financial Position     
Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
Statement of Financial Position     

   

Gross Amount of 
Recognized 
Liabilities  

Gross Amount 
Offset in the 
Statement of 

Financial 
Position  

Net Amounts of 
Liabilities 

Presented in the 
Statement of 

Financial Position  
Financial 

Instruments  
Cash Collateral 

Pledged  Net Amount  

Derivatives                    
Foreign currency forward contracts  $ (3,019 )  $ — $ — $ 1,092  $ — $ (1,927 )  

     Total  $ (3,019 )  $ — $ — $ 1,092  $ — $ (1,927 )  

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments  

Asset Derivatives     Liability Derivatives  

Location     
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     Location     
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

  

Designated Derivatives:  
Foreign exchange contracts                 Foreign exchange contracts              

Other current assets     $ 88     $ —    Other current liabilities     $ 209     $ — 
Non- designated Derivatives:  
Foreign exchange contracts                 Foreign exchange contracts              

Other current assets     1,004     69     Other current liabilities     2,810     208  
                      

Total derivatives     $ 1,092     $ 69           $ 3,019     $ 208  
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The following table provides the balances and changes in the accumulated other comprehensive loss (income) related to derivative 
instruments during fiscal 2014 (in thousands):  

See Statement of Comprehensive Loss and Note 5 for more information regarding derivatives.  

 

7. INVENTORIES  

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):  

 
Finished goods include inventory at customer sites undergoing installation testing prior to customer acceptance; such amounts were $7.9 

million at June 27, 2014 and $2.6 million at June 28, 2013 .  
 

8. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS  

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following (in thousands):  
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      Amount  

AOCI - Balance of losses or (gain) at June 28, 2013     $ — 
Loss recognized in OCI on derivatives (effective portion) before reclassifications     1,738  
Loss reclassified into earnings     (1,651 ) 

AOCI - balance of losses at June 27, 2014     $ 87  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Finished goods     $ 13,700     $ 11,332  
Work in process     10,795     20,716  
Raw materials     22,859     29,722  
Total inventories     $ 47,354     $ 61,770  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Value-added tax receivable     $ 9,611     $ 5,626  
Deferred tax assets     126     281  
Prepaid taxes     1,011     1,229  
Other prepaid and current assets     9,054     6,958  
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets     $ 19,802     $ 14,094  
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET  

Property and equipment, net consist of the following (in thousands):  

Depreciation and amortization expense for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $10.7 million , $10.6 million and $9.5 million , respectively.  
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Estimated  
Useful Life     

June 27,  
2014     

June 28,  
2013  

Land     N/A     $ 768     $ 799  
Building     30-32     13,705     13,892  
Computer equipment and software     2-6     37,254     32,323  
Manufacturing equipment     2-7     7,389     7,122  
Leasehold improvements     2-7     12,615     8,053  
Furniture and fixtures     2-7     1,391     1,503  
Vehicles     5     40     51  
Construction in progress     N/A     495     1,690  
            73,657     65,433  
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization           (39,073 )    (39,263 ) 

Total property and equipment, net           $ 34,584     $ 26,170  
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10. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET  

The goodwill balances and the movements in fiscal 2014 and 2013 for each of our reportable segments are shown in the table below (in 
thousands):  

The Company reviews goodwill for impairment annually in the fourth quarter of its fiscal year, or more frequently if impairment indicators 
arise. Impairment of goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level by comparing the reporting unit's carrying amount, including goodwill, to the 
fair value of the reporting unit. The fair values of the reporting units are estimated using a combination of the income approach that uses 
discounted cash flows and the market approach that utilizes comparable companies' data. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its 
fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss. We have three reporting 
units for which we assess goodwill for impairment. Commencing in the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company started managing its business 
on a business unit basis versus the geographic basis previously used by management. Accordingly, we allocated the goodwill balances at the 
beginning of fiscal 2014 based on relative fair value of each of its business units. Based on our annual assessment no impairment was recorded 
for fiscal 2014, 2013 or 2012.  

Intangible assets by major asset class consist of the following (in thousands):  

Intangible assets amortization expense was $3.8 million , $3.7 million and $5.2 million in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.  
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      Compute     Storage     Service     Total  

Goodwill as of June 29, 2012     $ 320     $ 135     $ 1,076     $ 1,531  
Goodwill arising from acquisitions     —    —    —    — 
Goodwill as of June 28, 2013     320     135     1,076     1,531  
Goodwill arising from acquisitions     —    7,053     —    7,053  
Goodwill as of June 27, 2014     $ 320     $ 7,188     $ 1,076     $ 8,584  

Intangible Asset Class     

Weighted  
Average  

Useful Life  
(in Years)     

June 27, 2014  

Gross  
Carrying  
Amount     

Accumulated  
Amortization and 

Impairment     Net  

Customer relationships     5     $ 7,300     $ (6,975 )    $ 325  
Purchased technology     5     12,200     (10,406 )    1,794  
Customer backlog     (a)     10,540     (10,215 )    325  
Trademark/trade name portfolio     5     3,767     (3,685 )    82  
Patents and other     2 (b)     2,297     (200 )    2,097  
Total           $ 36,104     $ (31,481 )    $ 4,623  

Intangible Asset Class     

Weighted  
Average  

Useful Life  
(in Years)     

June 28, 2013  

Gross  
Carrying  
Amount     

Accumulated  
Amortization     Net  

Customer relationships     5     $ 6,900     $ (5,750 )    $ 1,150  
Purchased technology     5     7,800     (6,000 )    1,800  
Customer backlog     (a)     10,540     (9,572 )    968  
Trademark/ trade name portfolio     5     3,667     (3,072 )    595  
Patents and other     2 (b)     330     (200 )    130  
Total           $ 29,237     $ (24,594 )    $ 4,643  

(a)  The customer backlog intangible asset is amortized as all revenue recognition criteria is accomplished for a particular customer order, 
reflecting the use of the asset.  

(b)  Includes other intangibles assets with an indefinite life. 
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The Company reviews the carrying values of long-lived assets for indicators of impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is measured by a comparison of the 
carrying amount of the assets to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the assets.  

As a result of a decision made in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 to stop investment in certain next generation Storage products, we 
determined that intangible assets related to the product development of these next generation products were impaired. We recorded an 
impairment charge of $2.9 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, which was recorded as a cost of revenue.  

No impairment of intangible assets was recorded in fiscal 2013 and 2012.  

As of June 27, 2014 , expected amortization expense for all intangible assets is as follows (in thousands):  
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Fiscal Year     
Amortization  

Expense  

2015     $ 874  
2016     793  
2017     759  
2018     100  
Total amortization     $ 2,526  
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11. OTHER ASSETS  

Other assets consist of the following (in thousands):  

 

12. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):  

 

13. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Other non-current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):  

 

14. WARRANTY RESERVE  

Activity in the warranty reserve, which is included in other current and non-current liabilities, is as follows (in thousands):  

 

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Long-term service inventory     $ 15,969     $ 15,045  
Restricted pension plan assets     8,242     7,822  
Deferred tax assets     16,663     5,764  
Long-term refundable deposits     2,895     3,178  
Other assets     627     944  
Total other assets     $ 44,396     $ 32,753  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Accrued sales and use tax payable     $ 15,033     $ 9,545  
Deferred tax liabilities     15,846     5,292  
Accrued professional services fees     3,421     3,635  
Accrued warranty, current portion     4,216     3,303  
Income taxes payable     379     491  
Accrued restructuring and severance     2,741     3,965  
Derivatives     3,019     208  
Other     9,005     8,925  
Total other current liabilities     $ 53,660     $ 35,364  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Accrued warranty, non-current portion     $ 1,828     $ 2,319  
Deferred rent     6,312     11  
Other     667     1,460  
Total other non-current liabilities     $ 8,807     $ 3,790  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Balance at beginning of period     $ 5,622     $ 7,302  
Current period accrual     3,301     4,091  
Warranty expenditures charged to accrual     (3,790 )    (4,515 ) 

Changes in accrual for pre-existing warranties     911     (1,256 ) 

Balance at end of period     $ 6,044     $ 5,622  
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15. RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITY  

The Company has implemented restructuring actions to streamline operations and reduce operating expenses. Total expense for all 
restructuring actions was $1.3 million , $9.0 million , and $2.5 million for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. The restructuring expense is 
included in operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The total restructuring liability was $0.3 million of 
June 27, 2014 and was classified as current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.  

Fiscal 2012 Restructuring Action  

On March 16, 2012, the Company's Board of Directors approved a restructuring action to reduce approximately 25% of the Company's 
European workforce and close certain legal entities and offices in Europe.  

Total expense incurred in connection with this restructuring plan, for actions taken through June 27, 2014 was $12.6 million . This 
restructuring action is substantially complete.  

Activity in accrued restructuring for the fiscal 2012 restructuring action was as follows (in thousands): 
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Employee  

Terminations  

Balance at June 29, 2012     $ 1,621  
       Cost incurred     9,048  
       Cash payments     (8,252 ) 

Balance at June 28, 2013     2,417  
Costs incurred     1,251  
Cash payments     (3,399 ) 

Balance at June 27, 2014     $ 269  
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16. CREDIT FACILITY  

On December 5, 2011 , the Company entered into a five -year senior secured credit facility in the aggregate principal amount of $35.0 
million . The availability under the credit facility is limited to a borrowing base, subject to meeting certain conditions set forth in the credit 
facility. The credit facility included a feature that allowed the Company to increase the revolver amount in the first 18 months . The Company 
exercised this feature, and on May 1, 2012 the revolver amount was increased by $5.0 million to an aggregate principal amount of $40.0 
million . On February 25, 2013, the Company amended the agreement and reduced the revolver amount to $25.0 million . The credit facility 
includes a $10.0 million letter of credit subfacility. See Note 24 "Commitments and Contingencies" for more information regarding the letter of 
credit.  

The availability of the aggregate principal amount under the credit facility will fluctuate, generally monthly, based on eligible domestic 
accounts receivable and inventory due to a variety of factors including the Company's overall mix of sales and resulting accounts receivable with 
international and domestic customers, United States governmental agencies and a few individual customer accounts which may result in high 
concentrations of accounts receivable as compared to the overall level of the Company's accounts receivable. The credit facility contains 
financial covenants including, under certain conditions, maintaining a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, as well as other non-financial 
covenants, including restrictions on declaring and paying dividends, and is secured by substantially all of the Company's assets. The credit 
facility terminates on December 5, 2016 . Borrowings under the credit facility bear interest based on a rate of the Company's choice equal to 
either: 1) the LIBOR plus a margin of 2.50 % per annum or 2) the base rate plus a margin of 1.75 % per annum. The base rate is the greater of (a) 
the Federal Funds rate plus 0 .50 %, (b) the LIBOR rate plus 1.00 % or (c) the prime rate of the financial institution. The LIBOR rate and the 
base rate are determined at the specified date preceding or at the time of the borrowing in accordance with the terms of the credit facility. In 
addition, unused line fees are payable on the credit facility at rates of 0.40 percent per annum.  

During fiscal 2013 the Company made a $15.7 million payment to pay off the outstanding balance under the credit facility, which included 
$0.4 million of accrued interest. Accordingly, as of June 27, 2014 , the Company had no outstanding balance owed on the credit facility. As of 
June 27, 2014 , the maximum amount available to be borrowed under the credit facility was approximately $23.0 million which takes into 
account a $2.0 million outstanding letter of credit to back the Company's obligation to pay for goods or services to a supplier. The Company was 
in compliance with all covenants as of June 27, 2014 .  

 

17. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION  

Share-Based Compensation Plans  

In 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and its stockholders approved the Company’s 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“2005 
Plan”), 2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan ("2005 Director Plan") and 2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“2005 ESPP Plan”). 
As of June 27, 2014 , the aggregate number of shares of common stock available for grant under each plan is 2,810,074 , 81,666 and 592,350 
shares, respectively. Each plan contains a provision that automatically increases the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance on 
January 1 of each year through January 1, 2015. During fiscal 2012, the number of shares authorized for issuance under each Plan was increased 
by 1,295,453 shares, 0 shares and 1,123,863 shares, respectively. During fiscal 2013, the number of shares authorized for issuance under each 
Plan was increased by 886,075 shares, 0 shares and 51,653 shares, respectively. During fiscal 2014, the number of shares authorized for issuance 
under each Plan was increased by 798,805 shares, 0 shares and 365,263 shares, respectively.  

The Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 2006 New Recruit Equity Incentive Plan (“New Recruit Plan”) in January 2006 which 
allows the Company to grant non-statutory stock awards to newly hired employees as an inducement to join the Company. No grants may be 
made under the New Recruit Plan to persons who are continuing employees or directors. The New Recruit Plan provides for the grant of the 
following stock awards: (i) non-statutory stock options, (ii) stock purchase awards, (iii) stock bonus awards, (iv) stock appreciation rights, 
(v) stock unit awards and (vi) other stock awards. As of June 27, 2014 , the number of shares of common stock available for grant under the 
2006 Plan is 196,116 shares. There have been no increases in the total shares of common stock reserved for the New Recruit Plan during fiscal 
2014, 2013 and 2012 . The exercise price of each non-statutory stock option shall be not less than 100%  of the fair market value of the common 
stock subject to the option on the date the option is granted.  

Stock awards expire ten years from the date of grant, or such shorter period specified in the award agreement. The awards vest over a 
period of time as determine by the board of directors, generally over four years from the date the award is granted. The Company issues new 
shares of its common stock upon exercise of stock options, issuance of restricted stock units (“RSU”)  
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and issuance of shares purchased under its 2005 ESPP Plan. Common stock to be issued for grants of RSUs are not issued until the RSU vests 
and do not have rights to vote or receive dividends.  

Determining Fair Value  

The fair value of certain share-based awards is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-
average assumptions for the following periods: 

The computation of expected life is based on an analysis of the Company's historical exercise and post-vesting forfeiture experience. The 
expected volatility is based on the implied and historical volatility for the Company from fiscal 2010 through the second quarter of fiscal 2012 
and historical volatility from the third quarter of fiscal 2012 through the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014; this change had no significant impact on 
the volatility rate used during the year. The interest rate is based on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues 
with an equivalent remaining term. As share-based compensation expense recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations 
is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and 
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimated.  

Share-Based Compensation Expense  

Total share-based compensation expense is as follows (in thousands):  

Total share-based compensation expense for the fiscal 2012 includes $1.4 million of share-based expense recognized by the Company due 
to the modification of certain terms of the vested options held by the Company's former Chief Executive Officer and former Chief Financial 
Officer.  
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Fiscal Year Ended  

June 27,  
2014     

June 28,  
2013     

June 29,  
2012  

Option Plans Shares                    

Risk-free interest rate     N/A     0.7 %    1.0 % 

Volatility     N/A     66.1 %    69.7 % 

Weighted average expected life (in years)     N/A     4.99     4.73  
Expected dividend yield     N/A     —%    —% 

Weighted average grant date fair value     N/A    $4.83    $6.67 

              

ESPP Plan shares                    

Risk-free interest rate     0.2 %    0.2 %    0.2 % 

Volatility     56.7 %    79.4 %    78.0 % 

Weighted average expected life (in years)     1.25     1.25     1.25  
Expected dividend yield     —%    —%    —% 

Weighted average grant date fair value     $5.59    $4.84    $5.39 

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Cost of revenue     $ 1,676     $ 1,598     $ 1,358  
Research and development     2,072     2,250     1,938  
Sales and marketing     2,598     1,629     1,570  
General and administrative     5,633     4,623     5,195  
Total share-based compensation expense     $ 11,979     $ 10,100     $ 10,061  
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Stock Option Activity  

The following table summarizes the Company’s stock option activity for fiscal 2014 and 2013 .  

The total intrinsic value of options exercised in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $3.9 million , $4.4 million and $1.0 million , respectively. 
The total fair value of shares vested during fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $2.5 million , $4.1 million and $3.1 million , respectively.  

As of June 27, 2014 , there was $0.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options, which is 
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.83 years.  

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under all option plans as of June 27, 2014 :  

 

 

 

 

 

      Options Outstanding  

      Shares     

Weighted  
Average  
Exercise  

Price     

Weighted  
Average  

Remaining  
Contractual term  

in years     

Aggregate  
Intrinsic  

Value  

                        (in thousands)  

Balance at June 29, 2012     3,703,660     $ 10.79              
Options granted     154,000     8.87              
Options exercised     (1,334,910 )     10.65              
Options cancelled     (241,349 )     12.57              

Balance at June 28, 2013     2,281,401     10.56              
Options granted     —    —             
Options exercised     (492,825 )     7.83              
Options cancelled     (180,140 )     18.32              

Balance at June 27, 2014     1,608,436     $ 10.53     5.59    $ 1,934  
Vested and expected to vest at June 27, 2014     1,572,035     $ 10.56     5.54    $ 1,875  
Exercisable at June 27, 2014     1,299,280     $ 10.76     5.13    $ 1,602  

      Options Outstanding     Options Exercisable  

Exercise Price Range     

Number of  
Outstanding  

Options     

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 
(In Years)    

Weighted  
Average  
Exercise  

Price     

Number of  
Options  

Exercisable     

Weighted  
Average  
Exercise  

Price  

$ 5.07 - $ 5.07     18,568     4.92    $ 5.07     18,568     $ 5.07  
   5.34 - 5.34     221,274     4.81    5.34     221,148     5.34  
   5.60 - 6.58     162,971     6.48    5.87     83,075     5.88  
   6.69 - 7.99     174,720     5.39    7.69     160,135     7.77  
   8.35 - 9.68     108,417     5.35    9.05     99,663     9.05  
   9.78 - 9.78     212,396     7.68    9.78     76,979     9.78  
   9.82 - 11.61     169,394     7.16    10.76     153,769     10.74  
  11.69 - 14.15     165,301     5.37    12.25     163,321     12.22  
  14.26 - 14.68     19,000     7.12    14.35     13,937     14.35  
  14.69 - 37.91     356,395     3.89    17.34     308,685     17.72  
   5.07 - 37.91     1,608,436     5.59    10.53     1,299,280     10.76  
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Restricted Stock Activity  

The following table summarizes the Company’s RSU activity for fiscal 2014 and 2013 .  

In August 2012, the Company granted time-based RSUs ("2012 executive time-based RSUs") and performance-based RSUs (“2012 
executive PSUs”) to members of the Company's executive management team.  The 2012 executive time-based RSUs vest over four years, with 
25% vesting after one year and an additional 6.25% vesting quarterly thereafter, subject to the recipient's continuous service through each 
vesting date. The 2012 executive PSUs are eligible to vest upon the achievement of certain financial performance criteria for the Company for 
fiscal 2013.  In general, the 2012 executive PSUs grants may be increased or decreased depending on the level of attainment by the Company of 
the performance metrics established by the Board. The financial performance criteria were achieved for fiscal 2013 and the Company awarded 
the 2012 executive PSU at 135% of the amounts initially awarded in August 2012. Accordingly, 25% of the 2012 executive PSUs vested 
following the Company's public announcement of financial results for fiscal 2013 and the remaining 75% of the 2012 executive PSUs vested in 
three annual installments of 25% thereafter, subject to the recipient's continued service through each vesting date.    

In August 2013, the Company granted time-based RSUs ("2013 executive time-based RSUs") and performance-based RSUs (“2013 
executive PSUs”) to members of the Company's executive management team.  The 2013 executive time-based RSUs vest quarterly over four 
years, subject to the recipient's continuous service through each vesting date. The 2013 executive PSUs were eligible to vest upon the 
achievement of certain financial performance criteria for the Company for fiscal 2014.  If the performance criteria were not met, none of the 
2013 executive PSUs would vest and would be forfeited.  If the performance criteria were met, 25% of the 2013 executive PSUs would vest 
following the Company's public announcement of financial results for fiscal 2014 and the remaining 75% of the 2013 executive PSUs would 
vest in twelve quarterly installments thereafter, subject to the recipient's continued service through each vesting date.  The financial performance 
criteria for the 2013 executive PSUs were not achieved and none of the 2013 executive PSUs vested.  

As of June 27, 2014 , there was $7.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to RSUs, which is expected to be recognized 
over a weighted average period of 1.55 years.  

RSUs are converted into common stock upon vesting. Upon the vesting of restricted stock, the Company primarily uses the net share 
settlement approach, which withholds a portion of the shares to cover the applicable taxes and decreases the shares issued to the employee by a 
corresponding value. The withholding tax obligations were based upon the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the vesting 
date. The number and the value of the shares netted for employee taxes are summarized in the table below (in thousands except share amounts):  
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Number of  

Shares     

Weighted  
Average  

Grant Date  
Fair Value     

Weighted  
Average  

Remaining  
Contractual  

Life     

Aggregate  
Intrinsic  

Value  

                        (in thousands)  

Balance at June 29, 2012     918,764     $ 10.12              

Awarded     991,239     10.24              

Released     (411,534 )    12.63              

Forfeited     (160,702 )    11.10              

Balance at June 28, 2013     1,337,767     10.27              

Awarded     1,237,967     14.41              

Released     (558,481 )    12.17              

Forfeited     (320,430 )    11.98              

Balance at June 27, 2014     1,696,823     $ 12.67     1.28    $ 16,052  
Vested and expected to vest at June 27, 2014     1,340,412     $ 12.56     1.14    $ 12,922  

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

RSUs shares withheld for taxes     214,304     159,829     95,746  
RSUs amounts withheld for taxes     $ 2,671     $ 2,080     $ 1,126  
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan  

At June 27, 2014 , the total compensation cost related to options to purchase the Company’s common stock under the 2005 ESPP Plan not 
yet recognized was approximately $0.4 million . This cost will be amortized on a straight-line basis over approximately 1.9 years. The following 
table shows the shares issued and their respective weighted-average purchase price per share during fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 .  

 

18. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  

Stock Repurchase  

In February 2009, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $40.0 million of its common stock. 
Under the program, the Company was able to purchase shares of common stock through open market transactions and privately negotiated 
purchases at prices deemed appropriate by management. The timing and amount of repurchase transactions under this program were dependent 
on market conditions, corporate and regulatory considerations and other relevant considerations. This program expired in March 2012. There 
were no share repurchases during fiscal 2012.  

In January 2013, the Company's board of directors approved a plan for the Company to repurchase shares of its common stock with a 
market value of up to $15.0 million . In November 2013, the Company announced an increase in the authorized repurchased amount to $30.0 
million . The Company's common stock may be repurchased in the open market or through negotiated transactions, including 10b5-1 trading 
plans that would enable the Company to repurchase its shares during periods outside of its normal trading windows. The repurchase program 
expires December 31, 2014. Purchases will cease if the authorized funds are spent or the program is discontinued. The Company is not obligated 
to acquire any particular amount of stock, and the program may be suspended or terminated at any time at the Company's discretion.  

The following table shows the total number of shares repurchased during fiscal 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except per share amount):  
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      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Shares issued     540,448     485,707     508,132  
Weighted-average purchase price per share     $ 7.92     $ 7.09     $ 6.42  

      Treasury Stock  

      Number of Shares     Amount     
Average Purchase 
Price per Share  

Cumulative balance at June 29, 2012     749     $ 4,912     $ 6.56  
Repurchase of Treasury Stock:                    

     Twelve months ended June 28, 2013     197     2,780     $ 14.07  
Cumulative balance at June 28, 2013     946     $ 7,692     $ 8.13  
Repurchase of Treasury Stock:                    

     Twelve months ended June 27, 2014     898     10,985     $ 12.24  

Cumulative balance at June 27, 2014     1,844     $ 18,677     $ 10.13  

              

Amount available to purchase under current approved plan           $ 16,235        
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income  

The following table summarizes the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss as of June 27, 2014 , June 28, 2013 and  
June 29, 2012 (in thousands):  

The related tax effects of these components of accumulated other comprehensive loss is not material to the Company.  

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE  

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing consolidated net income (loss) by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing consolidated net income 
(loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and dilutive common shares equivalent shares outstanding during the 
period. For fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 , the effect of outstanding options and RSUs were anti-dilutive to loss per share and were therefore 
excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per share.  

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and RSUs is reflected in diluted net income per share, but not diluted loss per share, by 
application of the treasury stock method required by accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. As the Company had a net loss in fiscal 
2014, 2013 and 2012, basic and diluted net loss per share are the same for these fiscal years.  

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands, except 
per share amount):  

The following table sets forth potential shares of common stock, which are excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share, as 
the result would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):  

 

20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN  

Defined Benefit Plans  

The Company sponsors defined benefit plans covering certain of its international employees in Germany and Japan.  

Pension benefits associated with these plans generally are based on each participant's years of service, compensation and age at retirement 
or termination. The Company funds these pension plans in amounts sufficient to meet the minimum requirements of the local laws and 
regulations. Additional funding may be provided as deemed appropriate.  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Cumulative translation adjustment     $ (608 )    $ 102     $ 838  
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges     (87 )    —    — 
Loss on pension assets     (3,193 )    (2,253 )    (2,318 ) 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss     $ (3,888 )    $ (2,151 )    $ (1,480 ) 

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Numerator:                    

     Net loss     $ (52,814 )    $ (2,820 )    $ (24,461 ) 

Denominator:                    

Weighted-average common shares used in computing basis and diluted net loss 
per share     34,260     32,909     31,653  

              

Basic and diluted net loss per share     $ (1.54 )     $ (0.09 )     $ (0.77 )  

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Options, RSUs and ESPP     3,442     3,667     4,623  
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German Plan  

Employees joining the Company prior to May 2009 are eligible for the German defined benefit plan. The German plan is managed by an 
insurance company and the insurance company makes investment decisions with the guidelines set by the German regulation. The plan assets are 
invested as part of the insurance company’s general fund and the Company does not have control over the target allocation or visibility of the 
investment strategies of these investments.  

Japan Plan  

In October 2011, SGI Japan, Ltd ("SGI Japan"), its employees and the Japanese Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare approved an action 
to change SGI Japan's retirement benefit plan effective October 1, 2011 in accordance with the Defined Benefit Corporate Pension Law and 
Defined Contribution Corporate Pension Law of 2001 (the "Acts"). SGI Japan shifted a portion of its defined benefit plan to a defined 
contribution plan and modified the terms of its defined benefit plan in accordance with the Acts. The change in the retirement benefit plan 
reduced SGI Japan's retirement benefit obligation and resulted in a gain from curtailment of $1.3 million and a loss from settlement of $1.0 
million . In addition, SGI Japan agreed to increase its employer contribution to the defined benefit plan and defined contribution plan to fund the 
underfunded portion of the retirement benefit obligation as required under the Acts.  

The Japan plan is managed by an insurance company and the insurance company makes investment decisions with the guidelines set by 
the Japanese regulation. The plan assets are invested as part of the insurance company's general fund and the Company does not have control 
over the target allocation or visibility of the investment strategies of these investments.  
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Following is a reconciliation of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 for 
both the German and Japan plans (in thousands):    

   
The Company has life insurance policies with cash surrender values that have been earmarked by the Company to partly cover the 

underfunded status of the German plan. As of June 27, 2014 , the cash surrender values of the life insurance plans of $0.4 million and $8.2 
million are included in other current assets and other assets, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of June 28, 2013 , 
the cash surrender values of the life insurance plans of $0.3 million and $7.8 million are included in other current assets and other assets, 
respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 

84  

      Germany Plan    Japan Plan    Total  

      Fiscal Year Ended    Fiscal Year Ended    Fiscal Year Ended  

    
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013    
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013    
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Projected Benefit Obligation                                    

Benefit obligation, beginning of year     $ 12,768     $ 11,863    $ 4,690     $ 6,053    $ 17,458     $ 17,916  
Service cost     47     140    384     544    431     684  
Interest cost     470     498    78     93    548     591  
Actuarial losses     1,074     152    (33 )    154    1,041     306  
Benefits paid     (526 )    (396 )   (467 )    (9 )   (993 )    (405 ) 

Effect of curtailments     —    —   —    (85 )   —    (85 ) 

Effect of settlements     —    —   —    (926 )   —    (926 ) 

Effect of amendment     —    —   —    (24 )   —    (24 ) 

Foreign exchange rate changes     584     511    (167 )    (1,110 )   417     (599 ) 

Benefit obligation, ending of year     $ 14,417     $ 12,768    $ 4,485     $ 4,690    $ 18,902     $ 17,458  

                          

Fair Value of Plan Assets                                    

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year     $ 2,633     $ 2,429    $ 2,916     $ 3,698    $ 5,549     $ 6,127  
Expected return on plan assets     91     90    85     100    176     190  
Participant contributions     9     12    529     769    538     781  
Effect of settlement     —    —   —    (887 )   —    (887 ) 

Actuarial losses     (33 )    (126 )   (60 )    (61 )   (93 )    (187 ) 

Benefit payments     (180 )    (108 )   (448 )    (9 )   (628 )    (117 ) 

Foreign exchange rate changes     186     336    (104 )    (694 )   82     (358 ) 

Fair value of plan assets, ending of year     $ 2,706     $ 2,633    $ 2,918     $ 2,916    $ 5,624     $ 5,549  

                          

Underfunded Status                                    

Projected benefit obligation     $ 14,417     $ 12,768    $ 4,485     $ 4,690    $ 18,902     $ 17,458  
Fair value of plan assets     2,706     2,633    2,918     2,916    5,624     5,549  
Underfunded status of plan     $ 11,711     $ 10,135    $ 1,567     $ 1,774    $ 13,278     $ 11,909  
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The following table summarizes the amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 for both 
the German and Japan plans (in thousands):  

The following table summarizes the amounts recorded to other comprehensive (loss) income net of taxes during fiscal 2014 and 2013 (in 
thousands):  

The Company expects to recognize less than $0.1 million of amortization from accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income into net 
periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2015.  

The following table summarizes the amounts related to the pension plan with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets at 
June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 (in thousands):  

The Company carries the interest and service cost of the plan. Actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected life of the plan.  

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for the German and Japan plans were as follows:  

The discount rate reflects the current rate at which the Company believes associated liabilities could be effectively settled at the end of the 
year. The Company sets its rate to reflect the yield of a portfolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments that would produce cash flows 
sufficient in timing and amount to settle projected future benefits.  

 

      German Plan    Japan Plan    Total  

      
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013    
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013    
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013  

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets                  

Accrued benefit cost                           

Current liabilities     $ 347  $ 367    $ — $ —   $ 347  $ 367  
Non-current liabilities     $ 11,364  $ 9,768    $ 1,567  $ 1,774    $ 12,931  $  11,542  

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss                  

Net actuarial loss     $ (2,948 ) $ (2,036 )   $ (245 ) $ (217 )   $ (3,193 ) $  (2,253 ) 

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive (loss) income              

Net actuarial (loss) gain - German Plan     $ (912 )    $ 125  
Net actuarial loss - Japan Plan     (28 )    (60 ) 

Total recognized in other comprehensive (loss) income     $ (940 )    $ 65  

      German Plan     Japan Plan     Total  

      
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013     
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013     
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013  

Projected benefit obligation     $ 14,417  $ 12,768     $ 4,485  $ 4,690     $ 18,902  $ 17,458  
Accumulated benefit obligation     $ 14,345  $ 12,704     $ 3,936  $ 3,844     $ 18,281  $ 16,548  
Fair value of plan assets     $ 2,706  $ 2,633     $ 2,918  $ 2,916     $ 5,624  $ 5,549  

      German Plan     Japan Plan  

      
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013     
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013  

Assumptions used to determine benefits obligations:                    

Discount rate     3.1% - 3.2%  3.6%     1.2%  1.7 % 

Rate of compensation increase     0.0% - 1.0%  0.0% - 1.0%     5.7%  5.7 % 

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:                    

Discount rate     3.6%  3.6%     1.7%  1.7 % 

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets     3.3% - 4.1%  3.3% - 4.1%     3.0%  3.0 % 

Rate of compensation increase     0.0% - 1.0%  0.0% - 1.0%     5.7%  5.7 % 
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Expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions for the German plan is determined using the projected long-term rate of return 
estimated by the insurance company for its general fund. Expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions for the Japan plan is 
determined by SGI Japan in consideration of the portfolio of SGI Japan's pension plan and projected long-term rate of return based on the 
Japanese market.  

The net periodic benefit cost of the German and Japan plans was comprised of the following components (in thousands):  

The Company does not expect to make any contributions to the German plan during the next fiscal year as contributions are not required 
by funding regulations or laws and the cash surrender value of the life insurance plan earmarked by the Company substantially covers the under-
funded status of the German plan.  

The Company expects to make contributions to the Japan plan of approximately $0.5 million during fiscal 2015.  

Fair Value of Plan Assets  

The plan assets measured at fair value consisted of the following as of June 27, 2014 (in thousands):  

The plan assets measured at fair value consisted of the following as of June 28, 2013 (in thousands):  

As previously indicated, these plans are managed by local insurance companies and these companies make investment decisions with the 
guidelines set by the local regulations.  

Level 2 assets include investments that are pooled with other investment held by insurance companies within their general funds for our 
pension plans.  The investments held by the insurance companies are valued by taking the percentage owned by the plan in the underlying net 
asset value of the insurance company's general fund. The valuation of the underlying net assets of the insurance company's general fund is based 
on quoted market prices of the investments in active markets or for quoted market prices in active markets of similar assets. The market inputs 
used to value these instruments generally consist of market yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes or alternative pricing sources with 
reasonable levels of price transparency. Pricing sources include industry standard data providers, security master files from large financial 
institutions and other third party sources.  
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      German Plan  Japan Plan     Total  

      Fiscal Year Ended  Fiscal Year Ended     Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013  
June 29,  

2012     
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013  
June 29,  

2012     
June 27,  

2014  
June 28,  

2013  
June 29,  

2012  

Net periodic benefit cost                                      

Service cost     $ 47  $ 140  $ 118     $ 384  $ 544  $ 749     $ 431  $ 684  $ 867  
Interest expense     470  498  563     78  93  128     548  591  691  
Expected return on plan assets     (91 ) (90 ) (97 )    (85 ) (100 ) (97 )    (176 ) (190 ) (194 ) 

Amortization on actuarial losses     128  170  —    — — —    128  170  — 
Loss on settlement     — — —    — 39  993     — 39  993  
Gain from curtailment     — — —    — — (1,265 )    — — (1,265 ) 

Net periodic benefit cost     $ 554  $ 718  $ 584     $ 377  $ 576  $ 508     $ 931  $ 1,294  $ 1,092  

      Level 1     Level 2     Level 3     Total  

Pension investments held by insurance companies- German Plan     $ —    $ 2,706     $ —    $ 2,706  
Pension investments held by insurance companies - Japan Plan     —    2,918     —    2,918  

Total assets measured at fair value     $ —    $ 5,624     $ —    $ 5,624  

      Level 1     Level 2     Level 3     Total  

Pension investments held by insurance companies- German Plan     $ —    $ 2,633     $ —    $ 2,633  
Pension investments held by insurance companies - Japan Plan     —    2,916     —    2,916  
Total assets measured at fair value     $ —    $ 5,549     $ —    $ 5,549  
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Future Employee Benefit Payments  

The following table provides the estimated pension payments that are payable from the plans to participants (in thousands):  

Defined Contribution Plan  

The Company's U.S. employees are eligible to participate in the Company's qualified defined contribution plan under section 401(k) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. The plan provides for voluntary salary reduction contributions up to the maximum allowed under Internal Revenue 
Service rules. Under the terms of the plan, the Company may provide a discretionary matching contribution at the discretion of its management 
or the Company can make annual contributions to the plan at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company contributed $2.8 million , 
$1.5 million and $1.4 million during fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.  

21. INCOME TAXES  

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012 was as follows (in thousands):  
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Future  

Payments  

Fiscal Year     Germany  Japan  Total  

2015     $ 454  $ 154  608  
2016     468  157  625  
2017     500  158  658  
2018     678  349  1,027  
2019     894  161  1,055  
Following five years     4,025  1,367  5,392  
Total     $ 7,019  $ 2,346  $ 9,365  

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      June 27, 2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Federal:                    

Current     $ —    $ (137 )    $ 7  
Deferred     —    —    — 

      —    (137 )    7  
State:                    

Current     205     (18 )    (136 ) 

Deferred     —    —    — 
      205     (18 )    (136 ) 

Foreign:                    

Current     (3 )    (11,995 )    (524 ) 

Deferred     (190 )    (473 )    1,654  
      (193 )    (12,468 )    1,130  
Income tax (benefit) provision     $ 12     $ (12,623 )    $ 1,001  
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The components of loss before income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the effects of tax losses, credits and the future income tax effects of temporary differences 
between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and are measured 
using enacted statutory tax rates that are realized the years in which those temporary differences are estimated to be recovered or settled.  

As of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013 , the significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were (in 
thousands):  

The valuation allowance against the Company's deferred tax assets increased from $163.3 million as of June 28, 2013 to $168.1 million 
as of June 27, 2014 . The increase was primarily due to a reduction of deferred tax liabilities related to a prior year income tax accounting 
method change. The net deferred tax asset as of June 27, 2014 is attributable to deferred tax assets of certain foreign subsidiaries which we 
believe are more likely than not of being realized. The majority of deferred tax assets are subject to full valuation allowance as they are more 
likely than not unrealized based on all available positive and negative evidence including our history of operating results and uncertainty of 
predicting future income.  

As of June 27, 2014 , the Company has federal, state, other foreign and Japan net operating loss carryforwards of $212.9 million , 
$135.0 million , $83.7 million and $68.7 million , respectively. If not utilized, the net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in fiscal 
2015 for state and foreign, fiscal 2017 for Japan and fiscal 2028 for federal. Substantially all Japan net operating losses of $68.7 million will 
expire by fiscal 2021. The amounts expiring in fiscal 2015 are immaterial to our financial statements.  

As a result of a cumulative ownership change of greater than 50% occurring in January, 2010, the Company's ability to utilize federal 
and state net operating loss and credit carryforwards is subject to an annual limitation as defined by sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue 
Code.  The Company anticipates that all net operating loss carryforwards will become available prior to expiration if there are no subsequent 
events that produce a greater restriction on the net operating losses.  

Tax attributes related to stock option windfalls deductions are not recorded until the deductions result in a reduction of cash taxes payable. 
The amount of the Company's unrealized federal and state net operating losses relating to stock options deductions as of June 27, 2014 was 
$17.5 million . The benefit of these net operating losses will be recorded to additional paid-in capital if and when the Company realizes a 
reduction of cash taxes payable.  
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      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Domestic sources     $ (58,790 )    $ (23,429 )    $ (17,817 ) 

Foreign sources     5,988     7,986     (5,643 ) 

Total     $ (52,802 )    $ (15,443 )    $ (23,460 ) 

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      June 27, 2014     June 28, 2013  

Deferred tax assets:              

Net operating losses and tax credit carry forwards     $ 126,541     $ 146,488  
Stock based compensation     7,692     11,949  
Intangible and fixed assets     13,927     12,850  
Accruals and reserves     21,134     18,644  
Other     1,128     2,301  
Total deferred tax assets     170,422     192,232  

Deferred tax liabilities:              

        Deferred revenue     (1,348 )    (28,171 ) 

       Total deferred tax liabilities     (1,348 )    (28,171 ) 

Net deferred tax assets     169,074     164,061  
Less valuation allowance     (168,131 )    (163,308 ) 

Net deferred tax assets     $ 943     $ 753  
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As of June 27, 2014 , the Company has federal and state Research and Development tax credits of $5.6 million and $6.0 million , 
respectively and $4.8 million of foreign investment tax credits. If not utilized, the federal and foreign tax credits will begin to expire in fiscal 
2027 and 2019, respectively. The state tax credits do not expire.  

The Company's policy with respect to its undistributed foreign earnings is to consider those earnings to be indefinitely reinvested or 
repatriated tax-free and, accordingly, no related provision for income or withholding taxes have been provided. Upon distribution of those 
earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company may be subject to both income taxes and withholding taxes in the U.S. and various 
foreign countries. At June 27, 2014 , the Company did not record deferred tax liabilities of $5.0 million on approximately $17.9 million of 
earnings that are deemed to be permanently reinvested overseas or repatriated tax free.  

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 is as follows: 

A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest and penalties) from June 24, 2011 through June 27, 2014 are as 
follows (in thousands):  

At June 27, 2014 , the Company had approximately $6.0 million of gross unrecognized tax benefit of which $2.1 million , if recognized, 
will impact the effective tax rate. The Company does not expect that the total unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease in 
the next 12 months.  

The Company classifies interest expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as components of income tax expense. As of 
June 27, 2014 , the Company has accrued interest and penalties of approximately $6.8 million and $0.5 million , respectively, on the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheet.  

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

Federal statutory rate provision     35.0  %    35.0  %    35.0  % 

State taxes, net of federal tax benefit     (0.2 )     (1.3 )     (0.9 )  

Foreign rate differential     2.3     13.8     (5.4 )  

Stock based compensation     0.1     (2.1 )     (2.3 )  

Valuation allowance - US     (38.3 )     (47.0 )     (20.9 )  

Valuation allowance - Foreign     0.4     3.1     (7.4 )  

Unrecognized tax benefits     (0.1 )     68.9     4.9  
Foreign tax refunds     2.6     15.8     — 
Foreign withholding tax     —    —    (2.9 )  

Federal research credits     0.7     4.5     1.7  
Foreign dividend and other     (2.5 )     (8.6 )     (6.3 )  

Effective tax rate     — %    82.1  %    (4.5 )% 

Balance at June 24, 2011  $ 22,863  
Increase to current year positions  1,142  
Decrease to prior year positions  (12,556 ) 

Decrease due to lapse of statute of limitations  (2,182 ) 

Balance at June 29, 2012  9,267  
Increase to current year positions  524  
Decrease to prior year positions  (3,685 ) 

Decrease due to lapse of statute of limitations  (804 ) 

Decrease of unrecognized tax benefits related to settlements  (315 ) 

Balance at June 28, 2013  4,987  
Increase to current year positions  344  
Increase to prior year positions  910  
Decrease due to lapse of statute of limitations  (270 ) 

Balance at June 27, 2014  $ 5,971  
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During fiscal 2014, the Company recognized net expense of approximately $0.3 million for interest and $0.3 million for penalties resulting 
from reversals of unrecognized tax benefits and current year additions as recorded in the consolidated statement of operations.  

The Company’s U.S. federal tax returns for 2007 and prior years are no longer subject to examination. The Company’s state tax returns for 
years prior to 2007 are not subject to examination.  

The Company’s foreign subsidiaries file income tax returns in the countries in which they have operations. Generally, these countries have 
statute of limitations ranging from 3 to 7 years. Tax years still open to examination by foreign tax authorities range from 2007 through 2013.  

It is reasonably possible that over the next twelve-month period the Company may experience an increase or decrease in its unrecognized 
tax benefits. However, it is not possible to estimate either the estimated amount or the range of any increase or decrease at this time.  

22. SEGMENT INFORMATION  

Commencing in the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company started managing its business primarily on a business unit basis versus the 
geographic basis previously used by management. Accordingly, the Company has determined its operating and reporting segments, which is 
based on the business unit structure, to be Compute, Storage and Service. The Company's operating segments are determined based upon several 
criteria including: the Company's internal organizational structure; the manner in which the Company's operations are managed; the criteria used 
by the Company's Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), to evaluate segment performance; and the 
Company's availability of separate financial information.  

A description of Company's three reportable segments is as follows:  

Compute— The Compute solutions segment includes our scale-out computing, scale-up computing and software solutions. Compute 
solutions also include integrated third-party hardware and software products that we sell to provide a single source solution for our customers. 
Our compute solutions are designed to minimize the number and complexity of interconnects for power and data transfer to improve reliability, 
speed of implementation and serviceability.  

Storage— The Storage solutions segment includes both hardware and software offerings to address virtually every type of data storage and 
management requirement. Products range from entry-level disk arrays to complex storage systems, with innovative technology and hardware, to 
include the SGI Modular InfiniteStorage™ platform, SGI InfiniteStorage™ gateway and SGI CXFS™ file system. Our storage solutions are 
designed to provide extreme scale, broad flexibility and to minimize the cost to store data.  

Service— The Service segment is comprised of customer service support and professional services. Our customer support organization 
provides ongoing maintenance and technical support for our products and some third-party products, as well as contracted maintenance services, 
hardware deployment services (install and de-install), time and materials-based services and spare parts. Our professional services organization 
provides value added services associated with technology consulting, project management and customer education, all of which help our 
customers realize the full value of their information technology investments.  

All historical segment numbers for fiscal 2013 and 2012 have been recast to conform to the fiscal 2014 business unit presentation.  

The Company's CODM evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on revenue and operating profit (loss). Revenue is 
generally allocated based on the type of products and service provided to our customers. Operating profit (loss) for each segment includes related 
cost of sales and operating expenses directly attributable to the segment. A portion of the segments' expenses arise from shared services and 
infrastructure that the Company provides to the segments in order to realize economies of scale and to efficiently use resources. These expenses, 
collectively called corporate charges, include costs of centralized research and development and other corporate infrastructure expenses. The 
corporate charges that are directly attributable to the segments are allocated and are reassessed on a periodic basis. The allocations have been 
determined on a basis that the Company considers to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided to or benefits received by 
the segments. The profitability of each of the segments is measured after excluding share based compensation expenses, amortization of 
intangibles, restructuring charges, manufacturing transition costs, general and administration charges, other unallocated corporate charges and 
other items as noted in the reconciliation below as management does not include this information in its measurement of the performance of the 
operating segments.  
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Segment Results  

The following table presents revenue and operating profit (loss) for the Company’s segments for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in 
thousands):  

(1) The profitability of each of the segments is measured after excluding unallocated corporate charges, restructuring and severance, amortization and impairment of acquired 
intangibles, share based compensation expenses, manufacturing transition and termination costs, and other items as noted in the reconciliation below.  

The following table reconciles segment results to our total company results from operations before taxes:  

The Company derives the results of the business segments directly from its internal management reporting system. The presentation of our 
revenue for segment information purposes differs from the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations. The 
segment information is presented on the basis which the Company's CODM evaluates the performance of its operating segments. The combined 
product and service revenue is allocated to product and service revenue on a contractual basis for segment information purposes.  

The Company's assets are located primarily in the United States and are not allocated to any specific business segment. The Company does 
not measure the performance of its business segments on any asset-based metrics. Therefore, reportable segment information is presented only 
for revenue and operating profit (loss).  

Customer Information  

For fiscal 2014, various agencies of the United States government, excluding system integrators, accounted for 10% or more of our 
revenue. For fiscal 2013 and 2012 , Amazon accounted for approximately 18% and 16% of our revenue,  

 

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      June 27, 2014     June 28, 2013     June 29, 2012  

Total net revenue                    

Compute     $ 307,440     $ 498,166     $ 486,188  
Storage     67,125     92,523     70,545  
Service     155,381     176,538     196,254  

Total net revenue     $ 529,946     $ 767,227     $ 752,987  

              

Operating profit from reportable segments                    

Compute     $ (989 )    $ 30,304     $ 25,320  
Storage     843     1,140     (2,069 ) 

Service     60,412     58,805     56,616  

Total operating profit from reportable segments (1)     $ 60,266     $ 90,249     $ 79,867  

      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013     
June 29,  

2012  

      (in thousands)  

Total reportable segments' operating profit     $ 60,266     $ 90,249     $ 79,867  
All other corporate charges:                    

Unallocated operating expenses     73,357     76,186     73,054  
Restructuring and severance     12,222     13,965     3,092  
Amortization and impairment of intangibles     6,748     3,709     5,190  
Share based compensation     11,979     10,100     10,061  
Manufacturing transition / termination costs     2,199     —    — 
Excess and obsolescence inventory charges     5,424     —    10,135  
Other     3,184     (57 )     (222 )  

Total all other corporate charges     115,113     103,903     101,310  

Loss from operations, as reported     $ (54,847 )     $ (13,654 )     $ (21,443 )  
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respectively. Our direct sales to the U.S. government accounted for 16% , 19% , and less than 10% of our revenue in fiscal 2014, 2013, and 
2012, respectively.  

At June 27, 2014 , two customers accounted for 27% of the Company's accounts receivable. At June 28, 2013 , one customer accounted for 
20% of the Company's accounts receivable.  

Geographic Information  

The following table presents revenue by geographic region for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands except percentages):  

Americas includes both North and South America. EMEA includes European countries, as well as the Middle East and Africa. APJ 
includes Australia, Japan and all other Asian countries.  

International sales to Japan, the only foreign country which accounted for ten percent or more of revenue, was $108.3 million for fiscal 
2014 or 20% of revenue, $98.9 million for fiscal 2013 or 13% of revenue and $130.9 million or 17% of revnue for fiscal 2012 .  

Approximately 97% and 94% of the Company’s property and equipment was located in the United States as of June 27, 2014 and June 28, 
2013 , respectively. No individual foreign country’s property and equipment was material for disclosure purposes.  

23. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES  

The Company has issued financial guarantees to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to government authorities for VAT and 
other taxes and to various other parties to support payments in advance of future delivery on goods and services. The majority of the Company’s 
financial guarantees have terms of one year or more. The maximum potential obligation under financial guarantees at June 27, 2014 was $4.6 
million for which the Company has $4.5 million of assets held as collateral. The full amount of the assets held as collateral are included in short-
term and long-term restricted cash in the consolidated balance sheets.  

24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

Leases  

The Company leases certain real and personal property under non-cancelable operating leases. The Company leases its facilities and office 
buildings under operating leases that expire at various dates through November 2023. Certain leases also contain escalation and renewal option 
clauses calling for increased rents. Where a lease contains an escalation clause or a concession such as a rent holiday, rent expense is recognized 
using the straight line method over the term of the lease.  
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     Fiscal Year Ended  

     
June 27,  

2014    
June 28,  

2013    
June 29,  

2012  

              

Americas    $ 277,536    $ 496,508    473,746  
     As a percent of total net revenue    52.4 %   64.7 %   62.9 % 

EMEA    116,071    134,152    108,849  
     As a percent of total net revenue    21.9 %   17.5 %   14.5 % 

APJ    136,339    136,567    170,392  
     As a percent of total net revenue    25.7 %   17.8 %   22.6 % 

Total revenue    $ 529,946    $ 767,227    752,987  
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Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows (in thousands):  

Rent expense for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $7.4 million , $7.5 million and $8.3 million , respectively.  

Purchase Commitments  

In connection with supplier agreements, the Company has purchase obligations that include agreements to purchase certain units of 
inventory and non-inventory items through 2015. These purchase obligations that are enforceable and legally binding on the Company specify 
all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased, fixed, minimum or variable price provisions and the approximate 
timing of the transaction.  

As of June 27, 2014 , these non-cancelable purchase commitments were approximately $18.5 million , of which $17.2 million are due in 
the next 12 months.  

In June 2013, the Company signed a lease for a new headquarters facility and incurred approximately $10.7 million for capital 
expenditures and received approximately $5.9 million in lease incentives.  

Indemnification Agreements  

The Company enters into standard indemnification agreements with its customers and certain other business partners in the ordinary course 
of business. These agreements include provisions for indemnifying the customer against any claim brought by a third party to the extent any 
such claim alleges that the Company’s product infringes a patent, copyright or trademark, or misappropriates a trade secret, of that third-party. 
The agreements generally limit the scope of the available remedies in a variety of industry-standard methods, including, but not limited to, 
product usage and geography-based limitations, a right to control the defense or settlement of any claim and a right to replace or modify the 
infringing products to make them non-infringing. The Company has not incurred significant expenses related to these indemnification 
agreements and no material claims for such indemnifications were outstanding as of June 27, 2014 . As a result, the Company believes the 
estimated fair value of these indemnification agreements, if any, to be immaterial; accordingly, no liability has been recorded with respect to 
such indemnifications as of June 27, 2014 .  

Credit facility  

The Company's credit facility includes a $10.0 million letter of credit subfacility. As of June 27, 2014 , the Company has a $2.0 million 
outstanding letter of credit to back the Company's obligation to pay or perform when required to do so pursuant to the requirements of an 
underlying agreement or the provision of goods or services to a supplier. See Note 16 "Credit Facility" for more information regarding the credit 
facility.  

Contingencies  

The Company may, from time to time, be involved in legal proceedings and disputes that arise in the normal course of business. These 
matters include product liability actions, patent infringement actions, contract disputes, domestic and international federal, state and local tax 
reviews and audits and other matters. The Company also may be subject to litigation and/or adverse rulings or judgments as a result of certain 
contractual indemnification obligations. The Company records a provision for a liability when management believes that it is both probable that 
a liability has been incurred and it can reasonably estimate the amount of the loss. The Company believes it has adequate provisions for any such 
matters. The Company reviews these provisions at least quarterly and adjusts these provisions to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, 
rulings, advice of legal counsel and other information and events pertaining to a particular case.  

Third parties in the past have asserted, and may in the future assert, intellectual property infringement claims against the Company, and 
such future claims, if proven, could require the Company to pay substantial damages or to redesign its existing products or pay fees to obtain 
cross-license agreements. Litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce or defend the  

 

Fiscal Year     Amount  

2015     $ 6,229  
2016     4,086  
2017     2,755  
2018     2,376  
2019     2,377  
Thereafter     11,167  

Total     $ 28,990  
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Company's intellectual property rights, to protect the Company's trade secrets or to determine the validity and scope of its proprietary rights or 
the proprietary rights of others. Any such litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of management resources, either of which 
could harm the Company's business, operating results and financial condition. Further, many of the Company's current and potential competitors 
have the ability to dedicate substantially greater resources to enforcing and defending their intellectual property rights than the Company.  

Additionally, from time to time, the Company receives inquiries from regulatory agencies informally requesting information or 
documentation. There can be no assurance in any given case that such informal review will not lead to further proceedings involving the 
Company in the future.  

The Company is not aware of any pending disputes, including those outlined above, that would be likely to have a material adverse effect, 
either individually or in the aggregate, on its consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. However, litigation is subject to 
inherent uncertainties and costs and unfavorable outcomes could occur. An unfavorable outcome could include the payment of monetary 
damages, cash or other settlement, or an injunction prohibiting it from selling one or more products. If an unfavorable resolution were to occur, 
there exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on the Company's consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of 
the period in which the resolution occurs or on future periods.  
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25. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUD ITED)  

The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations for fiscal 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except per share amounts).  
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Fiscal Quarter Ended  

June 27,  
2014    

March 28,  
2014    

December 27,  
2013    

September 27,  
2013  

Revenue    $ 142,084    $ 124,283    $ 116,060    $ 147,519  
Gross profit    $ 35,606    $ 31,070    $ 33,483    $ 38,248  
Net loss    $ (10,449 )   $ (21,858 )   $ (13,684 )   $ (6,823 ) 

                  

Basic and diluted net loss per share:    $ (0.30 )   $ (0.64 )   $ (0.40 )   $ (0.20 ) 

Shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share:   34,445    34,325    34,176    34,096  

     

Fiscal Quarter Ended  

June 28,  
2013    

March 29,  
2013    

December 28,  
2012    

September 28,  
2012  

Revenue    $ 170,532    $ 232,588    $ 171,226    $ 192,881  
Gross profit    $ 46,786    $ 52,492    $ 47,564    $ 42,210  
Net (loss) income    $ (4,465 )   $ 9,224    $ 1,101    $ (8,680 ) 

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share:                      

Basic    $ (0.13 )   $ 0.28    $ 0.03    $ (0.27 ) 

Diluted    $ (0.13 )   $ 0.27    $ 0.03    $ (0.27 ) 

Shares used in the calculation of net (loss) income per share:                      

Basic    33,859    33,201    32,410    32,166  
Diluted    33,859    34,467    32,778    32,166  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  
(In thousands)  
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      Fiscal Year Ended  

      
June 27,  

2014     
June 28,  

2013  

Allowance for doubtful accounts:              

Beginning balance     $ 1,074     $ 1,597  
Charges, net of recoveries     70     38  
Write-offs and adjustments     (857 )    (561 ) 

Ending balance     $ 287     $ 1,074  
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  

None  

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures  

Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). The evaluation considered the procedures designed to ensure that the 
information included in reports we file under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the appropriate time 
periods and that information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial 
officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Based on that evaluation, our management, including our chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer, has concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance 
level as of June 27, 2014 .  

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not 
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial 
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, our 
management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 27, 2014 .  

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 27, 2014 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, 
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report appearing below.  

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

The Company also evaluated changes to its internal control over financial reporting. There were no changes in the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting during the fiscal year ended June 27, 2014 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially 
affect the Company's internal control over financial reporting.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of  
Silicon Graphics International Corp.  
Milpitas, CA  

 

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Silicon Graphics International Corp. and subsidiaries (the "Company") 
as of June 27, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial 
reporting based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial 
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal 
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.  

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 27, 2014, 
based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission.  

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended June 27, 2014 of the Company and our report dated September 8, 2014 expressed 
an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedule.  

 

 

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

San Jose, CA  
September 8, 2014  
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Item 9B. Other Information  

None  
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PART III  

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance  

Information required by this Item with respect to our executive officers is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K under the heading “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”  

All other information required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein to our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders (the “ Proxy Statement ”) scheduled for December 9, 2014 .  

 

Item 11. Executive Compensation  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.  

 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.  

 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.  

 

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.  
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PART IV  
 

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules  

(a) 1. Financial Statements  

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by 
reference.  

2. Financial Statement Schedules  

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are either not applicable or the required information is shown in 
the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.  

3. Exhibits  

See the Exhibit Index following the signature page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.  
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

Dated: September 8, 2014  
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      SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP. 

        

      By: /s/    ROBERT J. NIKL      

         
Robert J. Nikl  

Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 24.1 

POWER OF ATTORNEY  

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Jorge L. 
Titinger and Robert J. Nikl, and each of them, acting individually, as his or her attorney-in-fact, each with full power of substitution and 
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and 
every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he 
or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his 
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. This Power of Attorney may be signed in several counterparts.  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated .  
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Signature     Title     Date  
        

/s/ Jorge L. Titinger  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director     September 8, 2014  

Jorge L. Titinger     (Principal Executive Officer)        

        

/s/ Robert J. Nikl  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer     September 8, 2014  

Robert J. Nikl     (Principal Financial Officer)        

          

        

/s/ Mekonnen P. Asrat  Vice President of Finance and Corporate Controller     September 8, 2014  

Mekonnen P. Asrat     (Principal Accounting Officer)        

          

/s/ Charles M. Boesenberg  Director     September 8, 2014  

Charles M. Boesenberg              

        

/s/ Gary A. Griffiths     Director     September 8, 2014  

Gary A. Griffiths              

        

/s/ Michael W. Hagee     Director     September 8, 2014  

Michael W. Hagee           

          

/s/ Douglas R. King     Director     September 8, 2014  

Douglas R. King              

        

/s/ Hagi Schwartz     Director     September 8, 2014  

Hagi Schwartz              

        

/s/ Ronald D. Verdoorn     Chairman of the Board of Directors     September 8, 2014  

Ronald D. Verdoorn              
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Exhibit  
Number     Exhibit Description     

Incorporated by Reference     

Filing Date     
Filed  

Herewith  Form     Ex. No.     File No.     

2.1 

    

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009, by 
and among Silicon Graphics, Inc., the subsidiaries of Silicon 
Graphics, Inc. listed on Schedule I thereto, and Rackable 
Systems, Inc.     

8-K  

   

2.1 

   

000-51333 

   

4/1/2009 

      

2.2 

    

Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 
31, 2009, by and among Silicon Graphics, Inc., the 
subsidiaries of Silicon Graphics, Inc. listed on Schedule I 
thereto, and Rackable Systems, Inc., dated as of April 30, 
2009.     

8-K  

   

2.1 

   

000-51333 

   

5/5/2009 

      

2.3 

    

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of March 8, 2011, by 
and among Silicon Graphics World Trade B.V., SGI Japan, 
Ltd., certain subsidiaries of SGI Japan and NEC 
CORPORATION as the Stockholders' Representative.     

8-K  

   

2.1 

   

000-51333 

   

3/9/2011 

      

3.1     Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.     10-Q     3.1    000-51333    8/12/2005       

3.2     Amended and Restated Bylaws.                             X  

3.3     Certificate of Ownership and Merger.     8-K     3.3    000-51333    5/21/2009       

4.1     Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3.                                

4.2     Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate.     8-K     4.2    000-51333    5/21/2009       

10.1 
 

* Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and 
executive officers.     

8-K  
   

99.1 
   

000-51333 
   

5/14/2012 
      

10.2  *   2005 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.     10-K     10.3    0000-51333    9/10/2012       

10.3  *   2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan.     S-1     10.1    333-122576    2/4/2005       

10.4  *   2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended.     10-K     10.5    0000-51333    9/10/2012     

10.5 
 

*   Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 New 
Recruit Equity Incentive Plan.     

8-K  
   

10.2 
   

000-51333 
   

1/30/2006 
      

10.6 
 

*  2006 New Recruit Equity Inventive Plan, as amended and 
restated.     

10-K  
   

10.48 
   

000-51333 
   

2/28/2007 
      

10.7 
 

*  Form of Option Agreement and Grant Notices under the 
2005 Equity Incentive Plan.     

8-K  
   

10.2 
   

000-51333 
   

9/5/2006 
   

 

10.8 
 

*  Form of Stock Bonus Award Agreement and Grant Notice 
under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan.     

8-K  
   

10.3 
   

000-51333 
   

9/5/2006 
   

 

10.9 
 

*   Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement under the 
2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan.     

10-Q  
   

10.11 
   

000-51333 
   

11/14/2006 
      

10.10 
 

*   Form of 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit 
Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement     

10-K  
   

10.16 
   

000-51333 
   

9/10/2012 
      

10.11 
 

*   Offer Letter made by the Registrant to Anthony Carrozza, 
dated January 24, 2008     

10-K  
   

10.73 
   

000-51333 
   

3/19/2009 
      

10.12 

 

*   First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated 
December 23, 2008, between the Registrant and Anthony 
Carrozza     

10-K  

   

10.74 

   

000-51333 

   

3/19/2009 
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Exhibit  
Number     Exhibit Description     

Incorporated by Reference     

Filing Date     
Filed  

Herewith  Form     Ex. No.     File No.     

10.13 

 

*  Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement Letter 
dated December 17, 2012 between the Company and 
Anthony Carrozza.     

10-K 

   

10.15 

    

000-51333 

   

9/9/2013 

      

10.14 

 

*  Third Amendment to the Employment Agreement Letter, 
dated February 21, 2013 between the Company and Anthony 
Carrozza.     

10-Q 

   

10.4 

    

000-51333 

   

5/3/2013 

      

10.15 
 

*   Separation Agreement dated August 26, 2013 between the 
Company and Anthony Carrozza.     

8-K 
   

10.1 
    

000-51333 
   

8/28/2013 
      

10.16 
 

*   Offer Letter, dated September 9, 2011, between the 
Registrant and Jennifer Pileggi.     

10-Q 
   

10.1 
    

000-51333 
   

11/9/2011 
      

10.17 

 

*   First Amendment to Employment Agreement Letter dated 
December 17, 2012 between the Company and Jennifer W. 
Pileggi.     

10-K 

   

10.19 

    

000-5133 

   

9/9/2013 

      

10.18 

 

*   Second Amendment to Employment Agreement Letter dated 
February 21, 2013 between the Company and Jennifer W. 
Pileggi.     

10-Q 

   

10.3 

    

000-51333 

   

5/3/2013 

      

10.19 
 

*   Employment Agreement Letter, dated February 21, 2012, 
between the Registrant and Jorge L. Titinger.     

8-K 
   

10.1 
    

000-51333 
   

2/23/2012 
      

10.20 
 

*   First Amendment to Employment Letter, dated April 8, 2013 
between the Registrant and Jorge L. Titinger     

101-Q 
   

10.1 
    

000-51333 
   

11/4/2013 
      

10.21 
 

*   Employment Agreement Letter, dated April 30, 2012, 
between the Registrant and Robert J. Nikl.     

8-K 
   

10.1 
    

000-51333 
   

4/30/2012 
      

10.22 
 

*   First Amendment to Employment Letter, dated December 
20, 2012 between the Registrant and Robert J. Nikl     

10-Q 
   

10.2 
    

000-51333 
   

11/4/2013 
      

10.23 
 

*   Employment Agreement Letter dated January 18, 2013 
between the registrant and Cassio Conceicao.     

8-K 
   

10.1 
    

000-51333 
   

1/22/2013 
      

10.24 

    

Credit Agreement, dated December 5, 2011, by and among 
the Registrant, Silicon Graphics Federal, Inc. and Wells 
Fargo Capital Finance, LLC.     

8-K 

   

10.1 

    

000-51333 

   

12/9/2011 

      

10.25 

    

Amendment Number One to Credit Agreement, dated 
February 7, 2012, among the Registrant, Silicon Graphics 
Federal, Inc. and Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC.     

10-K 

   

10.35 

    

000-51333 

   

9/10/2012 

      

10.26 

    

Amendment Number Two to Credit Agreement, dated March 
30, 2012, among the Registrant, Silicon Graphics Federal, 
Inc. and Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC.     

10-K 

   

10.36 

    

000-51333 

   

9/10/2012 

      

10.27 

    

Amendment Number Three to Credit Agreement, dated 
March 30, 2012, among the Registrant, Silicon Graphics 
Federal, Inc. and Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC.     

10-K 

   

10.37 

    

000-51333 

   

9/10/2012 

      

10.28 

    

Amendment Number Four to Credit Agreement, dated 
February 25, 2013, by and among the Registrant, Silicon 
Graphics Federal, Inc., the Lenders that are signatories 
thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC.     

8-K 

   

10.1 

    

000-51333 

   

2/26/2013 

      

10.29 

    

Amendment Number Five to Credit Agreement and Waiver, 
dated July 15, 2013, by and among the Registrant, Silicon 
Graphics Federal, Inc., the Lenders that are signatories 
thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC.     

10-Q 

   

10.3 

    

000-51333 

   

11/4/2013 

      

10.30 

    

Amendment Number Six to Credit Agreement and Limited 
Waiver, Consent and Release dated January 16, 2014 by and 
among the Company and SGI Federal, and the Lenders and 
Agent.     

8-K 

   

10.1 

    

000-51333 

   

1/21/2014 
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Exhibit  
Number     Exhibit Description     

Incorporated by Reference     
Filing  
Date     

Filed  
Herewith  Form     Ex. No.     File No.     

10.31 
   

Lease dated June 27, 2013 between the Registrant and The 
Irvine Company LLC.     

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

6/27/2013 
      

                          

21.1     Significant Subsidiaries of the Company                             X  

23.1     Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm                             X  

24.1     Power of Attorney (Included within document after 
SIGNATURES)                             

X  

31.1     Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).                             X  

31.2     Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).                             X  

32.1 **   Certifications required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) 
and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United 
States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350).                             

X  

  

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.  

**  The certification attached as Exhibit 32.1 accompanies the Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed “filed” by Silicon Graphics International Corp. for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  
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BYLAWS  

OF  

SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  
(A DELAWARE CORPORATION)  

 

ARTICLE I  

OFFICES  

Section 1. Registered Office. The registered office of the corporation in the State of Delaware shall be in the City of 
Wilmington, County of New Castle.  

Section 2. Other Offices. The corporation shall also have and maintain an office or principal place of business at such place 
as may be fixed by the Board of Directors, and may also have offices at such other places, both within and without the State of 
Delaware as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the corporation may require.  

ARTICLE II  

CORPORATE SEAL  

Section 3. Corporate Seal. The Board of Directors may adopt a corporate seal. The corporate seal shall consist of a die 
bearing the name of the corporation and the inscription, “Corporate Seal-Delaware.” Said seal may be used by causing it or a 
facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or reproduced or otherwise.  

ARTICLE III  

STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETINGS  

Section 4. Place Of Meetings. Meetings of the stockholders of the corporation may be held at such place, either within or 
without the State of Delaware, as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may, in 
its sole discretion, determine that the meeting shall not be held at any place, but may instead be held solely by means of remote 
communication as provided under the Delaware General Corporation Law (“DGCL”).  

Section 5. Annual Meetings.  

(a) The annual meeting of the stockholders of the corporation, for the purpose of election of directors and for such other 
business as may lawfully come before it, shall be held on such date and at such time as may be designated from time to time by the 
Board of Directors. Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors of the corporation and the proposal of business to 
be considered by the stockholders may be made at an annual meeting of stockholders: (i) pursuant to the corporation’s notice of 
meeting of stockholders; (ii) by or at the direction of the Board of Directors; or (iii) by any stockholder of the corporation who was 
a stockholder of record at the time of giving the stockholder’s notice provided for in the following paragraph, who is entitled to 
vote at the meeting and who complied with the notice procedures set forth in Section 7.  

   
(b) At an annual meeting of the stockholders, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been properly brought 

before the meeting. For nominations or other business to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder pursuant to 
clause (iii) of Section 5(a) of these Bylaws, (i) the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of 
the corporation, (ii) such other business must be a proper matter for stockholder action under DGCL, (iii) if the stockholder, or the 
beneficial owner on whose behalf any such proposal or nomination is made, has provided the corporation with a Solicitation  
 

1  
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Notice (as defined in clause (iii) of the last sentence of this Section 5(b)), such stockholder or beneficial owner must, in the case of 
a proposal, have delivered a proxy statement and form of proxy to holders of at least the percentage of the corporation’s voting 
shares required under applicable law to carry any such proposal, or, in the case of a nomination or nominations, have delivered a 
proxy statement and form of proxy to holders of a percentage of the corporation’s voting shares reasonably believed by such 
stockholder or beneficial owner to be sufficient to elect the nominee or nominees proposed to be nominated by such stockholder, 
and must, in either case, have included in such materials the Solicitation Notice, and (iv) if no Solicitation Notice relating thereto 
has been timely provided pursuant to this section, the stockholder or beneficial owner proposing such business or nomination must 
not have solicited a number of proxies sufficient to have required the delivery of such a Solicitation Notice under this Section 5. To 
be timely, a stockholder’s notice shall be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not later 
than the close of business on the ninetieth (90 th ) day nor earlier than the close of business on the one hundred twentieth (120 th ) day 
prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting; provided, however, that in the event that the date of the annual 
meeting is advanced more than thirty (30) days prior to or delayed by more than thirty (30) days after the anniversary of the 
preceding year’s annual meeting, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so delivered not earlier than the close of business 
on the one hundred twentieth (120 th ) day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 
ninetieth (90 th ) day prior to such annual meeting or the tenth (10 th ) day following the day on which public announcement of the 
date of such meeting is first made. In no event shall the public announcement of an adjournment of an annual meeting commence a 
new time period for the giving of a stockholder’s notice as described above. Such stockholder’s notice shall set forth: (A) as to each 
person whom the stockholder proposed to nominate for election or reelection as a director all information relating to such person 
that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors in an election contest, or is otherwise required, in 
each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) and Rule 14a-4(d) 
thereunder (including such person’s written consent to being named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director 
if elected); (B) as to any other business that the stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting, a brief description of the business 
desired to be brought before the meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the meeting and any material interest in such 
business of such stockholder and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal is made; and (C) as to the stockholder 
giving the notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or proposal is made (i) the name and address of 
such stockholder, as they appear on the corporation’s books, and of such beneficial owner, (ii) the class and number of shares of the 
corporation which are owned beneficially and of record by such stockholder and such beneficial owner, and (iii) whether either 
such stockholder or beneficial owner intends to deliver a proxy statement and form of proxy to holders of, in the case of the 
proposal, at least the percentage of the corporation’s voting shares required under applicable law to carry the proposal or, in the 
case of a nomination or nominations, a sufficient number of holders of the corporation’s voting shares to elect such nominee or 
nominees (an affirmative statement of such intent, a “Solicitation Notice”).  

(c) Notwithstanding anything in the third sentence of Section 5(b) of these Bylaws to the contrary, in the event that the 
number of directors to be elected to the Board of Directors of the Corporation is increased and there is no public announcement 
naming all of the nominees for director or specifying the size of the increased Board of Directors made by the corporation at least 
one hundred (100) days prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting, a stockholder’s notice required by this 
Section 5 shall also be considered timely, but only with respect to nominees for any new positions created by such increase, if it 
shall be delivered to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the corporation not later than the close of business on the 
tenth (10 th ) day following the day on which such public announcement is first made by the corporation.  

(d) Only such persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 5 shall be eligible 
to serve as directors and only such business shall be conducted at a meeting of stockholders as shall have been brought before the 
meeting in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 5. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Chairman of the 
meeting shall have the power and duty to determine whether a nomination or any business proposed to be brought before the 
meeting was made, or proposed, as the case may be, in accordance with the procedures set forth in these Bylaws and, if any  
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proposed nomination or business is not in compliance with these Bylaws, to declare that such defective proposal or nomination 
shall not be presented for stockholder action at the meeting and shall be disregarded.  

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 5, in order to include information with respect to a 
stockholder proposal in the proxy statement and form of proxy for a stockholders’ meeting, stockholders must provide notice as 
required by the regulations promulgated under the 1934 Act. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed to affect any rights of 
stockholders to request inclusion of proposals in the corporation proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the 1934 Act.  

(f) For purposes of this Section 5, “public announcement” shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by the Dow 
Jones News Service, Associated Press or comparable national news service or in a document publicly filed by the corporation with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13, 14 or 15(d) of the 1934 Act.  

Section 6. Special Meetings.  

(a) Special meetings of the stockholders of the corporation may be called, for any purpose or purposes, by (i) the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors, (ii) the Chief Executive Officer, (iii) the Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by 
a majority of the total number of authorized directors (whether or not there exist any vacancies in previously authorized 
directorships at the time any such resolution is presented to the Board of Directors for adoption), or (iv) except as specified in the 
Certificate of Incorporation, at any time prior to the second anniversary (but not thereafter) of the closing of an initial public 
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”), covering the 
offer and sale of Common Stock of the corporation to the public (the “Initial Public Offering”), by stockholders holding twenty 
percent (20%) or more of the outstanding shares. At any time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the 
California General Corporation Law (“CGCL”), stockholders holding five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding shares shall 
have the right to call a meeting of stockholders only as set forth in Section 18(c) herein.  

(b) If a special meeting is properly called by any person or persons other than the Board of Directors, the request shall 
be in writing, specifying the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted, and shall be delivered personally or sent by 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, or the 
Secretary of the corporation. No business may be transacted at such special meeting otherwise than specified in such notice. The 
Board of Directors shall determine the time and place of such special meeting, which shall be held not less than thirty-five (35) nor 
more than one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the receipt of the request. Upon determination of the time and place of 
the meeting, the officer receiving the request shall cause notice to be given to the stockholders entitled to vote, in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 7 of these Bylaws. Nothing contained in this paragraph (b) shall be construed as limiting, fixing, or 
affecting the time when a meeting of stockholders called by action of the Board of Directors may be held.  

(c) Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors may be made at a special meeting of stockholders at 
which directors are to be elected pursuant to the corporation’s notice of meeting (i) by or at the direction of the Board of Directors 
or (ii) by any stockholder of the corporation who is a stockholder of record at the time of giving notice provided for in these Bylaws 
who shall be entitled to vote at the meeting and who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this Section 6(c). In the event 
the corporation calls a special meeting of stockholders for the purpose of electing one or more directors to the Board of Directors, 
any such stockholder may nominate a person or persons (as the case may be), for election to such position(s) as specified in the 
corporation’s notice of meeting, if the stockholder’s notice required by Section 5(b) of these Bylaws shall be delivered to the 
Secretary at the principal executive offices of the corporation not earlier than the close of business on the one hundred twentieth 
(120 th ) day prior to such special meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the ninetieth (90 th ) day prior to 
such meeting or the tenth (10 th ) day following the day on which public announcement is first made of the date of the special 
meeting and of the nominees proposed by the Board of Directors to be elected at such meeting. In no event shall the public 
announcement of an adjournment of a special meeting commence a new time period for the giving of a stockholder’s notice as 
described above.  
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Section 7. Notice Of Meetings. Except as otherwise provided by law, notice, given in writing or by electronic transmission, 
of each meeting of stockholders shall be given not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to 
each stockholder entitled to vote at such meeting, such notice to specify the place, if any, date and hour, in the case of special 
meetings, the purpose or purposes of the meeting, and the means of remote communications, if any, by which stockholders and 
proxy holders may be deemed to be present in person and vote at any such meeting. If mailed, notice is given when deposited in the 
United States mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder at such stockholder’s address as it appears on the records of the 
corporation. Notice of the time, place, if any, and purpose of any meeting of stockholders may be waived in writing, signed by the 
person entitled to notice thereof, or by electronic transmission by such person, either before or after such meeting, and will be 
waived by any stockholder by his attendance thereat in person, by remote communication, if applicable, or by proxy, except when 
the stockholder attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any 
business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Any stockholder so waiving notice of such meeting shall be bound 
by the proceedings of any such meeting in all respects as if due notice thereof had been given.  

Section 8. Quorum.  

(a) At all meetings of stockholders, except where otherwise provided by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation, or 
by these Bylaws, the presence, in person, by remote communication, if applicable, or by proxy duly authorized, of the holders of a 
majority of the outstanding shares of stock entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In the absence 
of a quorum, any meeting of stockholders may be adjourned, from time to time, either by the chairman of the meeting or by vote of 
the holders of a majority of the shares represented thereat, but no other business shall be transacted at such meeting. The 
stockholders present at a duly called or convened meeting, at which a quorum is present, may continue to transact business until 
adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough stockholders to leave less than a quorum. Except as otherwise provided by 
statute or by applicable stock exchange or Nasdaq rules, or by the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, in all matters other 
than the election of directors, the affirmative vote of the majority of shares present in person, by remote communication, if 
applicable, or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote generally on the subject matter shall be the act of the 
stockholders.  

(b) Except as otherwise provided by statute, the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, (i) in a contested election 
of directors (i.e. an election in which there are more nominees for director than there are open positions for directors), directors 
shall be elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present in person, by remote communication, if applicable, or represented 
by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote generally on the election of directors, and (ii) in any uncontested election of directors, 
directors shall be elected if they shall receive more “for” votes than “withheld” votes of the shares present in person, by remote 
communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote generally on the election of directors. The 
Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) shall nominate for re-election as director only those candidates who have tendered an 
irrevocable resignation as a director, which resignation shall be conditioned upon both (A) such director failing to have received 
more “for” votes than “withheld” votes in an election and (B) acceptance by the Board of Directors of such resignation. Where a 
separate vote by a class or classes or series is required, except where otherwise provided by the statute or by the Certificate of 
Incorporation or these Bylaws, a majority of the outstanding shares of such class or classes or series, present in person, by remote 
communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy duly authorized, shall constitute a quorum entitled to take action with respect 
to that vote on that matter. Except where otherwise provided by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the 
affirmative vote of the majority (execpt in the case of the election of directors, which is as provided above) of shares of such class 
or classes or series present in person, by remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy at the meeting shall be the 
act of such class or classes or series.  

Section 9. Adjournment And Notice Of Adjourned Meetings. Any meeting of stockholders, whether annual or special, 
may be adjourned from time to time either by the chairman of the meeting or by the vote of a majority of the shares present in 
person, by remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy at the meeting. When a meeting is adjourned to another 
time or place, if any, notice need not be given of the  
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adjourned meeting if the time and place, if any, thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the 
adjourned meeting, the corporation may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the 
adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a 
notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting.  

Section 10. Voting Rights. For the purpose of determining those stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting of the 
stockholders, except as otherwise provided by law, only persons in whose names shares stand on the stock records of the 
corporation on the record date, as provided in Section 12 of these Bylaws, shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders. 
Every person entitled to vote shall have the right to do so either in person, by remote communication, if applicable, or by an agent 
or agents authorized by a proxy granted in accordance with Delaware law. An agent so appointed need not be a stockholder. No 
proxy shall be voted after three (3) years from its date of creation unless the proxy provides for a longer period.  

Section 11. Joint Owners Of Stock. If shares or other securities having voting power stand of record in the names of two 
(2) or more persons, whether fiduciaries, members of a partnership, joint tenants, tenants in common, tenants by the entirety, or 
otherwise, or if two (2) or more persons have the same fiduciary relationship respecting the same shares, unless the Secretary is 
given written notice to the contrary and is furnished with a copy of the instrument or order appointing them or creating the 
relationship wherein it is so provided, their acts with respect to voting shall have the following effect: (a) if only one (1) votes, his 
act binds all; (b) if more than one (1) votes, the act of the majority so voting binds all; (c) if more than one (1) votes, but the vote is 
evenly split on any particular matter, each faction may vote the securities in question proportionally, or may apply to the Delaware 
Court of Chancery for relief as provided in the DGCL, Section 217(b). If the instrument filed with the Secretary shows that any 
such tenancy is held in unequal interests, a majority or even-split for the purpose of subsection (c) shall be a majority or even-split 
in interest.  

Section 12. List Of Stockholders. The Secretary shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of 
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at said meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, showing the address 
of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination 
of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting, (a) on a reasonably accessible electronic network, provided that the 
information required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting, or (b) during ordinary business hours, at 
the principal place of business of the corporation. In the event that the corporation determines to make the list available on an 
electronic network, the corporation may take reasonable steps to ensure that such information is available only to stockholders of 
the corporation. The list shall be open to examination of any stockholder during the time of the meeting as provided by law.  

Section 13. Action Without Meeting.  

(a) Unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation, any action required by statute to be taken at any annual 
or special meeting of the stockholders, or any action which may be taken at any annual or special meeting of the stockholders, may 
be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent in writing, or by electronic transmission setting 
forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that 
would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted. 

(b) Every written consent or electronic transmission shall bear the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the 
consent, and no written consent or electronic transmission shall be effective to take the corporate action referred to therein unless, 
within sixty (60) days of the earliest dated consent delivered to the corporation in the manner herein required, written consents or 
electronic transmissions signed by a sufficient number of stockholders to take action are delivered to the corporation by delivery to 
its registered office in the State of Delaware, its principal place of business or an officer or agent of the corporation having custody 
of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded. Delivery made to a corporation’s registered office shall 
be by hand or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.  
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(c) Prompt notice of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous written consent shall be 
given to those stockholders who have not consented in writing or by electronic transmission and who, if the action had been taken 
at a meeting, would have been entitled to notice of the meeting if the record date for such meeting had been the date that written 
consents signed by a sufficient number of stockholders to take action were delivered to the corporation as provided in Section 228
(c) of the DGCL. If the action which is consented to is such as would have required the filing of a certificate under any section of 
the DGCL if such action had been voted on by stockholders at a meeting thereof, then the certificate filed under such section shall 
state, in lieu of any statement required by such section concerning any vote of stockholders, that written consent has been given in 
accordance with Section 228 of the DGCL.  

(d) A telegram, cablegram or other electronic transmission consent to an action to be taken and transmitted by a 
stockholder or proxyholder, or by a person or persons authorized to act for a stockholder or proxyholder, shall be deemed to be 
written, signed and dated for the purposes of this section, provided that any such telegram, cablegram or other electronic 
transmission sets forth or is delivered with information from which the corporation can determine (i) that the telegram, cablegram 
or other electronic transmission was transmitted by the stockholder or proxyholder or by a person or persons authorized to act for 
the stockholder or proxyholder and (ii) the date on which such stockholder or proxyholder or authorized person or persons 
transmitted such telegram, cablegram or electronic transmission. The date on which such telegram, cablegram or electronic 
transmission is transmitted shall be deemed to be the date on which such consent was signed. No consent given by telegram, 
cablegram or other electronic transmission shall be deemed to have been delivered until such consent is reproduced in paper form 
and until such paper form shall be delivered to the corporation by delivery to its registered office in the State of Delaware, its 
principal place of business or an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of 
stockholders are recorded. Delivery made to a corporation’s registered office shall be made by hand or by certified or registered 
mail, return receipt requested. Notwithstanding the foregoing limitations on delivery, consents given by telegram, cablegram or 
other electronic transmission may be otherwise delivered to the principal place of business of the corporation or to an officer or 
agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded if, to the extent 
and in the manner provided by resolution of the board of directors of the corporation. Any copy, facsimile or other reliable 
reproduction of a consent in writing may be substituted or used in lieu of the original writing for any and all purposes for which the 
original writing could be used, provided that such copy, facsimile or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the 
entire original in writing.  

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such action by written consent or by electronic transmission may be taken 
following the closing of the Initial Public Offering.  

Section 14. Organization.  

(a) At every meeting of stockholders, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or, if a Chairman has not been appointed 
or is absent, the President, or, if the President is absent, a chairman of the meeting chosen by a majority in interest of the 
stockholders entitled to vote, present in person or by proxy, shall act as chairman. The Secretary, or, in his absence, an Assistant 
Secretary directed to do so by the President, shall act as secretary of the meeting.  

(b) The Board of Directors of the corporation shall be entitled to make such rules or regulations for the conduct of 
meetings of stockholders as it shall deem necessary, appropriate or convenient. Subject to such rules and regulations of the Board of 
Directors, if any, the chairman of the meeting shall have the right and authority to prescribe such rules, regulations and procedures 
and to do all such acts as, in the judgment of such chairman, are necessary, appropriate or convenient for the proper conduct of the 
meeting, including, without limitation, establishing an agenda or order of business for the meeting, rules and procedures for 
maintaining order at the meeting and the safety of those present, limitations on participation in such meeting to stockholders of 
record of the corporation and their duly authorized and constituted proxies and such other persons as the chairman shall permit, 
restrictions on entry to the meeting after the time fixed for the commencement thereof, limitations on the time allotted to questions 
or comments by participants and regulation of the opening and closing of the polls for balloting on matters which are to be voted on 
by ballot. The date and time of the opening and closing of the polls for each matter upon which the stockholders will vote at the 
meeting shall be announced at the meeting. Unless and to the extent determined by the Board of  
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Directors or the chairman of the meeting, meetings of stockholders shall not be required to be held in accordance with rules of 
parliamentary procedure.  

 
ARTICLE IV  

DIRECTORS  

Section 15. Number And Term Of Office. The authorized number of directors of the corporation shall be fixed in 
accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation. Directors need not be stockholders unless so required by the Certificate of 
Incorporation. If for any cause, the directors shall not have been elected at an annual meeting, they may be elected as soon 
thereafter as convenient at a special meeting of the stockholders called for that purpose in the manner provided in these Bylaws.  

Section 16. Powers. The powers of the corporation shall be exercised, its business conducted and its property controlled by 
the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise provided by statute or by the Certificate of Incorporation.  

Section 17. Election of Directors.  

(a) All directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of stockholders to hold office until the next annual meeting.  

(b) No stockholder entitled to vote at an election for directors may cumulate votes to which such stockholder is entitled, 
unless, at the time of the election, the corporation (i) is subject to §2115(b) of the CGCL and (ii) is not or ceases to be a “listed” 
corporation under Section 301.5 of the CGCL. During this time, every stockholder entitled to vote at an election for directors may 
cumulate such stockholder’s votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be elected 
multiplied by the number of votes to which such stockholder’s shares are otherwise entitled, or distribute the stockholder’s votes on 
the same principle among as many candidates as such stockholder thinks fit. No stockholder, however, shall be entitled to so 
cumulate such stockholder’s votes unless (i) the names of such candidate or candidates have been placed in nomination prior to the 
voting and (ii) the stockholder has given notice at the meeting, prior to the voting, of such stockholder’s intention to cumulate such 
stockholder’s votes. If any stockholder has given proper notice to cumulate votes, all stockholders may cumulate their votes for any 
candidates who have been properly placed in nomination. Under cumulative voting, the candidates receiving the highest number of 
votes, up to the number of directors to be elected, are elected.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this section, each director shall serve until his successor is duly elected and 
qualified or until his earlier death, resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of 
Directors shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.  

Section 18. Vacancies.  

(a) Unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation and subject to the rights of the holders of any series of 
Preferred Stock, any vacancies on the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation, disqualification, removal or other causes 
and any newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors shall, unless the Board of Directors 
determines by resolution that any such vacancies or newly created directorships shall be filled by stockholders, be filled only by the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors. Any director 
elected in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold office for the remainder of the full term of the director for which the 
vacancy was created or occurred and until such director’s successor shall have been elected and qualified. A vacancy in the Board 
of Directors shall be deemed to exist under this Section 18 in the case of the death, removal or resignation of any director.  

(b) If at the time of filling any vacancy or any newly created directorship, the directors then in office shall constitute less 
than a majority of the whole board (as constituted immediately prior to any such increase), the Delaware Court of Chancery may, 
upon application of any stockholder or stockholders holding at least ten percent (10%) of the total number of the shares at the time 
outstanding having the right to vote for such directors, summarily order an election to be held to fill any such vacancies or newly 
created  
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directorships, or to replace the directors chosen by the directors then in offices as aforesaid, which election shall be governed by 
Section 211 of the DGCL.  

(c) At any time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the CGCL, if, after the filling of any 
vacancy, the directors then in office who have been elected by stockholders shall constitute less than a majority of the directors then 
in office, then  

(1) Any holder or holders of an aggregate of five percent (5%) or more of the total number of shares at the time 
outstanding having the right to vote for those directors may call a special meeting of stockholders; or  

(2) The Superior Court of the proper county shall, upon application of such stockholder or stockholders, summarily 
order a special meeting of stockholders, to be held to elect the entire board, all in accordance with Section 305(c) of the 
CGCL. The term of office of any director shall terminate upon that election of a successor.  

Section 19. Removal.  

(a) During such time or times that the corporation is subject to Section 2115(b) of the CGCL, the Board of Directors or 
any individual director may be removed from office at any time without cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a 
majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote on such removal; provided, however, that unless the entire Board is removed, no 
individual director may be removed when the votes cast against such director’s removal, or not consenting in writing to such 
removal, would be sufficient to elect that director if voted cumulatively at an election which the same total number of votes were 
cast (or, if such action is taken by written consent, all shares entitled to vote were voted) and the entire number of directors 
authorized at the time of such director’s most recent election were then being elected.  

(b) Following any date on which the corporation is no longer subject to Section 2115(b) of the CGCL and subject to any 
limitations imposed by law, the Board of Directors or any individual director may be removed from office at any time without 
cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote on such removal.  

 
Section 20. Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by delivering his or her notice in writing or by electronic 

transmission to the Secretary, such resignation to specify whether it will be effective at a particular time, upon receipt by the 
Secretary or at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. If no such specification is made, it shall be deemed effective at the pleasure 
of the Board of Directors. When one or more directors shall resign from the Board of Directors, effective at a future date, a majority 
of the directors then in office, including those who have so resigned, shall have power to fill such vacancy or vacancies, the vote 
thereon to take effect when such resignation or resignations shall become effective, and each Director so chosen shall hold office 
for the unexpired portion of the term of the Director whose place shall be vacated and until his successor shall have been duly 
elected and qualified.  

Section 21. Meetings.  

(a) Regular Meetings. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of Incorporation, regular meetings of the Board of 
Directors may be held at any time or date and at any place within or without the State of Delaware which has been designated by 
the Board of Directors and publicized among all directors, either orally or in writing, by telephone, including a voice-messaging 
system or other system designed to record and communicate messages, facsimile, telegraph or telex, or by electronic mail or other 
electronic means. No further notice shall be required for regular meetings of the Board of Directors.  

(b) Special Meetings. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of Incorporation, special meetings of the Board of 
Directors may be held at any time and place within or without the State of Delaware whenever called by the Chairman of the Board, 
the President or a majority of the authorized number of directors .  

(c) Meetings by Electronic Communications Equipment. Any member of the Board of Directors, or of any committee 
thereof, may participate in a meeting by means of conference telephone or other communications equipment by means of which all 
persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting by such means shall constitute presence in 
person at such meeting.  
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(d) Notice of Special Meetings. Notice of the time and place of all special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be 
orally or in writing, by telephone, including a voice messaging system or other system or technology designed to record and 
communicate messages, facsimile, telegraph or telex, or by electronic mail or other electronic means, during normal business hours, 
at least twenty-four (24) hours before the date and time of the meeting. If notice is sent by US mail, it shall be sent by first class 
mail, charges prepaid, at least three (3) days before the date of the meeting. Notice of any meeting may be waived in writing, or by 
electronic transmission, at any time before or after the meeting and will be waived by any director by attendance thereat, except 
when the director attends the meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any 
business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.  

   
(e) Waiver of Notice. The transaction of all business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, or any committee 

thereof, however called or noticed, or wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and 
notice, if a quorum be present and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present who did not receive notice 
shall sign a written waiver of notice or shall waive notice by electronic transmission. All such waivers shall be filed with the 
corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.  

Section 22. Quorum And Voting.  

(a) Unless the Certificate of Incorporation requires a greater number, a quorum of the Board of Directors shall consist of 
a majority of the exact number of directors fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Certificate of 
Incorporation; provided, however, at any meeting whether a quorum be present or otherwise, a majority of the directors present may 
adjourn from time to time until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors, without notice other than by 
announcement at the meeting.  

(b) At each meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present, all questions and business shall be 
determined by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present, unless a different vote be required by law, the Certificate 
of Incorporation or these Bylaws.  

Section 23. Action Without Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws, any 
action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without 
a meeting, if all members of the Board of Directors or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing or by electronic 
transmission, and such writing or writings or transmission or transmissions are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board 
of Directors or committee. Such filing shall be in paper form if the minutes are maintained in paper form and shall be in electronic 
form if the minutes are maintained in electronic form.  

Section 24. Fees And Compensation. Directors shall be entitled to such compensation for their services as may be approved 
by the Board of Directors, including, if so approved, by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and expenses of 
attendance, if any, for attendance at each regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors and at any meeting of a committee of 
the Board of Directors. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from serving the corporation in any 
other capacity as an officer, agent, employee, or otherwise and receiving compensation therefor.  

Section 25. Committees.  

(a) Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may appoint an Executive Committee to consist of one (1) or more 
members of the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee, to the extent permitted by law and provided in the resolution of the 
Board of Directors shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the 
business and affairs of the corporation, and may authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require 
it; but no such committee shall have the power or authority in reference to (i) approving or adopting, or recommending to the 
stockholders, any action or matter expressly required by the DGCL to be submitted to stockholders for approval, or (ii) adopting, 
amending or repealing any bylaw of the corporation.  
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(b) Other Committees. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, appoint such other committees as may be 
permitted by law. Such other committees appointed by the Board of Directors shall consist of one (1) or more members of the 
Board of Directors and shall have such powers and perform such duties as may be prescribed by the resolution or resolutions 
creating such committees, but in no event shall any such committee have the powers denied to the Executive Committee in these 
Bylaws.  

(c) Term. The Board of Directors, subject to any requirements of any outstanding series of Preferred Stock and the 
provisions of subsections (a) or (b) of this Bylaw, may at any time increase or decrease the number of members of a committee or 
terminate the existence of a committee. The membership of a committee member shall terminate on the date of his death or 
voluntary resignation from the committee or from the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may at any time for any reason 
remove any individual committee member and the Board of Directors may fill any committee vacancy created by death, 
resignation, removal or increase in the number of members of the committee. The Board of Directors may designate one or more 
directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the 
committee, and, in addition, in the absence or disqualification of any member of a committee, the member or members thereof 
present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not he or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint 
another member of the Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member.  

(d) Meetings. Unless the Board of Directors shall otherwise provide, regular meetings of the Executive Committee or 
any other committee appointed pursuant to this Section 25 shall be held at such times and places as are determined by the Board of 
Directors, or by any such committee, and when notice thereof has been given to each member of such committee, no further notice 
of such regular meetings need be given thereafter. Special meetings of any such committee may be held at any place which has 
been determined from time to time by such committee, and may be called by any Director who is a member of such committee, 
upon notice to the members of such committee of the time and place of such special meeting given in the manner provided for the 
giving of notice to members of the Board of Directors of the time and place of special meetings of the Board of Directors. Notice of 
any special meeting of any committee may be waived in writing at any time before or after the meeting and will be waived by any 
director by attendance thereat, except when the director attends such special meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the 
beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Unless 
otherwise provided by the Board of Directors in the resolutions authorizing the creation of the committee, a majority of the 
authorized number of members of any such committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a 
majority of those present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of such committee.  
   

Section 26. Organization. At every meeting of the directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or, if a Chairman has 
not been appointed or is absent, the President (if a director), or if the President is absent, the most senior Vice President (if a 
director), or, in the absence of any such person, a chairman of the meeting chosen by a majority of the directors present, shall 
preside over the meeting. The Secretary, or in his absence, any Assistant Secretary directed to do so by the President, shall act as 
secretary of the meeting.  

ARTICLE V  

OFFICERS  

Section 27. Officers Designated. The officers of the corporation shall include, if and when designated by the Board of 
Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, one or more Vice Presidents, the 
Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer and the Controller, all of whom shall be elected at the annual organizational 
meeting of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may also appoint one or more Assistant Secretaries, Assistant 
Treasurers, Assistant Controllers and such other officers and agents with such powers and duties as it shall deem necessary. The 
Board of Directors may assign such additional titles to one or more of the officers as it shall deem appropriate. Any one person may 
hold any number of offices of the corporation at any one time unless specifically prohibited therefrom by law. The salaries and 
other compensation of the officers of the corporation shall be fixed by or in the manner designated by the Board of Directors.  
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Section 28. Tenure And Duties Of Officers.  

(a) General. All officers shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and until their successors shall have 
been duly elected and qualified, unless sooner removed. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be 
removed at any time by the Board of Directors. If the office of any officer becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be 
filled by the Board of Directors.  

(b) Duties of Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, when present, shall 
preside at all meetings of the stockholders and the Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall perform other 
duties commonly incident to the office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers, as the Board of 
Directors shall designate from time to time. If there is no President, then the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall also serve as 
the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation and shall have the powers and duties prescribed in paragraph (c) of this Section 28.  

(c) Duties of President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and at all meetings of the Board 
of Directors, unless the Chairman of the Board of Directors has been appointed and is present. Unless some other officer has been 
elected Chief Executive Officer of the corporation, the President shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, 
subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and officers of the 
corporation. The President shall perform other duties commonly incident to the office and shall also perform such other duties and 
have such other powers, as the Board of Directors shall designate from time to time.  

   
(d) Duties of Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents may assume and perform the duties of the President in the absence 

or disability of the President or whenever the office of President is vacant. The Vice Presidents shall perform other duties 
commonly incident to their office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or 
the President shall designate from time to time.  

(e) Duties of Secretary. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the stockholders and of the Board of Directors and 
shall record all acts and proceedings thereof in the minute book of the corporation. The Secretary shall give notice in conformity 
with these Bylaws of all meetings of the stockholders and of all meetings of the Board of Directors and any committee thereof 
requiring notice. The Secretary shall perform all other duties provided for in these Bylaws and other duties commonly incident to 
the office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers, as the Board of Directors shall designate from time 
to time. The President may direct any Assistant Secretary to assume and perform the duties of the Secretary in the absence or 
disability of the Secretary, and each Assistant Secretary shall perform other duties commonly incident to the office and shall also 
perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors or the President shall designate from time to time.  

(f) Duties of Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer shall keep or cause to be kept the books of account 
of the corporation in a thorough and proper manner and shall render statements of the financial affairs of the corporation in such 
form and as often as required by the Board of Directors or the President. The Chief Financial Officer, subject to the order of the 
Board of Directors, shall have the custody of all funds and securities of the corporation. The Chief Financial Officer shall perform 
other duties commonly incident to the office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of 
Directors or the President shall designate from time to time. The President may direct the Treasurer or any Assistant Treasurer, or 
the Controller or any Assistant Controller to assume and perform the duties of the Chief Financial Officer in the absence or 
disability of the Chief Financial Officer, and each Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer and each Controller and Assistant Controller 
shall perform other duties commonly incident to the office and shall also perform such other duties and have such other powers as 
the Board of Directors or the President shall designate from time to time.  

Section 29. Delegation Of Authority. The Board of Directors may from time to time delegate the powers or duties of any 
officer to any other officer or agent, notwithstanding any provision hereof.  

Section 30. Resignations. Any officer may resign at any time by giving notice in writing or by electronic transmission to the 
Board of Directors or to the President or to the Secretary. Any such resignation shall be effective when received by the person or 
persons to whom such notice is given, unless a later time is  
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specified therein, in which event the resignation shall become effective at such later time. Unless otherwise specified in such notice, 
the acceptance of any such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any resignation shall be without prejudice to the 
rights, if any, of the corporation under any contract with the resigning officer.  
   

Section 31. Removal. Any officer may be removed from office at any time, either with or without cause, by the affirmative 
vote of a majority of the directors in office at the time, or by the unanimous written consent of the directors in office at the time, or 
by any committee or superior officers upon whom such power of removal may have been conferred by the Board of Directors.  

ARTICLE VI  

EXECUTION OF CORPORATE INSTRUMENTS AND VOTING OF SE CURITIES  
OWNED BY THE CORPORATION  

Section 32. Execution Of Corporate Instruments. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, determine the method and 
designate the signatory officer or officers, or other person or persons, to execute on behalf of the corporation any corporate 
instrument or document, or to sign on behalf of the corporation the corporate name without limitation, or to enter into contracts on 
behalf of the corporation, except where otherwise provided by law or these Bylaws, and such execution or signature shall be 
binding upon the corporation.  

All checks and drafts drawn on banks or other depositaries on funds to the credit of the corporation or in special accounts of 
the corporation shall be signed by such person or persons as the Board of Directors shall authorize so to do.  

Unless authorized or ratified by the Board of Directors or within the agency power of an officer, no officer, agent or employee 
shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable 
for any purpose or for any amount.  

Section 33. Voting Of Securities Owned By The Corporation. All stock and other securities of other corporations owned or 
held by the corporation for itself, or for other parties in any capacity, shall be voted, and all proxies with respect thereto shall be 
executed, by the person authorized so to do by resolution of the Board of Directors, or, in the absence of such authorization, by the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the President, or any Vice President.  

ARTICLE VII  

SHARES OF STOCK  

Section 34. Form And Execution Of Certificates. The shares of the corporation shall be represented by certificates, or shall 
be uncertificated. Certificates for the shares of stock of the corporation, if any, shall be in such form as is consistent with the 
Certificate of Incorporation and applicable law. Every holder of stock represented by certificate in the corporation shall be entitled 
to have a certificate signed by or in the name of the corporation by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, or the President or any 
Vice President and by the Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or Assistant Secretary, certifying the number of shares 
owned by such holder in the corporation. Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be facsimiles. In case any officer, 
transfer agent, or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be 
such officer, transfer agent, or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued with the same effect as if he were such 
officer, transfer agent, or registrar at the date of issue.  
 

Section 35. Lost Certificates. A new certificate or certificates may be issued in place of any certificate or certificates 
theretofore issued by the corporation alleged to have been lost, stolen, or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by 
the person claiming the certificate of stock to be lost, stolen, or destroyed. The corporation may require, as a condition precedent to 
the issuance of a new certificate or certificates, the owner of such lost, stolen, or destroyed certificate or certificates, or the owner’s 
legal  
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representative, to agree to indemnify the corporation in such manner as it shall require or to give the corporation a surety bond in 
such form and amount as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made against the corporation with respect to the 
certificate alleged to have been lost, stolen, or destroyed.  

Section 36. Transfers.  

(a) Transfers of record of shares of stock of the corporation shall be made only upon its books by the holders thereof, in 
person or by attorney duly authorized, and, in the case of stock represented by certificate, upon the surrender of a properly endorsed 
certificate or certificates for a like number of shares.  

(b) The corporation shall have power to enter into and perform any agreement with any number of stockholders of any 
one or more classes of stock of the corporation to restrict the transfer of shares of stock of the corporation of any one or more 
classes owned by such stockholders in any manner not prohibited by the DGCL.  

Section 37. Fixing Record Dates.  

(a) In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of 
stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which record date shall not 
precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which record date shall, 
subject to applicable law, not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting. If no record date 
is fixed by the Board of Directors, the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of 
stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or if notice is waived, at 
the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held. A determination of stockholders of record 
entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that 
the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.  

(b) In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other 
distribution or allotment of any rights or the stockholders entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or 
exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which 
record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted, and which record date shall be 
not more than sixty (60) days prior to such action. If no record date is fixed, the record date for determining stockholders for any 
such purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.  

   
Section 38. Registered Stockholders. The corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a person registered 

on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends, and to vote as such owner, and shall not be bound to recognize any 
equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on the part of any other person whether or not it shall have express or 
other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Delaware.  

ARTICLE VIII  

OTHER SECURITIES OF THE CORPORATION  

Section 39. Execution Of Other Securities. All bonds, debentures and other corporate securities of the corporation, other 
than stock certificates (covered in Section 34), may be signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President or any Vice 
President, or such other person as may be authorized by the Board of Directors, and the corporate seal impressed thereon or a 
facsimile of such seal imprinted thereon and attested by the signature of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, or the Chief 
Financial Officer or Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer; provided, however, that where any such bond, debenture or other corporate 
security shall be authenticated by the manual signature, or where permissible facsimile signature, of a trustee under an indenture 
pursuant to which such bond, debenture or other corporate security shall be issued, the signatures of the persons signing and 
attesting the corporate seal on such bond, debenture or other corporate security may be the imprinted facsimile of the signatures of 
such persons. Interest coupons appertaining to any such bond,  
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debenture or other corporate security, authenticated by a trustee as aforesaid, shall be signed by the Treasurer or an Assistant 
Treasurer of the corporation or such other person as may be authorized by the Board of Directors, or bear imprinted thereon the 
facsimile signature of such person. In case any officer who shall have signed or attested any bond, debenture or other corporate 
security, or whose facsimile signature shall appear thereon or on any such interest coupon, shall have ceased to be such officer 
before the bond, debenture or other corporate security so signed or attested shall have been delivered, such bond, debenture or other 
corporate security nevertheless may be adopted by the corporation and issued and delivered as though the person who signed the 
same or whose facsimile signature shall have been used thereon had not ceased to be such officer of the corporation.  

ARTICLE IX  

DIVIDENDS  

Section 40. Declaration Of Dividends. Dividends upon the capital stock of the corporation, subject to the provisions of the 
Certificate of Incorporation and applicable law, if any, may be declared by the Board of Directors pursuant to law at any regular or 
special meeting. Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the capital stock, subject to the provisions of the 
Certificate of Incorporation and applicable law.  
   

Section 41. Dividend Reserve. Before payment of any dividend, there may be set aside out of any funds of the corporation 
available for dividends such sum or sums as the Board of Directors from time to time, in their absolute discretion, think proper as a 
reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for repairing or maintaining any property of the 
corporation, or for such other purpose as the Board of Directors shall think conducive to the interests of the corporation, and the 
Board of Directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.  

ARTICLE X  

FISCAL YEAR  

Section 42. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.  

ARTICLE XI  

INDEMNIFICATION  

Section 43. Indemnification Of Directors, Executive Officers, Other Officers, Employees And Other Agents.  

(a) Directors and Executive Officers. The corporation shall indemnify its current and former directors and executive 
officers (for the purposes of this Article XI, “Executive Officers” shall have the meaning defined in Rule 3b-7 promulgated under 
the 1934 Act) to the fullest extent not prohibited by the DGCL or any other applicable law; provided, however, that the corporation 
may modify the extent of such indemnification by individual contracts with its directors and executive officers; and, provided, 
further, that the corporation shall not be required to indemnify any director or executive officer in connection with any proceeding 
(or part thereof) initiated by such person unless (i) such indemnification is expressly required to be made by law, (ii) the proceeding 
was authorized by the Board of Directors of the corporation, (iii) such indemnification is provided by the corporation, in its sole 
discretion, pursuant to the powers vested in the corporation under the DGCL or any other applicable law or (iv) such 
indemnification is required to be made under subsection (d).  

(b) Officers, Employees and Other Agents. The corporation shall have power to indemnify its other current and 
former officers, employees and other agents as set forth in the DGCL or any other applicable law. The Board of Directors shall 
have the power to delegate the determination of whether indemnification shall be given to any such person except executive 
officers to such officers or other persons as the Board of Directors shall determine.  
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(c) Expenses. The corporation shall advance to any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to 
any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason 
of the fact that he is or was a director or executive officer, of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation 
as a director or executive officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, prior to the final 
disposition of the proceeding, promptly following request therefor, all expenses incurred by any director or executive officer in 
connection with such proceeding provided, however, that if the DGCL requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by a director 
or executive officer in his or her capacity as a director or executive officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is 
rendered by such indemnitee, including, without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) shall be made only upon delivery 
to the corporation of an undertaking (hereinafter an “undertaking”), by or on behalf of such indemnitee, to repay all amounts so 
advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is no further right to appeal (hereinafter a 
“final adjudication”) that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Section 43 or otherwise.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless otherwise determined pursuant to paragraph (e) of this Section 43, no advance 
shall be made by the corporation to an executive officer of the corporation (except by reason of the fact that such executive officer 
is or was a director of the corporation in which event this paragraph shall not apply) in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, 
criminal, administrative or investigative, if a determination is reasonably and promptly made (i) by a majority vote of directors who 
were not parties to the proceeding, even if not a quorum, or (ii) by a committee of such directors designated by a majority vote of 
such directors, even though less than a quorum, or (iii) if there are no such directors, or such directors so direct, by independent 
legal counsel in a written opinion, that the facts known to the decision-making party at the time such determination is made 
demonstrate clearly and convincingly that such person acted in bad faith or in a manner that such person did not believe to be in or 
not opposed to the best interests of the corporation.  

(d) Enforcement. Without the necessity of entering into an express contract, all rights to indemnification and advances 
to directors and executive officers under this Bylaw shall be deemed to be contractual rights and be effective to the same extent and 
as if provided for in a contract between the corporation and the director or executive officer. Any right to indemnification or 
advances granted by this Section 43 to a director or executive officer shall be enforceable by or on behalf of the person holding 
such right in any court of competent jurisdiction if (i) the claim for indemnification or advances is denied, in whole or in part, or 
(ii) no disposition of such claim is made within ninety (90) days of request therefor. The claimant in such enforcement action, if 
successful in whole or in part, shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting the claim. In connection with any claim 
for indemnification, the corporation shall be entitled to raise as a defense to any such action that the claimant has not met the 
standards of conduct that make it permissible under the DGCL or any other applicable law for the corporation to indemnify the 
claimant for the amount claimed. In connection with any claim by an executive officer of the corporation (except in any action, suit 
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such executive officer is or was a 
director of the corporation) for advances, the corporation shall be entitled to raise a defense as to any such action clear and 
convincing evidence that such person acted in bad faith or in a manner that such person did not believe to be in or not opposed to 
the best interests of the corporation, or with respect to any criminal action or proceeding that such person acted without reasonable 
cause to believe that his conduct was lawful. Neither the failure of the corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent 
legal counsel or its stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of 
the claimant is proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the DGCL or any 
other applicable law, nor an actual determination by the corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or 
its stockholders) that the claimant has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall be a defense to the action or create a 
presumption that claimant has not met the applicable standard of conduct. In any suit brought by a director or executive officer to 
enforce a right to indemnification or to an advancement of expenses hereunder, the burden of proving that the director or executive 
officer is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such advancement of expenses, under this Section 43 or otherwise shall be on the 
corporation.  
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(e) Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights conferred on any person by this Bylaw shall not be exclusive of any other 
right which such person may have or hereafter acquire under any applicable statute, provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, 
Bylaws, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to 
action in another capacity while holding office. The corporation is specifically authorized to enter into individual contracts with any 
or all of its directors, officers, employees or agents respecting indemnification and advances, to the fullest extent not prohibited by 
the DGCL, or by any other applicable law.  

(f) Survival of Rights. The rights conferred on any person by this Bylaw shall continue as to a person who has ceased to 
be a director or executive officer, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.  

(g) Insurance. To the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL or any other applicable law, the corporation, upon approval 
by the Board of Directors, may purchase insurance on behalf of any person required or permitted to be indemnified pursuant to this 
Section 43.  

(h) Amendments. Any repeal or modification of this Section 43 shall only be prospective and shall not affect the rights 
under this Bylaw in effect at the time of the alleged occurrence of any action or omission to act that is the cause of any proceeding 
against any agent of the corporation.  

(i) Saving Clause. If this Bylaw or any portion hereof shall be invalidated on any ground by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, then the corporation shall nevertheless indemnify each director and executive officer to the full extent not prohibited 
by any applicable portion of this Section 43 that shall not have been invalidated, or by any other applicable law. If this Section 43 
shall be invalid due to the application of the indemnification provisions of another jurisdiction, then the corporation shall indemnify 
each director and officer to the full extent under any other applicable law.  

(j) Certain Definitions. For the purposes of this Bylaw, the following definitions shall apply:  

(1) The term “proceeding” shall be broadly construed and shall include, without limitation, the investigation, 
preparation, prosecution, defense, settlement, arbitration and appeal of, and the giving of testimony in, any threatened, pending or 
completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative.  

   
(2) The term “expenses” shall be broadly construed and shall include, without limitation, court costs, attorneys’ 

fees, witness fees, fines, amounts paid in settlement or judgment and any other costs and expenses of any nature or kind incurred in 
connection with any proceeding.  

(3) The term the “corporation” shall include, in addition to the resulting corporation, any constituent corporation 
(including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, if its separate existence had continued, 
would have had power and authority to indemnify its directors, officers, and employees or agents, so that any person who is or was 
a director, officer, employee or agent of such constituent corporation, or is or was serving at the request of such constituent 
corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall 
stand in the same position under the provisions of this Section 43 with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as he would 
have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued.  

(4) References to a “director,” “executive officer,” “officer,” “employee,” or “agent” of the corporation shall 
include, without limitation, situations where such person is serving at the request of the corporation as, respectively, a director, 
executive officer, officer, employee, trustee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.  

(5) References to “other enterprises” shall include employee benefit plans; references to “fines” shall include any 
excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and references to “serving at the request of the 
corporation” shall include any service as a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation which imposes duties on, or 
involves services by, such director, officer, employee, or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants, or 
beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in the interest of the participants 
and  
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beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a manner “not opposed to the best interests of the 
corporation” as referred to in this Section 43.  

ARTICLE XII  

NOTICES  

Section 44. Notices.  

(a) Notice To Stockholders. Written notice to stockholders of stockholder meetings shall be given as provided in 
Section 7 herein. Without limiting the manner by which notice may otherwise be given effectively to stockholders under any 
agreement or contract with such stockholder, and except as otherwise required by law, written notice to stockholders for purposes 
other than stockholder meetings may be sent by US mail or nationally recognized overnight courier, or by facsimile, telegraph or 
telex or by electronic mail or other electronic means.  

   
(b) Notice To Directors. Any notice required to be given to any director may be given by the method stated in 

subsection (a), as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, or by overnight delivery service, facsimile, telex or telegram, except that 
such notice other than one which is delivered personally shall be sent to such address as such director shall have filed in writing 
with the Secretary, or, in the absence of such filing, to the last known post office address of such director.  

(c) Affidavit Of Mailing. An affidavit of mailing, executed by a duly authorized and competent employee of the 
corporation or its transfer agent appointed with respect to the class of stock affected, or other agent, specifying the name and 
address or the names and addresses of the stockholder or stockholders, or director or directors, to whom any such notice or notices 
was or were given, and the time and method of giving the same, shall in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts 
therein contained.  

(d) Methods of Notice. It shall not be necessary that the same method of giving notice be employed in respect of all 
recipients of notice, but one permissible method may be employed in respect of any one or more, and any other permissible method 
or methods may be employed in respect of any other or others.  

(e) Notice To Person With Whom Communication Is Unlawful. Whenever notice is required to be given, under any 
provision of law or of the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of the corporation, to any person with whom communication is 
unlawful, the giving of such notice to such person shall not be required and there shall be no duty to apply to any governmental 
authority or agency for a license or permit to give such notice to such person. Any action or meeting which shall be taken or held 
without notice to any such person with whom communication is unlawful shall have the same force and effect as if such notice had 
been duly given. In the event that the action taken by the corporation is such as to require the filing of a certificate under any 
provision of the DGCL, the certificate shall state, if such is the fact and if notice is required, that notice was given to all persons 
entitled to receive notice except such persons with whom communication is unlawful.  

(f) Notice to Stockholders Sharing an Address. Except as otherwise prohibited under DGCL, any notice given under 
the provisions of DGCL, the Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws shall be effective if given by a single written notice to 
stockholders who share an address if consented to by the stockholders at that address to whom such notice is given. Such consent 
shall have been deemed to have been given if such stockholder fails to object in writing to the corporation within 60 days of having 
been given notice by the corporation of its intention to send the single notice. Any consent shall be revocable by the stockholder by 
written notice to the corporation.  

ARTICLE XIII  

AMENDMENTS  

Section 45. The Board of Directors is expressly empowered to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the corporation Bylaws. 
Any adoption, amendment or repeal of the Bylaws of the corporation by the Board of Directors shall require the approval of a 
majority of the authorized number of directors. The stockholders  
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Exhibit 3.2 
 

shall also have power to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the corporation; provided, however, that, in addition to any vote of 
the holders of any class or series of stock of the corporation required by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation, the affirmative 
vote of the holders of at least sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of 
the capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, shall be 
required to adopt, amend or repeal any provision of the Bylaws of the corporation.  

ARTICLE XIV  

LOANS TO OFFICERS  

Section 46. Loans To Officers. Except as otherwise prohibited by applicable law, the corporation may lend money to, or 
guarantee any obligation of, or otherwise assist any officer or other employee of the corporation or of its subsidiaries, including any 
officer or employee who is a Director of the corporation or its subsidiaries, whenever, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, 
such loan, guarantee or assistance may reasonably be expected to benefit the corporation. The loan, guarantee or other assistance 
may be with or without interest and may be unsecured, or secured in such manner as the Board of Directors shall approve, 
including, without limitation, a pledge of shares of stock of the corporation. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed to deny, limit 
or restrict the powers of guaranty or warranty of the corporation at common law or under any statute.  
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Exhibit 21.1* 

Subsidiaries of Silicon Graphics International Corp.  

 

*Subsidiaries listed are “Significant Subsidiaries” of Silicon Graphics International Corp. as determined in accordance with Item 
601 of Regulation S-K and Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X.  

 

 

 

 

Silicon Graphics World Trade BV  
Rackable Systems Holding Corp. (Delaware)  
Silicon Graphics Federal, LLC.  
SGI Japan, Ltd.  



 
Exhibit 23.1 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING  FIRM  
 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-194094, 333-186783, 333-180205, 333-173210, 333-
165847, 333-160464, 333-150102, 333-125760, 333-131976, 333-132564, 333-135677, 333-137250 and 333-140994 on Form S-8 of our reports 
dated September 8, 2014, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of Silicon Graphics International 
Corp. and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Company”) and the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting, 
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 27, 2014.  

 

 

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

San Jose, California  
September 8, 2014  
 
 

 



 
 

Exhibit 31.1 
CERTIFICATION  

 
I, Jorge L. Titinger, certify that:  
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Silicon Graphics International Corp.;  
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  
 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and  

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; 
and  

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.  
 

 
 
 
Date: September 8, 2014  
 

 
 

 

         /s/ JORGE L. TITINGER  

         
Jorge L. Titinger  

CEO and President  



 
 

Exhibit 31.2 
CERTIFICATION  

 
I, Robert J. Nikl, certify that:  
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Silicon Graphics International Corp.;  
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  
 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and  

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, 
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; 
and  

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.  
 

 
 
 
Date: September 8, 2014  

 
 

         /s/ ROBERT J. NIKL       

         
Robert J. Nikl  

Chief Financial Officer  



 
 

Exhibit 32.1 
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO  

18 U.S.C. ¤1350,  
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  
 
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Silicon Graphics International Corp. (the “Company”) for the year ended June 27, 2014 , 
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Jorge L. Titinger, Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company, and Robert J. Nikl, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. ¤1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  
 

(1) The Report, to which this Certification is attached as Exhibit 32.1, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  
 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.  

 
Dated: September 8, 2014  
 

 
 

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K to which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and 
is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Silicon Graphics International Corp. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-K), irrespective of any general incorporation 
language contained in such filing.  
 
 

 

/s/ Jorge L. Titinger     /s/ Robert J. Nikl  
Jorge L. Titinger  

CEO and President     
Robert J. Nikl  

Chief Financial Officer  


